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SUBJECT TO COMPLETION. DATED APRIL , 1999,

[LOGO]
15,640,000 Common Units

TC PIPELINES, LP

Representing Limited Partner Interests

This is an initial public offering by TC PipelLines, LP of common units
representing limited partner interests. TC PipelLines was recently formed to
acquire, own and participate in the management of United States based pipeline
assets. TC PipelLines will own a 30% general partner interest in Northern Border
Pipeline Company, which is engaged in pipeline transportation of natural gas.

Common units are entitled to receive distributions of operating cash of
$0.375 per quarter or $1.50 on an annualized basis, before any distributions are
paid on the subordinated units. This priority is expected to continue until at
least June 30, 2004.

Prior to the offering, there has been no public market for the common units.
TC PipeLines anticipates that the initial public offering price per common unit
will be between $ and $ . TC PipelLines intends to have its common units
quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol " ",

Affiliates of the general partner will receive all of the net proceeds of
this offering after payment of expenses. TC PipeLines will not retain any of the
proceeds from this offering.

SEE "RISK FACTORS" ON PAGE 16 TO READ ABOUT IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT YOU
SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE BUYING COMMON UNITS.

These risks include the following:
- Cash distributions are not assured.

- FERC regulatory decisions may adversely affect the operations of Northern
Border Pipeline.

- Loss of a major shipper could adversely affect the operations of Northern
Border Pipeline.

- TC PipelLines' affiliates may compete with TC PipelLines or Northern Border
Pipeline for existing or new business.

- The legal duties of TC PipeLines' general partner and its affiliates to
unitholders are limited.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY OTHER REGULATORY BODY
HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED OF THESE SECURITIES OR PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR
ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL
OFFENSE.

Per
Common Unit Total

Initial public offering price.............. .. ... outn $ $
Underwriting discount..........oiiiiiinnnnnnnnnn.. $ $
Proceeds, before expenses, to TC PipeLines............ $ $

The underwriters may purchase up to an additional 2,346,000 common units
from TC PipelLines at the initial public offering price less the underwriting
discount to cover over-allotments.

The underwriters expect to deliver the common units against payment in New
York, New York on , 1999.

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.



SALOMON SMITH BARNEY
MERRILL LYNCH & CO.
MORGAN STANLEY DEAN WITTER
PAINEWEBBER INCORPORATED

Prospectus dated , 1999.
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GUIDE TO READING THIS PROSPECTUS

The following should help you understand some of the conventions and defined
terms used in this prospectus:

- For ease of reference, a glossary of some of the terms used in this
prospectus is included as Appendix C to this prospectus. Capitalized
terms not otherwise defined have the meanings given in the glossary.

- Unless otherwise specified, the information in this prospectus assumes
that

the underwriters' over-allotment option is not exercised.

- Unless otherwise specified, references in this prospectus to "$" or
"dollars" are to United States dollars.

iv



PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

THE SUMMARY HIGHLIGHTS INFORMATION CONTAINED ELSEWHERE IN THIS PROSPECTUS.
IT DOES NOT CONTAIN ALL OF THE INFORMATION THAT YOU SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE
INVESTING IN THE COMMON UNITS. YOU SHOULD READ THE ENTIRE PROSPECTUS CAREFULLY,
INCLUDING THE "RISK FACTORS" SECTION AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE NOTES
TO THOSE STATEMENTS.

TC PIPELINES, LP

We were recently formed to acquire, own and participate in the management of
United States based pipeline assets. We will own a 30% interest in Northern
Border Pipeline Company.

Northern Border Pipeline owns a 1,214-mile United States interstate pipeline
system that currently transports natural gas from the Montana-Saskatchewan
border to natural gas markets in the midwestern United States. Northern Border
Pipeline connects with multiple pipelines which allow its shippers to access the
various natural gas markets served by those pipelines.

The Northern Border pipeline system was initially constructed in 1982 and
was expanded or extended in 1991, 1992 and 1998. A recent expansion and
extension, called the Chicago project, was completed in late 1998, and increased
the Northern Border pipeline system's ability to receive natural gas by 42% to
its current capacity of 2,373 million cubic feet per day. The amount of natural
gas that can be transported in the pipeline is referred to as "capacity" and is
measured in cubic feet per day. In January and February 1999, the first full two
months of operations that included the Chicago project, we estimate that nearly
23% of the natural gas produced in Canada was exported through the Northern
Border pipeline system to the United States. In 1998, approximately 88% of the
natural gas transported by the Northern Border pipeline system was produced in
the western Canadian sedimentary basin located in the provinces of Alberta,
British Columbia and Saskatchewan.

As of December 31, 1998, all of the capacity of the Northern Border pipeline
system was contractually committed through October 2001 and the weighted average
contract life, based upon annual cost of service obligations, was slightly under
eight years, with at least 97% of capacity contracted through mid-September
2003.

Northern Border Pipeline transports natural gas for shippers under a tariff
regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The tariff allows
Northern Border Pipeline an opportunity to recover from its shippers its costs
of service, including a return on equity, operations and maintenance costs,
taxes other than income taxes, interest, depreciation and amortization and an
allowance for income taxes. Shippers contract to pay for a proportionate share
of those costs by way of a uniform mileage-based charge for the amount of
capacity contracted. The shippers are obligated to pay the charge regardless of
the amount of natural gas they transport. Northern Border Pipeline does not own
the natural gas that it transports and therefore it does not assume any natural
gas commodity price risk.

The Northern Border pipeline system is operated by Northern Plains Natural
Gas Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of Enron Corp. Management of Northern
Border Pipeline is overseen by a four-member management committee. We will
designate one representative to the Northern Border Pipeline management
committee with 30% voting power and the general partners of Northern Border
Partners, L.P., a publicly traded partnership that is not affiliated with us,
select the other three representatives, which have a combined 70% voting power.

We are managed by our general partner, TC PipeLines GP, Inc., which is a
wholly owned subsidiary of TransCanada PipelLines Limited. TransCanada has
extensive operations in four principal lines of business: energy transmission,
energy marketing, energy processing and international energy services.



TransCanada is the largest carrier of natural gas in North America by volume
and operates the longest and most extensive pipeline network in Canada. As of
December 31, 1998, TransCanada transported approximately 80% of all Canadian
natural gas production, which represented 18% of all North American natural gas
production. Through the Canadian mainline and the Alberta system, TransCanada
owns and operates natural gas transmission systems with approximately 22,800
miles of pipeline. TransCanada extends its reach in North America through
various ownership interests in approximately 6,840 miles of natural gas and
crude o0il pipelines.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Our business strategy combines the acquisition of high quality pipeline
transmission and related assets with further development of our existing asset
base. TransCanada has developed and expects to continue to develop pipeline
assets which either link western Canadian natural gas supplies directly to
United States markets or complement pipelines which do so. We believe that
TransCanada's United States based pipeline assets will provide us with
acquisition opportunities because TransCanada views TC PipelLines as its
preferred acquisition and growth vehicle in the United States for these type of
assets.

We believe the growing market for natural gas in the northeastern United
States is a logical market for the large reserves of natural gas in western
Canada. Northern Border Pipeline is part of a pathway between pipeline systems
accessing supply in western Canada and pipeline systems serving the market areas
in the northeastern United States. We believe we can capitalize on the growth
opportunities inherent in the northeastern United States through our
participation in further expansions and extensions of the Northern Border
pipeline system, as well as through select acquisitions of ownership interests
in other United States pipeline transmission and related assets.

Industry conditions, competition and the possible need for substantial
additional financing that might not be available on acceptable terms or at all
may impact our ability to implement our business strategy.



TC PIPELINES STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

We will own our 30% general partner interest in Northern Border Pipeline
through the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership. Upon completion of the
transactions contemplated in this prospectus:

- TC PipeLines will own a 98.9899% limited partner interest in the TC
PipeLines intermediate partnership

- our general partner will own a 1% general partner interest in TC PipelLines

- our general partner will own a 1.0101% general partner interest in the TC
PipeLines intermediate partnership.

The general partner, therefore, will own a 2% general partner interest in TC
PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership on a combined basis.

Following the offering, the executives who currently manage TransCanada's
investment in Northern Border Pipeline will manage and operate our business as
the executives of our general partner or its affiliates. Our general partner
will not receive any management fee or other compensation in connection with its
management of TC PipelLines, but will be reimbursed for all direct and indirect
expenses incurred on behalf of TC Pipelines.

TransCanada has agreed with the underwriters of the offering that it will
retain beneficial ownership of our general partner until the later to occur of
(1) the date when TransCanada or an affiliate is no longer providing the
revolving credit facility and (2) six months after the date when there are no
officers of our general partner who are also directors, officers or employees of
TransCanada or its other affiliates. Our general partner has agreed not to
voluntarily withdraw prior to June 30, 2009 without obtaining unitholder
approval.

Our principal executive offices are located at Four Greenspoint Plaza, 16945
Northchase Drive, Houston, Texas 77060 and our phone number is (281) 539-4500.

The following chart depicts the organization and ownership of TC Pipelines,
the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership and Northern Border Pipeline after
giving effect to the completion of the transactions contemplated in this
prospectus, and assuming that the underwriters' over-allotment option is not
exercised. The percentages reflected in the organization chart represent the
approximate ownership interest in each of TC PipeLines and the TC PipelLines
intermediate partnership individually and not on a combined basis. Except for
the organization chart, the ownership percentages referred to in this prospectus
reflect the approximate effective ownership interest of the unitholders in TC
PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership on a combined basis. The
2% ownership of the general partner interest referred to in this prospectus
reflects the approximate effective ownership interest of our general partner in
TC PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership on a combined basis.
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(1) Northern Border Intermediate Limited Partnership, a subsidiary of Northern
Border Partners, L.P., is not affiliated with us.



Securities offered

Units outstanding after the

offering........

Cash distributions

THE OFFERING

15,640,000 common units.

17,986,000 common units if the underwriters'
over-allotment option is exercised in full.

15,640,000 common units and 3,960,000 subordinated
units, representing 78.2% and 19.8% limited partner
interests in TC Pipelines.

If the underwriters' over-allotment option is exercised
in full:

- 2,346,000 additional common units will be issued
and 2,346,000 subordinated units will be redeemed;
and

- 17,986,000 common units and 1,614,000 subordinated
units, representing 89.9% and 8.1% limited partner
interests in TC PipelLines, will be outstanding.

We intend to make cash distributions of at least a
minimum quarterly distribution of $0.375 per common unit
per quarter. This minimum quarterly distribution is not
assured. We are required to make quarterly distributions
of all of our cash from operations, if any, whether less
than or greater than this minimum quarterly
distribution.

Prior to making quarterly distributions, our general
partner will establish reserves for our operations. Our
general partner has broad discretion in establishing
reserves.

In general, cash distributions will be based on the
following priorities:

- First, 98% to the common units and 2% to the
general partner until each common unit has
received a minimum quarterly distribution of
$0.375, plus any arrearages in the payment of the
minimum quarterly distribution from prior
quarters.

- Second, 98% to the subordinated units and 2% to

the general partner until each subordinated unit has
received a minimum quarterly distribution of
$0.375.

If cash distributions per unit exceed target levels
greater than $0.3945 in a quarter, the general partner
will receive incentive distributions.

Cash distributions will generally be made within 45 days
after the end of each quarter. The first distribution to
the unitholders will be made within 45 days after the
gquarter ending June 30, 1999. The minimum quarterly
distribution for the period from the closing of the
offering through



Subordination period..............

Early conversion of subordinated
UNLIES. . v e

Issuance of additional units......

Nasdaq National Market listing....

June 30, 1999 will be adjusted downward based on the
actual length of that period.

Although we can provide no assurances, based on the
assumptions listed on page 43 of this prospectus, we
believe that we will generate sufficient cash to enable
us to make a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.375
per quarter on the common units and the subordinated
units for each quarter through June 30, 2002. However,
pro forma cash available for distribution generated
during 1998 would not have been sufficient to pay the
minimum quarterly distributions on the common units and
subordinated units and the related distribution on the
general partner interest during 1998. See "Cash
Available for Distribution" for an explanation of this
shortfall.

The subordination period will end once we meet the
financial tests in the partnership agreement, but it
generally cannot end before June 30, 2004.

When the subordination period ends, all remaining
subordinated units will convert into common units on a
one-for-one basis.

If the financial tests for conversion in our partnership
agreement are met for any quarter ending on or after
June 30, 2002, one-third of the subordinated units will
convert into common units. If these tests have been met
for any quarter ending on or after June 30, 2003, an
additional one-third of the subordinated units will
convert into common units.

In general, during the subordination period we can issue
up to 9,400,000 additional common units without
obtaining unitholder approval. We can also issue an
unlimited number of common units for acquisitions which
increase cash flow from operations per unit on a pro
forma basis.

We intend to have the common units quoted on the Nasdaq
National Market under the symbol " ",



SUMMARY PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA OF TC PIPELINES

The following unaudited Summary Pro Forma Financial Data as of and for the
year ended December 31, 1998 is derived from TC PipelLines' Pro Forma Financial
Statements appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

TC PipeLines' pro forma equity income represents 30% of the net income of
Northern Border Pipeline. Our general partner's allocation of pro forma net
income is based on a combined 2% interest in TC PipeLines, which has been
deducted before calculating the pro forma net income per unit. The computation
of pro forma net income per unit assumes that 15,640,000 common units and
3,960,000 subordinated units are outstanding at all times during the period
presented. The pro forma investment balance as of December 31, 1998 represents
the combined carrying values of the investment in Northern Border Pipeline as
reflected in the financial records of TransCanada Border PipelLine and TransCan
Northern, wholly owned subsidiaries of TransCanada, as of that date. The pro
forma investment balance also equates to 30% of the net assets of Northern
Border Pipeline as of December 31, 1998. Pro forma partners' capital is
allocated 2% to our general partner, 78.2% to common unitholders and 19.8% to
subordinated unitholders.

For a more complete description of the assumptions used in preparing the
Summary Pro Forma Financial Data of TC PipelLines, see Notes to the Pro Forma
Financial Statements of TC PipelLines, included elsewhere in this prospectus.

YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 1998
(UNAUDITED)
(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS,
EXCEPT PER UNIT AMOUNT)

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:

Equity income from investment in Northern Border Pipeline...................... 30,069
General and administrative exXpenses........... ...ttt (1,200)
Net income to partners. ... ... i i i e i e e e 28,869
Net ANCOME PeI UMt . .ttt ittt e e ittt $ 1.44

BALANCE SHEET DATA (AT PERIOD END):

Investment in Northern Border Pipeline......... ..t ennnns 253,031
I ] 2 T A= =T - 253,032

Partners' capital
General Partner. ... e e e 5,062
[0 1171 T Yo T T B I = 197,870
Subordinated UNits. ...t i it e e e 50,100
253,032



SUMMARY HISTORICAL FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA OF
NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

Some reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial data to
conform with the presentation used in the audited financial statements of
Northern Border Pipeline for the year ended December 31, 1998.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(thousands of dollars, except operating data)

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:

Operating revenues, nNet.......... .. nnnnn 196, 600 186, 050 201,943 206,497 211,580
Operations and maintenance............couiiiiinnnnenennn 29,447 28,522 26,974 25,573 27,682
Depreciation and amortization..............uiiiiiiinnnn 40,989 38,708 46,979 47,081 41,959
Taxes other than income.......... .. it rnnens 21,381 22,393 24,390 23,886 24,438
Regulatory credit...... ...ttt (8,878) -- -- -- --
Operating 1NCOME. ... ... vttt ittt e e e 113,661 96,427 103, 600 109, 957 117,501
Interest expense, nNet........o it (25,541) (29,360) (32,670) (35,106) (38,375)
Other income (EXPeNnSEe) ... ...ttt 12,111 5,705 2,913 (316) (1,968)
NEt ANCOME .+ vt vttt ettt e e e 100,231 72,772 73,843 74,535 77,158

CASH FLOW DATA:

Net cash provided by operating activities............... 103,777 115, 328 136, 808 127,429 121,679

Capital expenditures. . ...ttt i e 651,169 152,070 18,597 8,310 3,086

Distributions to partners..........viiiiiinnn s 61, 205 99, 322 102, 845 98,517 87,509
BALANCE SHEET DATA (AT PERIOD END):

Net property, plant and equipment....................... 1,714,523 1,100,890 937,859 957,587 983, 843

TOLAL @SSEES . vttt ettt et e 1,790,889 1,147,120 974,137 1,011,361 1,063,210

Long-term debt, including current maturities............ 862, 000 459, 000 377,500 410, 000 445,000

Partners' capital....... ..ottt 843,438 581,412 526,962 555, 964 579,946
OPERATING DATA (UNAUDITED):

Natural gas delivered (millions of cubic feet).......... 619, 669 633,280 633,908 615,133 597,898

Average throughput (millions of cubic feet per day)..... 1,737 1,770 1,764 1,720 1,663



SUMMARY OF RISK FACTORS

RISKS INHERENT IN TC PIPELINES' BUSINESS

- Cash distributions are not assured and may fluctuate with our performance

- If the FERC requires that Northern Border Pipeline's tariff be changed,
Northern Border Pipeline's ability to recover its cost of service from its
shippers could be limited

- If any shipper fails to perform its contractual obligations, Northern Border
Pipeline's cash flows and financial condition could be adversely impacted

- If Northern Border Pipeline does not maintain or increase its rate base by
successfully completing projects, the amount of revenue attributable to the
return on the rate base Northern Border Pipeline collects from its shippers
will decrease over time

- A decline in the availability of western Canadian natural gas may reduce the
need for shippers to contract for capacity on Northern Border Pipeline

- If demand for western Canadian natural gas decreases, shippers may not enter
into or renew contracts with Northern Border Pipeline

- Because of the highly competitive nature of the natural gas transmission
business, Northern Border Pipeline may not be able to maintain existing
customers when the current shipper contracts expire

- Northern Border Pipeline's indebtedness may limit its ability to borrow
additional funds, make distributions to us, or capitalize on business
opportunities

- Litigation or governmental regulation relating to environmental protection and
operational safety may result in substantial costs and liabilities

- If the FERC does not allow Northern Border Pipeline to include a portion of
the costs of the Chicago project in its rate base, Northern Border Pipeline
would not be able to recover those costs from its shippers

- If we are unable to make acquisitions on economically and operationally
acceptable terms, our future financial performance will be limited to our
participation in Northern Border Pipeline

- Northern Border Pipeline's operations are subject to operational hazards and
unforeseen interruptions

RISKS INHERENT IN AN INVESTMENT IN
TC PIPELINES

- Majority control of the Northern Border Pipeline management committee by
Northern Border Partners may limit our ability to influence Northern Border
Pipeline

- You will have limited voting rights and will not control our general partner

- Our assumptions concerning future operations may not be realized

- Purchasers of common units will experience immediate and substantial dilution
- We may issue additional common units, which would dilute existing unitholders'

interests

- Issuance of additional common units, including upon conversion of subordinated
units or exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option, will increase
the risk that we will be unable to pay the full minimum quarterly distribution



on all common units
- Cost reimbursements due to our general partner may be substantial and could
reduce our cash available for distributions

- A trading market may not develop for the units or you may not be able to
resell your units at the initial offering price

- Our general partner has a limited call right that may require you to sell your
units at an undesirable time or price

- You may not have limited liability in some circumstances

- Without the consent of each unitholder, Northern Border Pipeline might be
converted



into a corporation, which would result in Northern Border Pipeline being
subject to corporate income taxes

- If we were found to be an "investment company" under the Investment Company
Act of 1940, our contracts may be voidable and our offers of securities may be
subject to rescission

- If we were to lose TransCanada's management expertise, we would not have
sufficient stand-alone resources to operate

TAX RISKS

- The IRS could treat us as a corporation, which would substantially reduce the
cash available for distribution to unitholders

- We have not requested an IRS ruling with respect to tax consequences

- You may be required to pay taxes on income from us even if you receive no cash
distributions

- Tax gain or loss on disposition of common units could be different than
expected

- Investors other than individuals that are U.S. residents may have adverse tax
consequences from owning units

- Tax shelter registration could increase risk of IRS audit of TC PipelLines or a
unitholder

- We treat a purchaser of units as having the same tax benefits as the seller;
the IRS may challenge this treatment which could adversely affect the value of
the units

- You will likely be subject to state and local taxes simply as a result of an
investment in units
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THE TRANSACTIONS

We estimate that the net proceeds from the sale of common units offered
through this prospectus will be approximately $285 million (assuming an initial
public offering price of $19.50 per common unit and after deducting underwriting
discounts and commissions but before deducting expenses incurred in connection
with the offering). We will not retain any of the proceeds from this offering.

The substantive result of the transactions that will occur at the closing of
the offering are as follows:

- TransCanada Northern Ltd. and TransCanada Border PipeLine Ltd., wholly
owned subsidiaries of TransCanada, will contribute their combined 30%
general partner interest in Northern Border Pipeline to the TC PipelLines
intermediate partnership.

- TC PipelLines will use a portion of the net proceeds of the offering to pay
expenses incurred in connection with the offering.

- TC PipelLines will pay the remainder of the net proceeds to the
subsidiaries of TransCanada to redeem common units issued to the
subsidiaries of TransCanada.

- Our general partner will receive 3,960,000 subordinated units, the
incentive distribution rights and the combined 2% general partner
interests in TC PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership.

After giving effect to these transactions, the TransCanada subsidiaries will
not own any direct interests in TC PipelLines or the TC PipelLines intermediate
partnership, and our general partner will not own any common units but will own
3,960,000 subordinated units, the incentive distribution rights and the general
partner interests.

We will use the net proceeds from any exercise of the underwriters'
over-allotment option to redeem subordinated units from our general partner on a
one-for-one basis equal to the number of common units issued upon the exercise
of such option.

Concurrently with the closing of the offering, TC PipelLines, as borrower,
will enter into a $40 million unsecured two year revolving credit facility with
TransCanada PipelLine USA Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of TransCanada, as
lender. We may borrow under this revolving credit facility to fund capital
expenditures, fund capital contributions to Northern Border Pipeline and for
working capital and other general business purposes, including enabling TC
PipeLines to make distributions on the units if there is a temporary
interruption or delay in the receipt of cash distributions from Northern Border
Pipeline.

SUMMARY OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

TC PipeLines GP, our general partner, has a fiduciary duty to manage us in a
manner beneficial to us and our unitholders. Because TC PipelLines GP is a
corporate subsidiary of TransCanada, its officers and directors have fiduciary
duties to manage its business in a manner beneficial to TransCanada. As a result
of this relationship, conflicts of interest may arise in the future between us
and our unitholders, on the one hand, and TransCanada, on the other hand.

The following situations, among others, could give rise to conflicts of
interest:
-- our general partner determines the amount and timing of asset purchases
and sales, capital expenditures, borrowings and reserves, which can

impact the amount of distributions to unitholders;

-- our general partner may take actions on our behalf that have the effect
of enabling our general partner or its
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affiliates to receive repayment of amounts outstanding under the
revolving credit facility, distributions on their own units or incentive
distribution rights or hastening the expiration of the subordination
period or the conversion of their subordinated units into common units;

-- some of the officers of our general partner who will provide services to
us will also devote significant time to the businesses of our general
partner's affiliates and competition for their services may arise; and

-- our general partner would negotiate the terms of any asset acquisition
from TransCanada, subject to approval by our conflicts committee
consisting of the independent directors of the general partner.

Our general partner is permitted to resolve conflicts of interest by
considering the interests of all the parties involved. Therefore, our general
partner can consider the interests of TransCanada if a conflict of interest
arises.

Our general partner will have a conflicts committee, consisting of two
independent members of its board of directors, that will be available to review
matters involving conflicts of interest.

Our partnership agreement limits the liability and reduces the fiduciary
duties of our general partner to the unitholders. Our partnership agreement also
restricts the remedies available to unitholders for actions that might otherwise
constitute breaches of its fiduciary duty. By purchasing a common unit, you are
treated as having consented to the above and to various actions contemplated in
the partnership agreement and conflicts of interest that might otherwise be
considered a breach of fiduciary or other duties under applicable state law.

Affiliates of the general partner currently engage in, and in the future are
expected to continue to engage in, other businesses or activities, including
those that might be in direct competition with TC PipeLines.
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DISTRIBUTIONS AND PAYMENTS TO THE GENERAL PARTNER AND ITS AFFILIATES

The following table summarizes the distributions and payments to be made by
us to our general partner and its affiliates in connection with the formation
and the ongoing operation of TC PipelLines. These distributions and payments were
determined by and among affiliated entities and, consequently, are not the

result of arm's length negotiations.

The consideration paid to our
general partner, TransCanada and
their affiliates for the transfer of
the 30% interest in Northern Border
Pipeline to TC PipeLines............

Cash distributions of available cash
from operating surplus to our
general partner..........ovviiiinnn.

FORMATION STAGE

- 3,960,000 subordinated units,

- an aggregate 2% general partner interest in TC
PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate
partnership on a combined basis,

- the incentive distribution rights, and

- all of the net proceeds of the offering, expected

to be approximately $282 million, after payment of
the estimated expenses of the offering. These net
proceeds will be used to redeem common units issued
to subsidiaries of TransCanada at the closing. Net
proceeds from any exercise of the underwriters'
over-allotment option will be used to redeem
subordinated units from our general partner on a
one-for-one basis equal to the number of common
units issued upon exercise of that option.
Accordingly, we will not retain any of the net
proceeds of the offering.

OPERATIONAL STAGE

Cash distributions will generally be made 98% to the
unitholders, including to our general partner as
holder of the subordinated units, and 2% to the
general partner. If distributions exceed the target
levels, our general partner will receive a percentage
of the excess distributions that will increase its
distributions to up to 50% of the excess
distributions above the target levels.

On a pro forma basis for 1998, our general partner
would have received distributions of approximately
$0.3 million on the general partner interest and
would have received no distribution on the
subordinated units.
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Payments to our general partner and
its affiliates...........viinnnnnnn

Withdrawal or removal of our general

partner....

Liquidation

Our general partner will not receive any management
fee or other compensation for its management of TC
PipeLines. Our general partner will be reimbursed for
all direct and indirect expenses incurred on behalf
of TC PipeLines. On a pro forma basis for 1998, we
estimate that expense reimbursement to the general
partner and its affiliates would have been
approximately $1.2 million.

If our general partner withdraws in violation of the
partnership agreement or is removed for cause, then a
successor general partner has the option to buy the
general partner interests and incentive distribution
rights for a cash price equal to fair market value.
If our general partner withdraws or is removed under
any other circumstances, then the departing general
partner has the option to require the successor
general partner to buy the departing general partner
interests and its incentive distribution rights for a
cash price equal to fair market value.

If either option is not exercised, the departing
general partner's interests and incentive
distribution rights will automatically convert into
common units equal to the fair market value of those
interests. In addition, TC PipelLines will be required
to pay the departing general partner for expense
reimbursements.

LIQUIDATION STAGE
Upon the liquidation of TC PipelLines, the partners,
including our general partner, will be entitled to

receive liquidating distributions according to their
particular capital account balances.
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SUMMARY OF TAX CONSIDERATIONS

WE WILL BE CLASSIFIED AS A PARTNERSHIP FOR TAX PURPOSES

In the opinion of counsel, we will be classified for federal income tax
purposes as a partnership, and the beneficial owners of common units will
generally be considered our partners. Accordingly, we will pay no federal income
taxes, and you will be required to report on your federal income tax return your
share of our income, gains, losses and deductions. In general, cash
distributions to you will be taxable only if, and to the extent that, they
exceed the tax basis in your common units.

ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS ARE BASED ON YOUR PERCENTAGE INTEREST IN US

In general, our income and loss will be allocated to the general partner and
the unitholders for each taxable year according to their particular percentage
interests in us. You will be required to take into account, in determining your
federal income tax liability, your share of income generated by us for each of
our taxable years ending within or with your taxable year even if cash
distributions are not made to you. As a consequence, your share of our taxable
income, and possibly the income tax payable by you with respect to that income,
may exceed the cash actually distributed to you.

RATIO OF TAXABLE INCOME TO DISTRIBUTIONS ALLOCATED TO PURCHASERS OF COMMON UNITS
IS LESS THAN TEN PERCENT

We estimate that if you purchase common units in the offering and hold them
through December 31, 2002 you will be allocated an amount of federal taxable
income for that period that will be less than 10% of the cash distributed with
respect to that period. We anticipate that after the taxable year ending
December 31, 2002, the ratio of taxable income to cash distributions to holders
of common units will increase. No assurance can be given that this estimate will
be correct.

LOSSES ARE ONLY AVAILABLE TO OFFSET OUR FUTURE INCOME

In the case of taxpayers subject to the passive loss rules our losses will
only be available to offset our future income and cannot be used to offset
income from other activities, including passive activities or investments,
salary, or active business income. Any losses unused by virtue of these rules
may be fully deducted when you dispose of all of your common units in a taxable
transaction with an unrelated party.

WE INTEND TO MAKE THE SECTION 754 ELECTION

We intend to make the election provided for by Section 754 of the Internal
Revenue Code, which will generally give you income and deductions calculated by
reference to the portion of your purchase price attributable to each of our
assets.

DISPOSITION OF COMMON UNITS WILL RESULT IN RECOGNITION OF A GAIN OR LOSS

If you sell common units you will recognize gain or loss equal to the
difference between the amount realized and your adjusted tax basis in those
common units. Thus, distributions of cash from us to you in excess of the income
allocated to you will, in effect, become taxable income if you sell the common
units at a price greater than your adjusted tax basis even if the price is less
than your original cost. A substantial portion of the amount realized, whether
or not representing gain, may be ordinary income.

OWNERSHIP OF COMMON UNITS BY TAX-EXEMPT ORGANIZATIONS AND OTHER INVESTORS RAISES
TAX ISSUES

An investment in common units by tax-exempt organizations, including IRAs
and other retirement plans, regulated investment companies and foreign persons
raises issues unique to them. Virtually all of our income allocated to a
unitholder that is a tax-exempt organization will be unrelated business taxable
income and thus will be taxable to it.
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Furthermore, no significant amount of our gross income will be qualifying income
for purposes of determining whether a unitholder will qualify as a regulated
investment company. A unitholder who is a nonresident alien, foreign corporation
or other foreign person will be subject to withholding on his or her
distributions and will be required to file federal income tax returns and to pay
tax on his or her share of our taxable income.

WE WILL REGISTER AS A TAX SHELTER

The general partner has applied to register us as a tax shelter with the
Secretary of the Treasury.

ISSUANCE OF THE REGISTRATION NUMBER DOES NOT INDICATE THAT AN INVESTMENT IN
THE PARTNERSHIP OR THE CLAIMED TAX BENEFITS HAVE BEEN REVIEWED, EXAMINED OR
APPROVED BY THE IRS.

OTHER TAX CONSIDERATIONS

In addition to federal income taxes, you will likely be subject to other
taxes, including state and local income taxes, unincorporated business taxes,
and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that may be imposed by the various
jurisdictions in which you reside or in which we do business or own property.
You will likely be required to file state income tax returns and to pay taxes in
these various states and may be subject to penalties for failure to comply with
these requirements.

The tax consequences of an investment in TC PipelLines, including federal
income tax consequences, will depend in part on your own tax circumstances. You
should consult your own tax advisor to determine whether special personal tax
circumstances apply to you, as well as about the state, local and foreign tax
consequences of an investment in common units.
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RISK FACTORS

LIMITED PARTNER INTERESTS ARE INHERENTLY DIFFERENT FROM CAPITAL STOCK OF A
CORPORATION, ALTHOUGH MANY OF THE BUSINESS RISKS TO WHICH WE WILL BE SUBJECT ARE
SIMILAR TO THOSE THAT WOULD BE FACED BY A CORPORATION ENGAGED IN A SIMILAR
BUSINESS. YOU SHOULD CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING RISK FACTORS TOGETHER WITH ALL OF
THE OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THIS PROSPECTUS IN EVALUATING AN INVESTMENT IN
THE COMMON UNITS. ADDITIONAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES NOT PRESENTLY KNOWN TO US
OR THAT WE CURRENTLY BELIEVE TO BE IMMATERIAL MIGHT ADVERSELY AFFECT US.

IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING RISKS ACTUALLY OCCUR, OUR BUSINESS, FINANCIAL
CONDITION OR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS COULD BE MATERIALLY ADVERSELY AFFECTED. IN
THAT CASE THE TRADING PRICES OF OUR COMMON UNITS COULD DECLINE AND YOU MAY LOSE
ALL OR PART OF YOUR INVESTMENT.

RISKS INHERENT IN TC PIPELINES' BUSINESS

CASH DISTRIBUTIONS ARE NOT ASSURED AND MAY FLUCTUATE WITH OUR PERFORMANCE

Although we will distribute all of our cash, less reserves, we can give no
assurance regarding the amounts of cash that we will generate. At the start, we
will derive all of our cash flow from our 30% general partner interest in
Northern Border Pipeline. The actual amounts of cash will depend upon numerous
factors relating to both our and Northern Border Pipeline's businesses which may
be beyond our control, including, generally:

- profitability of operations;

- required principal and interest payments on any debt;

- the cost of acquisitions, including related debt service payments;

- our issuance of debt and equity securities;

- fluctuations in working capital;

- capital expenditures;

- adjustments in reserves;

- prevailing economic conditions;

- fuel conservation measures;

- alternate fuel requirements;

- government regulations; and

- technical advances in fuel economy and energy generation devices.

The following factors will also influence cash distributions:

- the tariff and transportation charges to be collected by Northern Border
Pipeline for transportation services on the Northern Border pipeline
system;

- the amount of cash distributed to us by Northern Border Pipeline;

- the amount of cash set aside by us; and

- the amount of any cash required to be contributed by us to Northern Border

Pipeline.

Under some circumstances, the application of Northern Border Pipeline's cash
distribution policy could result in a reduced distribution to its partners,
including us, in any particular quarter. For example, in the fourth quarter of
1997 Northern Border Pipeline made no cash distributions to its partners because
of a rate refund to shippers. This rate refund resulted primarily from a
retroactive adjustment to Northern Border Pipeline's depreciation schedule that
was agreed to in settlement of its rate case. See "Business of Northern Border
Pipeline--FERC Regulation--Cost of Service Tariff" and "Northern Border Pipeline
Partnership Agreement--Cash Distribution Policy".

Cash distributions are dependent primarily on our cash flow, including from
our reserves. Cash distributions are not dependent directly on our
profitability, which is affected by non-cash items. Therefore, cash
distributions may be made during periods when we record losses and may not be
made during periods when we record profits. Our partnership
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agreement gives our general partner discretion in establishing reserves for the
proper conduct of our business that will affect the amount of available cash.

The amount of cash that we will need to pay the minimum quarterly
distribution for four quarters on the common units, the subordinated units and
the general partner interest to be outstanding immediately after the
transactions is approximately:

$23.5

common units.................. million
Subordinated units............ 5.9 million
General partner interest...... 0.6 million
$30.0

Total......coiiiiiiiii million

If the transactions contemplated in this prospectus had been completed on
January 1, 1998, the pro forma amount of cash available for distribution during
1998 would have been approximately $17.2 million. This amount would not have
been sufficient to allow us to distribute the minimum quarterly distribution on
the common units and the subordinated units and the related distribution on the
general partner interest for 1998 by approximately $12.8 million.

In December 1998, the Northern Border Pipeline management committee changed
its policy regarding the timing of cash distributions to its partners, as
described under "Cash Available for Distribution".

The change in the timing of distributions to the partners of Northern Border
Pipeline resulted in a one-time shift in the payment of distributable cash from
the fourth quarter of 1998 to the first quarter of 1999. If this change in the
timing of distributions had not occurred, then TC PipeLines' pro forma Available
Cash from Operating Surplus for 1998 would have been approximately $26.3 million
rather than approximately $17.2 million.

As a result of the change in timing, TC PipelLines' pro forma Available Cash
from Operating Surplus for the first quarter of 1999 included cash generated
during four months, rather than three months. Therefore, TC PipelLines' pro forma
Available Cash from Operating Surplus for the first quarter of 1999 was
approximately $11.1 million.

IF THE FERC REQUIRES THAT NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE'S TARIFF BE CHANGED, NORTHERN
BORDER PIPELINE'S ABILITY TO RECOVER ITS COST OF SERVICE FROM ITS SHIPPERS COULD
BE LIMITED

Northern Border Pipeline is subject to extensive regulation by the FERC.
FERC's regulatory authority extends to matters including:

- Northern Border Pipeline's tariff structure;

- Northern Border Pipeline's allowed rate of return on equity;

- the services that Northern Border Pipeline is permitted to perform or
abandon;

- the ability of Northern Border Pipeline to seek recovery of various
categories of costs; and

- the acquisition, construction and disposition of pipeline facilities by
Northern Border Pipeline.

We cannot give any assurance that the FERC will continue to permit Northern
Border Pipeline to use the present form of tariff. Northern Border Pipeline is
required by the terms of its tariff to file a rate proceeding with the FERC by
May 31, 1999 for a redetermination of its allowed equity rate of return. Under
FERC regulations, customers are allowed to contest Northern Border Pipeline's
rates or rate structure and terms and conditions of service. Cash available for
distribution to you could be reduced by:

- a reduction in the current FERC-allowed rate of return on equity,



- exclusion of an allowance for corporate income taxes due to the transfer
of the Northern Border Pipeline interest to TC PipeLines,

- the exclusion of any other cost of service amounts, or
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- any other adverse change to Northern Border Pipeline's rates, rate
structure and terms and conditions of service.

Given the extent of regulation by the FERC and potential changes to
regulations, we cannot give any assurance regarding:

- the likely federal regulations under which Northern Border Pipeline will
operate in the future;

- the effect that regulation will have on Northern Border Pipeline's or our
financial positions, results of operations and cash flows; or

- whether our cash flow will be adequate to make distributions to you.

IF ANY SHIPPER FAILS TO PERFORM ITS CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, NORTHERN BORDER
PIPELINE'S CASH FLOWS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION COULD BE ADVERSELY IMPACTED

Northern Border Pipeline has a limited number of major shippers. If any
shipper fails to perform its contractual obligations, Northern Border Pipeline's
cash flows and financial condition could be adversely impacted. As a result, the
cash available for distribution by us to you could be reduced.

Two shippers each contributed more than 5% of revenue to Northern Border
Pipeline in 1998: Pan-Alberta Gas U.S. Inc. (44.4%) and TransCanada PipeLines
Limited, an affiliate of our general partner (7.2%). The 20 largest shippers in
1998, in total, were responsible for 95.9% of Northern Border Pipeline's
revenue.

IF NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE DOES NOT MAINTAIN OR INCREASE ITS RATE BASE BY
SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETING PROJECTS, THE AMOUNT OF REVENUE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
RETURN ON THE RATE BASE NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COLLECTS FROM ITS SHIPPERS WILL
DECREASE OVER TIME

Northern Border Pipeline reflects the Northern Border pipeline system in its
financial records in various accounts collectively referred to as "rate base".
Northern Border Pipeline is generally allowed to collect from its customers a
return on the rate base as reflected in Northern Border Pipeline's financial
records as well as recover that rate base through depreciation. The amount
Northern Border Pipeline may collect from customers decreases as the rate base
declines as a result of, among other things, monthly depreciation and
amortization. In order to avoid a reduction in the level of cash available for
distributions to its partners, based on its current FERC-approved tariff,
Northern Border Pipeline must maintain or increase its rate base through
projects that maintain or add to existing pipeline facilities. These projects
will depend upon many factors including:

- sufficient demand for natural gas;

- an adequate supply of proved natural gas reserves;

- available capacity on pipelines that connect with Northern Border
Pipeline;

- the execution of natural gas transportation contracts;

- the approval of any expansion or extension of the Northern Border pipeline
system by the Northern Border Pipeline management committee, or in some
cases, a ruling from an arbitrator, see "Northern Border Pipeline
Partnership Agreement";

- obtaining financing for these projects; and

- receipt and acceptance of necessary regulatory approvals.

Northern Border Pipeline's ability to complete these projects is also

subject to numerous business, economic, regulatory, competitive and political

uncertainties beyond its control, and there is no assurance that these projects
will be completed.

A DECLINE IN THE AVAILABILITY OF WESTERN CANADIAN NATURAL GAS MAY REDUCE THE
NEED FOR SHIPPERS TO CONTRACT FOR CAPACITY ON NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

The long-term financial conditions of Northern Border Pipeline and TC
PipeLines are dependent on the continued availability of western Canadian



natural gas for import into
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the United States. We believe that substantial additional natural gas reserves
remain to be discovered, developed and produced in western Canada. These natural
gas reserve prospects may require significant capital expenditures by others for
exploration and development drilling and the installation of production,
gathering, storage, transportation and other facilities that permit natural gas
to be produced and delivered to pipelines that interconnect with the Northern
Border pipeline system. Low prices for natural gas, regulatory limitations, or
the lack of available capital for these projects could adversely affect the
development of additional reserves and production, gathering, storage and
pipeline transmission and import and export of natural gas supplies. As of
December 31, 1998, all of the capacity of Northern Border Pipeline was
contractually committed through October 2001. If the availability of western
Canadian natural gas were to decline over this period, existing shippers may be
unlikely to extend their contracts or Northern Border Pipeline may be unable to
find replacement shippers for that capacity. We cannot give any assurances as to
the timing of discovery or development of additional natural gas reserves or
their availability to interconnect with the Northern Border pipeline system.

IF DEMAND FOR WESTERN CANADIAN NATURAL GAS DECREASES, SHIPPERS MAY NOT ENTER
INTO OR RENEW CONTRACTS WITH NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

Northern Border Pipeline's business depends in part on the level of demand
for western Canadian natural gas in the markets the Northern Border pipeline
system serves. The volumes of natural gas delivered to these markets from other
sources affect the demand for both western Canadian natural gas and use of the
Northern Border pipeline system. Demand for western Canadian natural gas also
influences the ability and willingness of shippers to use the Northern Border
pipeline system to meet demand.

A variety of factors could cause the demand for natural gas to fall in the
markets that the Northern Border pipeline system serves. These factors include:

- economic conditions;

- fuel conservation measures;

- alternative fuel requirements;

- government regulation; and

- technological advances in fuel economy and energy generation devices.

We cannot predict whether or how these or other factors will affect demand
for use of the Northern Border pipeline system. If the Northern Border pipeline

system is used less over the long term, we may have lower revenues and less cash
to distribute to you.

BECAUSE OF THE HIGHLY COMPETITIVE NATURE OF THE NATURAL GAS TRANSMISSION
BUSINESS, NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MAINTAIN EXISTING
CUSTOMERS OR ACQUIRE NEW CUSTOMERS WHEN THE CURRENT SHIPPER CONTRACTS EXPIRE

As of December 31, 1998, all of the capacity of the Northern Border pipeline
system was contractually committed through October 2001 and the weighted average
contract life, based upon annual cost of service obligations, was slightly under
eight years, with at least 97% of capacity contracted through mid-September
2003. We cannot give any assurances that Northern Border Pipeline will be able
to renew or replace these contracts. The renewal or replacement of the existing
long-term contracts with customers of Northern Border Pipeline depends on a
number of factors beyond our control, including:

- the supply of natural gas in Canada and the United States;

- competition from alternative sources of supply in the United States;

- competition from other pipelines; and

- the price of, and demand for, natural gas in markets served by the

Northern Border pipeline system.

Other pipeline systems that transport natural gas serve the same markets
served by the
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Northern Border pipeline system. As a result, Northern Border Pipeline faces
competition from other pipeline systems.

The Alliance Pipeline has received regulatory approval. If constructed, the
Alliance Pipeline will compete directly with Northern Border Pipeline in the
transportation of natural gas from the western Canadian sedimentary basin to
markets in the midwest United States.

TransCanada owns and operates a pipeline system which transports natural gas
from the same natural gas reserves in western Canada that are used by Northern
Border Pipeline's customers.

Natural gas is also produced in the United States and transported by
competing unaffiliated pipeline systems to the same destinations as natural gas
transported by the Northern Border pipeline system.

NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE'S INDEBTEDNESS MAY LIMIT ITS ABILITY TO BORROW
ADDITIONAL FUNDS, MAKE DISTRIBUTIONS TO US OR CAPITALIZE ON BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITIES

Northern Border Pipeline is prohibited from making cash distributions during
an event of default under its indebtedness. Provisions in Northern Border
Pipeline's indebtedness limit its ability to incur indebtedness and engage in
specific transactions which could reduce its ability to capitalize on business
opportunities that arise in the course of its business. Any future refinancing
of its existing indebtedness or any new indebtedness could have similar or
greater restrictions. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations--Description of Indebtedness of Northern
Border Pipeline".

LITIGATION OR GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION RELATING TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
OPERATIONAL SAFETY MAY RESULT IN SUBSTANTIAL COSTS AND LIABILITIES

Northern Border Pipeline's operations are subject to federal and state laws
and regulations relating to environmental protection and operational safety. We
believe that Northern Border Pipeline's operations comply in all material
respects with applicable environmental and safety regulations. However, risks of
substantial costs and liabilities are inherent in pipeline operations and we
cannot give any assurance that these costs and liabilities will not be incurred.
Possible future developments, including stricter environmental and safety laws,
regulations and enforcement policies and claims for personal or property damages
resulting from Northern Border Pipeline's operations, could result in
substantial costs and liabilities to Northern Border Pipeline. If Northern
Border Pipeline is not able to recover these costs, your cash distributions
could be adversely affected.

IF THE FERC DOES NOT ALLOW NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE TO INCLUDE A PORTION OF THE
COSTS OF

THE CHICAGO PROJECT IN ITS RATE BASE, NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE WOULD NOT BE ABLE
TO RECOVER THOSE COSTS FROM ITS SHIPPERS

The FERC may not permit Northern Border Pipeline to include a portion of the
costs associated with construction of the Chicago project in its rate base. If
that were to happen, Northern Border Pipeline would not be able to recover those
costs from its shippers and cash available for distribution to you would be
adversely affected.

As part of the settlement of Northern Border Pipeline's 1995 rate case with
the FERC, a project cost containment mechanism was implemented to limit Northern
Border Pipeline's ability to include cost overruns on the Chicago project and to
provide incentives to Northern Border Pipeline for cost underruns. The project
cost containment mechanism amount is determined by comparing the final cost of
the Chicago project to the budgeted cost.

If there is a cost overrun of $6 million or less, the shippers will bear the
actual cost of the project through its inclusion in Northern Border Pipeline's
rate base. If there is a cost savings of $6 million or less, the full budgeted
cost will be included in the rate base. If there is a cost overrun or cost
savings of more than $6 million but less than 5% of the budgeted cost, that
amount will be allocated 50% to
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Northern Border Pipeline and 50% to its shippers (50% of the difference between
5% of the budgeted cost and $6 million will be included in Northern Border
Pipeline's rate base, and 50% will be excluded). All cost overruns exceeding 5%
of the budgeted cost are excluded from the rate base.

The settlement agreement required the budgeted cost for the Chicago project,
which had been initially filed with the FERC for approximately $839 million, to
be adjusted for the effects of inflation and for costs attributable to changes
in project scope, as defined by the agreement. The budgeted cost of the Chicago
project, as adjusted for the effects of inflation and project scope changes, has
been estimated as of the December 22, 1998 in-service date to be $889 million
with the final construction cost estimated to be $892 million. Northern Border
Pipeline's notification to the FERC and its shippers in late December 1998
reflects the conclusion that, based on the information as of that date, once the
budgeted cost has been established there would be no adjustment to the rate base
related to the project cost containment mechanism.

Northern Border Pipeline is obligated by the settlement agreement to update
its calculation of the project cost containment mechanism six months after the
project's in-service date. The settlement agreement requires the calculation of
the project cost containment mechanism to be reviewed by an independent national
accounting firm. Several parties to the stipulation advised the FERC that they
may have questions and desire further information about the report, and may
possibly wish to test it or the final report and its conclusions at an
appropriate proceeding in the future. The parties also stated that if it is
determined that Northern Border Pipeline is not permitted to include some costs
for the Chicago project in its rate base, they reserve their rights to seek
refunds, with interest, of any overcollections.

We believe the initial computation has been completed under the terms of the
settlement agreement. We are unable to make a definitive determination at this
time whether any adjustments will be required. Later developments may prevent
cost recovery under the project cost containment mechanism, which may result in
a non-cash charge to write down the balance sheet transmission plant line item
and that charge could be material to the operating results of TC PipeLines. See
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations--Settlement of 1995 FERC Rate Case and Project Cost Containment
Mechanism".

IF WE ARE UNABLE TO MAKE ACQUISITIONS ON ECONOMICALLY AND OPERATIONALLY
ACCEPTABLE TERMS, OUR FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WILL BE LIMITED TO OUR
PARTICIPATION IN NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

There can be no assurance that:

- we will identify attractive acquisition candidates in the future,

- we will be able to acquire assets on economically acceptable terms,

- any acquisitions will not be dilutive to earnings and operating surplus,
or

- any additional debt incurred to finance an acquisition will not affect our
ability to make distributions to you.

If we are unable to make acquisitions on economically and operationally
acceptable terms, our future financial performance will be limited to our
participation in Northern Border Pipeline.

Our acquisition strategy involves many risks, including:

- difficulties inherent in the integration of operations and systems,

- the diversion of management's attention from other business concerns, and

- the potential loss of key employees of acquired businesses.

In addition, future acquisitions also may involve the expenditure of



significant funds. Depending upon the nature, size and timing of future
acquisitions, TC PipeLines may be required to secure additional financing. No
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assurance can be given that additional financing will be available to us on
acceptable terms.

NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE'S OPERATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO OPERATIONAL HAZARDS AND
UNFORESEEN INTERRUPTIONS

Northern Border Pipeline's operations are subject to operational hazards and
unforeseen interruptions, including natural disasters, adverse weather,
accidents or other events beyond its control. A casualty occurrence might result
in a loss of equipment or life, as well as injury and extensive property or
environmental damage.

RISKS INHERENT IN AN INVESTMENT IN
TC PIPELINES

MAJORITY CONTROL OF THE NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE BY
NORTHERN BORDER PARTNERS MAY LIMIT OUR ABILITY TO INFLUENCE NORTHERN BORDER
PIPELINE

TC PipeLines owns a 30% general partner interest in Northern Border
Pipeline. The remaining 70% general partner interest in Northern Border Pipeline
is currently owned by Northern Border Partners, L.P., a publicly traded limited
partnership, which is not affiliated with us. The general partners of Northern
Border Partners are Northern Plains and Pan Border Gas Company, both
subsidiaries of Enron Corporation, and Northwest Border Pipeline Company, a
subsidiary of The williams Companies.

Management of Northern Border Pipeline is overseen by the four-member
management committee. TC PipelLines controls 30% of the voting power of the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee and has the right to designate one
member. Northern Border Partners controls 70% of the voting power of the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee and has the right to designate
three members. Northern Border Partners has allocated its voting power on the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee among its own general partners in
proportion to their general partner interests in Northern Border Partners. As a
result, the 70% voting power of Northern Border Partners' representatives on the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee is allocated as follows: 35% to
Northern Plains, 22.75% to Pan Border and 12.25% to Northwest Border. Northern
Plains, Pan Border and Northwest Border each have the right to choose one member
of the Northern Border Pipeline management committee. Enron, through Northern
Plains and Pan Border controls 57.75% of the voting power of the Northern Border
Pipeline management committee and has the right to choose two of its members.
Therefore, except as to any matters requiring unanimity, Enron has the power to
approve a particular matter requiring a majority vote despite the fact that our
representative may vote against the project or other matter. Conversely, with
respect to any matter requiring a majority vote Enron may disapprove a
particular matter despite the fact that our representative may vote in favor of
that matter. See "Northern Border Pipeline Partnership Agreement--Management and
Voting".

YOU WILL HAVE LIMITED VOTING RIGHTS AND WILL NOT CONTROL OUR GENERAL PARTNER

The general partner will manage and operate TC PipeLines. Unlike the holders
of common stock in a corporation, you will have only limited voting rights on
matters affecting our business. You will have no right to elect our general
partner on an annual or other continuing basis, and our general partner may not
be removed except by the vote of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the
outstanding units and upon the election of a successor general partner by the
vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding units. The required 66 2/3%
would include units owned by our general partner and its affiliates. The
ownership of an aggregate of 20.2% (8.2% upon exercise of the underwriters'
over-allotment option in full) of the outstanding units by our general partner
and its affiliates has the practical effect of making removal of our general
partner difficult.

In addition, the partnership agreement contains some provisions that may
have the effect of discouraging a person or group from attempting to remove our
general partner or
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otherwise change the management of TC PipeLines. If our general partner is
removed as general partner of TC PipelLines under circumstances where cause does
not exist and units held by our general partner and its affiliates are not voted
in favor of that removal:

(1) the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units
will immediately convert into common units on a one-for-one basis,

(2) any existing arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly
distributions on the common units will be extinguished, and

(3) our general partner will have the right to convert its general partner
interests and its incentive distribution rights into common units or to
receive cash in exchange for those interests.

These provisions may diminish the price at which the common units will trade
under some circumstances.

The partnership agreement also contains provisions limiting the ability of
unitholders to call meetings of unitholders or to acquire information about our
operations, as well as other provisions limiting the unitholders' ability to
influence the manner or direction of management. All matters, other than removal
of the general partner, requiring the approval of the unitholders during the
subordination period must first be proposed by our general partner. Further, if
any person or group other than our general partner or its affiliates or a direct
transferee of our general partner or its affiliates acquires beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of any class of units then outstanding, that person or
group will lose voting rights with respect to all of its units. As a result, you
will have limited influence on matters affecting our operations, and third
parties may find it difficult to attempt to gain control of us, or influence our
activities. See "The Partnership Agreement--Withdrawal or Removal of the General
Partner" and "--Change of Management Provisions".

OUR ASSUMPTIONS CONCERNING FUTURE OPERATIONS MAY NOT BE REALIZED

In establishing the terms of the offering, including the number and initial
offering price of the common units, the number of subordinated units to be
received by the general partner and the minimum quarterly distribution, we have
relied on specific assumptions concerning our future operations. See '"Cash
Available for Distribution".

Although we believe our assumptions are reasonable, whether the assumptions
are realized is not, in many cases, within our control and cannot be predicted
with any degree of certainty. In the event that our assumptions are not
realized, the actual amount of cash available for distributions could be
substantially less than that currently expected and may be less in any quarter
than that required to make the minimum quarterly distribution. See '"Cash
Available for Distribution".

PURCHASERS OF COMMON UNITS WILL EXPERIENCE IMMEDIATE AND SUBSTANTIAL DILUTION

The assumed initial public offering price of $19.50 per unit exceeds pro
forma tangible net book value of $12.65 per unit. You will incur immediate and
substantial dilution of $6.85 per common unit. See "Dilution".

WE MAY ISSUE ADDITIONAL COMMON UNITS WITHOUT YOUR APPROVAL, WHICH WOULD DILUTE
EXISTING UNITHOLDERS' INTERESTS

Our general partner can cause us to issue additional common units, without
the approval of unitholders, in the following circumstances:

- upon exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option;

- upon conversion of the subordinated units;

- under employee benefit plans;

- upon conversion of the general partner interests and incentive
distribution rights into common units as a result of the withdrawal of our
general partner; or



- in connection with TC PipeLines making acquisitions or capital
improvements
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that are accretive to our cash flow on a per-unit basis.

In addition, during the subordination period, our general partner has the
authority, without the approval of the unitholders, to cause TC Pipelines to
issue up to an additional 9,400,000 common units or an equivalent number of
securities ranking on a parity with the common units. After the end of the
subordination period, we may issue an unlimited number of limited partner
interests of any type without the approval of the unitholders. Based on the
circumstances of each case, the issuance of additional common units or
securities ranking senior to or on a parity with the common units may dilute the
value of the interests of the then-existing holders of common units in the net
assets of TC PipeLines, dilute the interests of unitholders in distributions by
TC PipeLines and, if issued during the subordination period, reduce the support
provided by the subordination feature of the subordinated units. Our partnership
agreement does not give the unitholders the right to approve the issuance by us
of equity securities ranking junior to the common units at any time.

ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL COMMON UNITS, INCLUDING UPON CONVERSION OF SUBORDINATED
UNITS OR EXERCISE OF THE UNDERWRITERS' OVER-ALLOTMENT OPTION, WILL INCREASE THE
RISK THAT WE WILL BE UNABLE TO PAY THE FULL MINIMUM QUARTERLY DISTRIBUTION ON
ALL COMMON UNITS

Our ability to pay the full minimum quarterly distribution on all the common
units may be reduced by any increase in the number of outstanding common units.
Additional common units would be issued as a result of:

- the conversion of subordinated units,

- the exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option, in which case
2,346,000 additional common units will be issued and 2,346,000
subordinated units will be redeemed,

- upon the conversion of the general partner interests and the incentive
distribution rights as a result of the withdrawal of the general partner,
or

- future issuances of common units.

Any of these actions will increase the percentage of the aggregate minimum
quarterly distribution payable to the common unitholders and decrease the
percentage of the aggregate minimum quarterly distribution payable to the
subordinated unitholders, which will in turn have the effect of:

- reducing the amount of support provided by the subordination feature of
the subordinated units; and

- increasing the risk that TC PipeLines will be unable to pay the minimum
quarterly distribution in full on all the common units.

COST REIMBURSEMENTS DUE TO OUR GENERAL PARTNER MAY BE SUBSTANTIAL AND COULD
REDUCE OUR CASH AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

Prior to making any distribution on the common units, we will reimburse our
general partner and its affiliates, including officers and directors of the
general partner, for all expenses incurred by our general partner and its
affiliates on our behalf. The amount of these expenses will be determined by our
general partner in its sole discretion. In addition, our general partner and its
affiliates may provide us services for which we will be charged reasonable fees
as determined by the general partner. The reimbursement of expenses and the
payment of fees could adversely affect our ability to make distributions.

A TRADING MARKET MAY NOT DEVELOP FOR THE UNITS OR YOU MAY NOT BE ABLE TO RESELL
YOUR UNITS AT THE INITIAL OFFERING PRICE

Prior to the offering, there has been no public market for the common units.
We are applying to have the common shares quoted on the Nasdag National Market.
We do not know the extent to which investor interest will lead to the
development of a trading market or how liquid that market might be. The initial
public offering price for the common units will be determined through
negotiations between our general partner and the representatives of the
underwriters. Investors may not be able to resell their common units at or above
the initial public offering price. See "Underwriting".
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OUR GENERAL PARTNER HAS A LIMITED CALL RIGHT THAT MAY REQUIRE YOU TO SELL YOUR
UNITS AT AN UNDESIRABLE TIME OR PRICE

If our general partner and its affiliates own 80% or more of the common
units, the general partner will have the right, which it may assign to any of
its affiliates or us, to acquire all, but not less than all, of the remaining
common units held by unaffiliated persons at a price generally equal to the
then-current market price of the common units. As a consequence, you may be
required to sell your common units at a time when you may not desire to sell
them or at a price that is less than the price you would desire to receive upon
sale. You may also incur a tax liability upon a sale of your units. See "The
Partnership Agreement-- Limited Call Right".

YOU MAY NOT HAVE LIMITED LIABILITY IN SOME CIRCUMSTANCES

The limitations on the liability of holders of limited partner interests for
the obligations of a limited partnership have not been clearly established in
some states. If it were to be determined that

(1) TC PipeLines had been conducting business in any state without
compliance with the applicable limited partnership statute, or

(2) the right or the exercise of the right by the unitholders as a group to
remove or replace our general partner, to approve some amendments to the
partnership agreement or to take other action under the partnership
agreement constituted participation in the "control" of TC PipelLines'
business,

then you could be held liable in some circumstances for TC PipeLines'
obligations to the same extent as a general partner. In addition, under some
circumstances a unitholder may be liable to TC PipeLines for the amount of a
distribution for a period of three years from the date of the distribution. See
"The Partnership Agreement--Limited Liability" for a discussion of the
implications of the limitations on liability to a unitholder.

WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF EACH UNITHOLDER, NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE MIGHT BE
CONVERTED INTO A CORPORATION, WHICH WOULD RESULT IN NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE
BEING SUBJECT TO CORPORATE INCOME TAXES

If it becomes unlawful to conduct the business of Northern Border Pipeline
and some other conditions are satisfied, the business and assets of Northern
Border Pipeline will automatically be transferred to a corporation without the
vote or consent of unitholders. Therefore, you would not receive a proxy or
consent solicitation statement in connection with that transaction. However, we
believe that it is unlikely that circumstances requiring an automatic transfer
will occur. A transfer to corporate form would result in Northern Border
Pipeline being subject to corporate income taxes and would be likely to be
materially adverse to its, and, therefore, our, results of operations and
financial condition.

In addition, Northern Border Pipeline may transfer its business and assets
to a corporation upon the approval of partners owning at least two-thirds in
interest. Since Northern Border Partners holds 70% of the voting power of
Northern Border Pipeline, it could vote its interest in favor of a transfer of
Northern Border Pipeline's business and assets to a corporation. General
partners of Northern Border Pipeline, including those who did not consent to
that transaction, would be bound by the terms of any such transaction receiving
the requisite unitholder vote and, under current law, would have no statutory
dissenters' appraisal rights in connection with the transaction. Our partnership
agreement prohibits our representative on the Northern Border Pipeline
management committee from approving a transaction of this kind by Northern
Border Pipeline without the prior approval of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of
the units outstanding during the subordination period or a majority of units
outstanding thereafter. We have no present intention of proposing any
transaction of this kind.
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IF WE WERE TO BE FOUND TO BE AN "INVESTMENT COMPANY" UNDER THE INVESTMENT
COMPANY ACT OF 1940, OUR CONTRACTS MAY BE VOIDABLE AND OUR OFFERS OF SECURITIES
MAY BE SUBJECT TO RESCISSION

If TC PipeLines were deemed to be an unregistered "investment company" under
the Investment Company Act, its contracts may be voidable and its offers of
securities may be subject to rescission, as well as other materially adverse
consequences.

The sole asset of TC PipeLines immediately after the offering will consist
of a 30% general partner interest in Northern Border Pipeline. TC Pipelines
could be deemed to be an "investment company" under the Investment Company Act
if the 30% general partner interest constitutes an "investment security", as
defined in the Investment Company Act. If TC PipelLines were deemed to be an
"investment company", then it would be required to be registered as an
investment company under the Investment Company Act. In that case, there would
be a substantial risk that TC PipelLines would be in violation of the Investment
Company Act because of the practical inability to register under the Investment
Company Act.

TC PipelLines believes that it is not an investment company under the
Investment Company Act. This belief is based upon TC PipelLines' determination
that the 30% general partner interest it holds is not an "investment security"
for purposes of the Investment Company Act. This determination is based upon,
among other things, TC PipeLines' role as a general partner of, and
participation in the management of the affairs of, Northern Border Pipeline and
the assumption that Northern Border Pipeline does not convert to corporate form.
Since neither the SEC nor any court have passed upon the issue there is,
however, a risk that either the SEC or a court could reach a contrary conclusion
and find TC PipelLines to be an "investment company".

IF WE WERE TO LOSE TRANSCANADA'S MANAGEMENT EXPERTISE, WE WOULD NOT HAVE
SUFFICIENT STAND-ALONE RESOURCES TO OPERATE

We do not presently have sufficient stand-alone management resources to
operate without services to be provided by TransCanada and are largely dependent
upon TransCanada to pursue our business plan as described under "Business of the
Partnership--Business Strategy and Competitive Strengths of the Partnership".

TAX RISKS

For a general discussion of the expected federal income tax consequences of
owning and disposing of common units, see "Tax Considerations".

THE IRS COULD TREAT US AS A CORPORATION, WHICH WOULD SUBSTANTIALLY REDUCE THE
CASH AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION TO UNITHOLDERS

The federal income tax benefit of an investment in us depends, in large
part, on our being treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. We
have not requested, and do not plan to request, a ruling from the IRS on this or
any other matter affecting us. We have, however, received an opinion from
counsel that we will be treated as a partnership for federal income tax
purposes. Opinions of counsel are based on specified factual assumptions and are
not binding on the IRS or any court.

If we were treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, we
would pay federal income tax on our income at the corporate tax rate, which is
currently 35%. Distributions would generally be taxed again to the unitholders
as corporate distributions, and no income, gains, losses, deductions or credits
would flow through to the unitholders. Because a tax would be imposed upon us as
an entity, the cash available for distribution to you would be substantially
reduced. Treatment of us as a corporation would result in a material reduction
in the anticipated cash flow and after-tax return to the unitholders and thus
would likely result in a substantial reduction in the value of the common units.
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We cannot provide any assurances that the law will not be changed so as to
cause us to be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes or
otherwise to be subject to entity-level taxation. The partnership agreement
provides that, if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in
a manner that subjects us to taxation as a corporation or otherwise subjects us
to entity-level taxation for federal, state or local income tax purposes, then
specified provisions of the partnership agreement relating to distributions will
be subject to change, including a decrease in distributions to reflect the
impact of that law on us.

WE HAVE NOT REQUESTED AN IRS RULING WITH RESPECT TO TAX CONSEQUENCES

We have not requested a ruling from the IRS with respect to any matter
affecting us. Accordingly, the IRS may adopt positions that differ from our
counsel's conclusions expressed here or from the positions taken by us. It may
be necessary to resort to administrative or court proceedings in an effort to
sustain some or all of our counsel's conclusions or the positions taken by us,
and some or all of our conclusions or positions ultimately may not be sustained.
Any contest with the IRS may materially and adversely impact the market for the
common units and the price at which the common units trade. In addition, the
costs of any contest with the IRS will be borne directly or indirectly by some
or all of the unitholders and the general partner.

YOU MAY BE REQUIRED TO PAY TAXES ON INCOME FROM US EVEN IF YOU RECEIVE NO CASH
DISTRIBUTIONS

You will be required to pay federal income taxes and, in some cases, state
and local income taxes on your allocable share of our income, whether or not you
receive cash distributions from us. We cannot assure that you will receive cash
distributions equal to your allocable share of our taxable income or even the
tax liability to you resulting from that income. Further, you may incur a tax
liability, in excess of the amount of cash received, upon the sale of your
common units.

TAX GAIN OR LOSS ON DISPOSITION OF COMMON UNITS COULD BE DIFFERENT THAN EXPECTED

Upon the sale of common units, you will recognize gain or loss equal to the
difference between the amount realized and your tax basis in those common units.
Thus, prior distributions in excess of the total net taxable income you were
allocated for a common unit which decreased your tax basis in that common unit
will, in effect, become taxable income if the common unit is sold at a price
greater than your tax basis in that common unit, even if the price is less than
your original cost. A substantial portion of the amount realized, whether or not
representing gain, may be ordinary income. Furthermore, should the IRS
successfully contest some conventions to be used by us, you could realize more
gain on the sale of units than would be the case under those conventions without
the benefit of decreased income in prior years.

INVESTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS THAT ARE U. S. RESIDENTS MAY HAVE ADVERSE TAX
CONSEQUENCES FROM OWNING UNITS

Investment in common units by tax-exempt entities, regulated investment
companies and foreign persons raises issues unique to them. For example,
virtually all of the taxable income derived by most organizations exempt from
federal income tax, including IRAs and other retirement plans, from the
ownership of a common unit will be unrelated business taxable income and thus
will be taxable to them. Very little of our income will be qualifying income to
a regulated investment company. Distributions to foreign persons will be reduced
by withholding taxes.

TAX SHELTER REGISTRATION COULD INCREASE RISK OF IRS AUDIT OF TC PIPELINES OR A
UNITHOLDER

Our general partner has applied to register us as a "tax shelter" with the
Secretary of the Treasury. We cannot give any assurance that we will not be
audited by the IRS or that tax adjustments will not be made. The rights of a
unitholder owning less than a 1% interest in us to participate in the income tax
audit process are very limited. Further, any adjustments in
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our tax returns will lead to adjustments in the unitholders' tax returns and may
lead to audits of unitholders' tax returns and adjustments of items unrelated to
us. Each unitholder would bear the cost of any expenses incurred in connection
with an examination of his or her personal tax return.

WE TREAT A PURCHASER OF UNITS AS HAVING THE SAME TAX BENEFITS AS THE SELLER; THE
IRS MAY CHALLENGE THIS TREATMENT WHICH COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT THE VALUE OF THE
UNITS

Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of common units, we will
adopt depreciation and amortization conventions that do not conform with all
aspects of specified proposed and final Treasury regulations. A successful
challenge to those conventions by the IRS could adversely affect the amount of
tax benefits available to you or could affect the timing of tax benefits or the
amount of gain from your sale of common units and could have a negative impact
on the value of the common units or result in audit adjustments to your tax
returns.

YOU WILL LIKELY BE SUBJECT TO STATE AND LOCAL TAXES SIMPLY AS A RESULT OF AN
INVESTMENT IN UNITS

In addition to federal income taxes, you will likely be subject to other
taxes, including state and local taxes, unincorporated business taxes and
estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that are imposed by the various
jurisdictions in which we do business or own property. You will 1likely be
required to file state and local income tax returns and pay state and local
income taxes in some or all of the various jurisdictions in which we do business
or own property and may be subject to penalties for failure to comply with those
requirements. We will initially own assets or do business in Illinois, Iowa,
Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota and Texas. Of these
states, only Texas and South Dakota do not currently impose a personal income
tax. It is your responsibility to file all required United States federal, state
and local tax returns. Counsel has not rendered an opinion on the state or local
tax consequences of an investment in us.
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THE TRANSACTIONS
TRANSACTION STEPS

Concurrent with the closing of the sale of common units offered through this
prospectus, the following transactions will take place:

- 1st,

-- TransCanada Border PipeLine will contribute its 6% general partner
interest in Northern Border Pipeline to TC PipelLines intermediate
partnership in exchange for (1) a 1.0101% general partner interest in the
intermediate partnership, and (2) an 18.9899% limited partner interest in
the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership.

-- TransCan Northern will contribute its 24% general partner interest in
Northern Border Pipeline to TC Pipelines intermediate partnership in
exchange for a 80% limited partner interest in the intermediate
partnership.

- 2nd,

-- TC PipeLines will issue the common units in the public offering.

-- TransCanada Border PipeLine will transfer its 18.9899% limited partner
interest in the intermediate partnership to TC PipelLines in exchange for
(1) a 1.0% general partner interest in TC PipelLines, (2) a limited
partner interest in TC PipelLines consisting of common units and
3,960,000 subordinated units, and (3) the incentive distribution rights.

-- TransCan Northern will transfer its 80% limited partner interest in the
intermediate partnership to TC PipelLines in exchange for common
units.

- 3rd,

-- TC PipeLines will use the proceeds of the offering, after underwriting
discounts and commissions and payment of expenses, to redeem all of the
common units issued to TransCanada Border PipelLine and TransCan Northern.

-- TransCanada Border PipelLine will transfer to the general partner its (1)
1.0% general partner interest in TC PipelLines, (2) 1.0101% general
partner interest in the intermediate partnership, (3) limited partner
interest in TC PipeLines consisting of 3,960,000 subordinated units, and
(4) the incentive distribution rights.

- After giving effect to these transactions:

-- TransCanada Border PipeLine and TransCan Northern will not own any direct
interests in TC Pipelines.

-- 0ur general partner will own subordinated units, the incentive
distribution rights and the general partner interests.

CONTRIBUTION, CONVEYANCE AND ASSUMPTION OF 30% GENERAL PARTNER INTEREST

The 30% general partner interest in Northern Border PipelLine conveyed to TC
PipeLines by TransCanada Border PipeLine and TransCan Northern constitutes all
of the initial assets of TC PipelLines.

TransCanada Border PipelLine is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary and
TransCan Northern is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of TransCanada.

The TC PipelLines intermediate partnership will be admitted and assume
obligations as a 30% general partner of Northern Border Pipeline. In addition,
the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership will indemnify TransCanada,
TransCanada Border PipelLine and TransCan Northern against liabilities and
expenses which primarily arise out of or relate to the 30% general partner
interest in Northern Border Pipeline. TransCanada Border PipelLine, TransCan
Northern and TransCanada will indemnify TC PipeLines and the TC PipeLines
intermediate partnership against (1) any income or corporate franchise taxes



attributable to ownership of the 30% general partner interest in Northern Border
Pipelines prior to the closing, including any such income taxes of the
transferors resulting from the
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consummation of the transactions contemplated by this prospectus and (2)
liabilities which primarily arise out of or relate to any property, business or
operations of TransCanada Border PipelLine, TransCan Northern or TransCanada
other than with respect to the 30% general partner interest in Northern Border
Pipeline. The contribution of this asset and the assumption of and
indemnification against liabilities will be documented under a Contribution,
Conveyance and Assumption Agreement.

UNDERWRITERS' OVER-ALLOTMENT OPTION

We will use the net proceeds from any exercise of the underwriters'
over-allotment option to redeem subordinated units from our general partner on a
one-for-one basis equal to the number of common units issued upon the exercise
of that option.

TWO YEAR REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

Also at the closing of the offering, TC PipelLines, as borrower, and
TransCanada PipeLine USA Ltd., as lender, will enter into a two year $40 million
unsecured revolving credit facility. We may borrow under the revolving credit
facility to fund capital expenditures, fund capital contributions to Northern
Border Pipeline and for working capital and other general business purposes,
including enabling TC PipelLines to make distributions on the units if there is a
temporary interruption or delay in the receipt of cash distributions from
Northern Border Pipeline. The other principal terms of this revolving credit
facility are:

- Interest rate--the London Interbank Offered Rate plus %.

- Maturity--The earlier of:

(1) two years after closing of the sale of common units offered through
this prospectus, or

(2) the date on which the borrower obtains comparable replacement credit
facilities.

- Ranking--Senior to all other debt of the borrower.

- Expenses--0Out-of-pocket expenses of the lender, including legal fees,

relating to the negotiation and preparation of the revolving credit
facility are reimbursable by the borrower.

The revolving credit facility will also contain customary representations
and warranties, conditions to drawings, covenants and events of default.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table shows the estimated proceeds from this offering of
common units assuming an initial public offering price of $19.50 per unit. The
gross offering proceeds assume no exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment
option. Any proceeds from the exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment
option will be used to redeem subordinated units from our general partner on a
one-for-one basis equal to the number of common units issued upon the exercise
of that option.

MAXIMUM DOLLAR AMOUNT PER CENT

Gross offering proceeds $ 304,980, 000 100
Public offering expenses:

Underwriting discount and commissions 19,823,700 6.5

Other expenses of the offering (estimated) 3,000,000 1.0

$ 282,156,300 92.5

Redeem common units from TransCanada Border PipelLine and TransCan Northern $ 282,156,300 92.5

Public offering expenses 22,823,700 7.5

Total application of proceeds $ 304,980,000 100

As shown above, we will not retain any of the proceeds from this offering.
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PRO FORMA CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth (1) the capitalization of TC PipelLines as of
December 31, 1998, (2) the pro forma adjustments required to reflect the
transactions contemplated by this prospectus, including the sale of common units
offered hereby (at an assumed initial public offering price of $19.50 per common
unit) and the application of the net proceeds therefrom as described in "Use of
Proceeds" and (3) the pro forma capitalization of TC PipelLines as of December
31, 1998. In each case, the table assumes that the underwriters' over-allotment
option is not exercised. The table is derived from and should be read in
conjunction with the pro forma and historical financial statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus.

PRO FORMA
TC PIPELINES, LP ADJUSTMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

(thousands of dollars)

Partners' capital

General partner. ... ...ttt 1 5,061(a)

(00711111 o TR U T o T I o -- 197,870(a)

282,156(b)

(282,156)(c)

Subordinated units.......... . . -- 50,100(a)
Total partners' capital..........oiiiiiinnnnnnnnn 1 253,031
Total capitalization...........oouviiiininnnnnnn 1 253,031

(a) As contemplated in this prospectus, the investment in Northern Border
Pipeline is conveyed to TC PipelLines by TransCanada Border PipelLine and
TransCan Northern in exchange for common units (which will be
redeemed as part of the transactions contemplated in this prospectus),
3,960,000 subordinated units, a 2% combined general partnership interest in
TC PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership and the right to
receive incentive distributions.

(b) Net proceeds to TC PipeLines from the sale of common units are expected to
be approximately $282 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and expenses of the offering, estimated to be approximately $23
million.

(c) The net proceeds will be used to redeem all of the common units issued to
TransCanada Border PipelLine and TransCan Northern.
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DILUTION

On a pro forma basis as of December 31, 1998 after giving effect to the
transactions contemplated by this prospectus, the tangible net book value of TC
PipeLines' assets would have been approximately $253 million or $12.65 per
common unit (assuming an initial public offering price of $19.50 per common
unit). Purchasers of common units in the offering will experience substantial
and immediate dilution in tangible net book value per common unit for financial
accounting purposes, as illustrated in the following table:

Assumed initial public offering price per common unit.............. $ 19.50
Less: Pro forma tangible net book value per common unit after the
Lo = o 2 T T (5 T $ 12.65

Immediate dilution in tangible net book value per common unit to
NEeW INVESEOrS. vttt i it i i i s $ 6.85

(1) Determined by dividing the total number of units (15,640,000 common units,
3,960,000 subordinated units and the 2% general partner interest having
dilutive effect equivalent to 400,000 units) to be outstanding after the
offering made hereby into the pro forma tangible net book value of TC
PipeLines, after giving effect to the application of the net proceeds of the
offering.

The following table sets forth the number of units that will be issued by TC
PipeLines and the total consideration to TC PipelLines contributed by the general
partner and its affiliates in respect of their units and by the purchasers of
common units in this offering upon the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this prospectus:

UNITS ACQUIRED TOTAL CONSIDERATION
NUMBER PER CENT AMOUNT PER CENT
General Partner and its
affiliates(L1)(2) ... vvi e 4,360,000 21.8 $ 55,161,000 15.3
New invesStorsS. . ...t nnnnnsn 15, 640, 000 78.2 304,980,000 84.7
Total. ..ot e e 20,000,000 100 $ 360,141,000 100

(1) Upon the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this prospectus,
the general partner and its affiliates will own an aggregate 3,960,000
subordinated units and a 2% general partner interest in TC PipelLines, having
a dilutive effect equivalent to 400,000 units.

(2) The asset contributed and sold by TransCanada Border PipelLine and TransCan
Northern will be recorded at historical cost in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Book value of the consideration provided by
TransCanada Border PipelLine and TransCan Northern as of December 31, 1998,
after giving effect to the application of the net proceeds of the offering,
is approximately $55 million.
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CASH DISTRIBUTION POLICY
QUARTERLY DISTRIBUTIONS OF AVAILABLE CASH

GENERAL

We will make distributions to our partners for each of our fiscal quarters
before liquidation in an amount equal to all of our Available Cash for that
quarter. Available Cash is defined in the glossary and generally means, for any
of our fiscal quarters, all cash on hand at the end of the quarter less cash
reserves, as described below in "--Available Cash". We expect to make
distributions of all Available Cash within approximately 45 days after the end
of each quarter, beginning with the quarter ending June 30, 1999, to holders of
record on the applicable record date. The minimum quarterly distribution and the
target distribution levels for the period from the closing of the offering
through June 30, 1999 will be adjusted downward based on the actual length of
this period.

For each quarter during the subordination period, to the extent there is
sufficient Available Cash, the holders of common units will have the right to
receive the minimum quarterly distribution of $0.375 per unit, plus any
arrearages on the common units, before any distribution is made to the holders
of subordinated units. This subordination feature will enhance our ability to
distribute the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units during the
subordination period. There is no guarantee, however, that the minimum quarterly
distribution will be made on the common units.

We will make distributions of Available Cash to unitholders regardless of
whether the amount of distribution is less than the minimum quarterly
distribution. If distributions from Available Cash on the common units for any
quarter during the subordination period are less than the minimum quarterly
distribution of $0.375 per common unit, holders of common units will be entitled
to arrearages. Common unit arrearages will accrue and be paid in a future
quarter after the minimum quarterly distribution is paid for that quarter.
Common units will not accrue arrearages on distributions for any quarter after
the subordination period and subordinated units will not accrue any arrearages
on distributions for any quarter.

The holders of subordinated units will have the right to receive the minimum
quarterly distribution only after the common units have received the minimum
quarterly distribution plus any arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly
distribution. The subordinated units are not entitled to arrearages. Upon
expiration of the subordination period, which will generally not occur before
June 30, 2004, the subordinated units will convert into common units on a
one-for-one basis and will then participate pro rata with the other common units
in distributions of Available Cash. Under circumstances described below, up to
66 2/3% of the subordinated units may convert into common units before the
expiration of the subordination period.

DISTRIBUTIONS OF AVAILABLE CASH FROM OPERATING SURPLUS DURING SUBORDINATION
PERIOD

Distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus for any quarter
during the subordination period will be made in the following manner:

- First, 98% to the common units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner,
until there has been distributed for each outstanding common unit an
amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution for that quarter;

- Second, 98% to the common units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner,
until there has been distributed for each outstanding common unit an
amount equal to any arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly
distribution on the common units accrued and for any prior quarters during
the subordination period;

- Third, 98% to the subordinated units, pro rata, and 2% to the general
partner,
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until there has been distributed for each outstanding subordinated unit an
amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution for that quarter; and

- Thereafter, in the manner described in "--Incentive Distribution Right"
below.

The above references to the 2% of Available Cash from Operating Surplus
distributed to the general partner are references to the percentage interest in
distributions from TC PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership of
the general partner on a combined basis, exclusive of its or any of its
affiliates' interest as holders of the units. The general partner will own a 1%
general partner interest in TC PipeLines and a 1.0101% general partner interest
in the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership.

DISTRIBUTIONS OF AVAILABLE CASH FROM OPERATING SURPLUS AFTER SUBORDINATION
PERIOD

Distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus for any quarter after
the subordination period will be made in the following manner:

- First, 98% to all units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner, until
there has been distributed for each unit an amount equal to the minimum
quarterly distribution for that quarter; and

- Thereafter, in the manner described in "--Incentive Distribution Rights"
below.

AVAILABLE CASH

Available Cash is defined in the glossary and generally means, for any of
our fiscal quarters, all cash on hand at the end of the quarter less the amount
of cash reserves that is necessary or appropriate in the reasonable discretion
of the general partner to:

(1) provide for the proper conduct of our business;

(2) comply with applicable law, any of our debt instruments or other
agreements; or

(3) provide funds for distributions to unitholders and the general partner
for any one or more of the next four quarters.

OPERATING SURPLUS AND CAPITAL SURPLUS

Cash distributions will be characterized as distributions from either
Operating Surplus or Capital Surplus. This distinction affects the amounts
distributed to unitholders relative to the general partner, and also determines
whether holders of subordinated units receive any distributions.

Operating Surplus is defined in the glossary and generally means:

(1) our cash balance on the date we begin operations, plus $ million,
plus all of our cash receipts from our operations since the closing of
the transactions contemplated in this prospectus, excluding cash
constituting Capital Surplus; less

(2) all of our operating expenses, debt service payments, maintenance
capital expenditures and reserves established for future operations, in
each case since the closing of the transactions contemplated in this
prospectus.

Capital Surplus is also defined in the glossary and will generally be
generated only by borrowings other than Working Capital Borrowings, sales of
debt and equity securities and sales or other dispositions of assets for cash,
other than inventory, accounts receivable and other assets. These dispositions
must be in the ordinary course of business.

All Available Cash distributed from any source will be treated as
distributed from Operating Surplus until the sum of all Available Cash
distributed since we began operations equals the Operating Surplus as of the end
of the quarter before that distribution. This method of cash distribution avoids
the difficulty of trying to determine whether Available Cash is distributed from
Operating Surplus or Capital Surplus. Any excess of Available Cash, irrespective
of its source, will be deemed to be Capital Surplus, which would represent a
return of capital, and distributed accordingly.
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If Capital Surplus is distributed on each common unit in an aggregate amount
per common unit equal to the initial public offering price of the common units,
plus any arrearages on the common units, the distinction between Operating
Surplus and Capital Surplus will cease. All distributions after that date will
be treated as from Operating Surplus. We do not anticipate that there will be
significant distributions of Capital Surplus.

SUBORDINATION PERIOD; CONVERSION OF SUBORDINATED UNITS

The subordination period is defined in the glossary and will generally
extend until the first day of any quarter beginning after June 30, 2004 that
each of the following three events (the "Conversion Criteria") occur:

(1) distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus on the common
units and the subordinated units equal or exceed the sum of the minimum
quarterly distributions on all of the outstanding common units and
subordinated units for each of the three non-overlapping four-quarter
periods immediately preceding that date;

(2) the Adjusted Operating Surplus generated during each of the three
immediately preceding non-overlapping four-quarter periods equals or
exceeds the sum of the minimum quarterly distributions on all of the
outstanding common units and subordinated units during those periods on
a fully diluted basis and the related distribution on the general
partner interests in TC PipelLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate
partnership during those periods; and

(3) there are no arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution
on the common units.

Before the end of the subordination period, a portion of the subordinated
units will convert into common units on a one-for-one basis on the first day
after the record date established for the distribution for any quarter ending on
or after:

(a) June 30, 2002 for one-third of the subordinated units (1,320,000
subordinated units); and

(b) June 30, 2003 for one-third of the subordinated units (1,320,000
subordinated units),

in either case during which each of the three events described in (1), (2) and
(3) (the "Conversion Criteria") of the preceding paragraph occur, provided,
however, that the early conversion of the second one-third of subordinated units
may not occur until at least one year following the early conversion of the
first one-third of subordinated units.

Upon expiration of the subordination period, all remaining subordinated
units will convert into common units on a one-for-one basis and will then
participate, pro rata, with the other common units in distributions of Available
Cash. In addition, if the general partner is removed as general partner of TC
PipeLines under circumstances where cause does not exist and units held by the
general partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor of that removal:

(1) the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units
will immediately convert into common units on a one-for-one basis;

(2) any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution
on the common units will be extinguished; and

(3) the general partner will have the right to convert its general partner
interest, and the incentive distribution rights, into common units or to
receive cash in exchange for that interest.

"Adjusted Operating Surplus" for any period generally means Operating
Surplus generated during that period, less:

(1) any net increase in Working Capital Borrowings during that period; and

(2) any net reduction in cash reserves for operating expenditures during
that
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period not relating to an operating expenditure made during that period;
and plus:

(a) any net decrease in Working Capital Borrowings during that period;
and

(b) any net increase in cash reserves for operating expenditures during
that period required by any debt instrument for the repayment of
principal, interest or premium.

Operating Surplus generated during a period is equal to the difference
between:

(1) the Operating Surplus determined at the end of that period; and

(2) the Operating Surplus determined at the beginning of that period.

Working Capital Borrowings are generally borrowings used solely for working
capital purposes and to pay distributions to the partners of TC PipeLines if
there has been a temporary interruption or delay in the receipt of cash
distributions from Northern Border Pipeline.

INCENTIVE DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS

Incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive an increasing
percentage of quarterly distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus
after the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels have
been achieved. The incentive distribution rights are held by the general
partner. The target distribution levels are based on the amounts of Available
Cash from Operating Surplus distributed in excess of the payments made for the
minimum quarterly distribution and arrearages on the common units, if any, and
the related 2% distribution to the general partner.

For any quarter that both (1) and (2) below occur, unitholders and the
general partner will receive incentive distributions as described below:

(1) Available Cash from Operating Surplus has been distributed to the common
and subordinated unitholders in an amount equal to the minimum quarterly
distribution;

(2) Available Cash from Operating Surplus has been distributed on the common
units in an amount necessary to eliminate any cumulative common unit
arrearages.

After the distributions described in (1) and (2) are met, additional
Available Cash from Operating Surplus for that quarter will be distributed among
the unitholders and the general partner in the following manner:

- First, 98% to all units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner, until
each unitholder has received, in addition to any distributions to common
unitholders to eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the
minimum quarterly distribution on the common units, a total of $0.3945 for
that quarter (the "First Target Distribution");

- Second, 85% to all units, pro rata, and 15% to the general partner, until
each unitholder has received, in addition to any distributions to common
unitholders to eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the
minimum quarterly distribution on the common units, a total of $0.46625
for that quarter (the "Second Target Distribution");

- Third, 75% to all units, pro rata, and 25% to the general partner, until
each unitholder has received, in addition to any distributions to common
unitholders to eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the
minimum quarterly distribution on the common units, a total of $0.60975
for that quarter (the "Third Target Distribution"); and

- Thereafter, 50% to all units, pro rata, and 50% to the general partner.

The distributions to the general partner described above, other than in its
capacity as a holder of units, that are in excess of its aggregate 2% general
partner interest represent the incentive distribution rights. The right to
receive incentive distributions is not part of the general partner interest and
may be
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transferred separately from that interest, subject to specified restrictions.
See "The Partnership Agreement--Transfer of General Partner Interest and
Incentive Distribution Rights".

DISTRIBUTIONS FROM CAPITAL SURPLUS

Distributions of Available Cash from Capital Surplus will be made in the
following manner:

- First, 98% to all units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner, until
each common unit that was issued in the offering has received
distributions equal to the initial unit price;

- Second, 98% to the common units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner,
until each common unit that was issued in the offering has received an
aggregate amount equal to any unpaid arrearages in payment of the minimum
quarterly distribution on the common units; and

- Thereafter, all distributions of Available Cash from Capital Surplus will
be distributed as if they were from Operating Surplus.

When a distribution is made from Capital Surplus, it is treated as if it
were a repayment of the unit price from this initial public offering. To reflect
repayment, the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels
will be adjusted downward by multiplying each amount by a fraction. This
fraction is determined as follows:

- the numerator is the Unrecovered Capital of the common units immediately
after giving effect to the repayment; and

- the denominator is the Unrecovered Capital of the common units immediately
before the repayment.

This adjustment to the minimum quarterly distribution may make it more
likely that subordinated units will be converted into common units, whether upon
the termination of the subordination period or the early conversion of some
subordinated units, and may accelerate the dates at which these conversions
occur.

A "payback" of the unit price from this initial public offering occurs, when
the Unrecovered Capital of the common units is zero. At that time the minimum
quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels will have been reduced
to zero. All distributions of Available Cash from all sources after that time
will be treated as if they were from Operating Surplus. Because the minimum
quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels will have been reduced
to zero, the general partner will then be entitled to receive 50% of all
distributions of Available Cash in its capacities as general partner and as
holder of the incentive distribution rights, in addition to any distributions to
which it may be entitled as a holder of units.

Distributions from Capital Surplus will not reduce the minimum quarterly
distribution or target distribution levels for the quarter in which they are
distributed.

ADJUSTMENT OF MINIMUM QUARTERLY
DISTRIBUTION AND TARGET
DISTRIBUTION LEVELS

In addition to adjustments made upon a distribution of Available Cash from
Capital Surplus, the following will each be proportionately adjusted upward or
downward, as appropriate, if any combination or subdivision of units should
occur:

(1) the minimum quarterly distribution;

(2) the target distribution levels;

(3) the Unrecovered Capital;

(4) the number of additional common units issuable during the subordination
period without a unitholder vote;

(5) the number of common units issuable upon conversion of the subordinated
units; and

(6) other amounts calculated on a per unit basis.

For example, if a two-for-one split of the common units should occur, the
minimum
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quarterly distribution, the target distribution levels and the Unrecovered
Capital of the common units would each be reduced to 50% of its initial level.

No adjustment will be made by reason of the issuance of additional common
units for cash or property.

The minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels may
also be adjusted if legislation is enacted or if existing law is modified or
interpreted in a manner that causes us, the TC Pipelines intermediate
partnership or Northern Border Pipeline to become taxable as a corporation or
otherwise subject to taxation as an entity for federal, state or local income
tax purposes. In this event, the minimum quarterly distribution and the target
distribution levels for each quarter after that time would be reduced to amounts
equal to the product of:

(1) the minimum quarterly distribution and each of the target distribution
levels;

multiplied by
(2) one minus the sum of:

(x) the highest marginal federal income tax rate which could apply to
the partnership that is taxed as an entity; plus

(y) any increase in the effective overall state and local income tax
rate that would have been applicable to TC PipeLines, the TC
PipeLines intermediate partnership or Northern Border Pipeline in
the preceding calendar year as a result of the new imposition of the
entity level tax, after taking into account the benefit of any
deduction allowable for federal income tax purposes for the payment
of state and local income taxes, but only to the extent of the
increase in rates resulting from that legislation or interpretation.

For example, assuming we are not previously subject to state and local
income tax, if we were to become taxable as an entity for federal income tax
purposes and we became subject to a maximum marginal federal, and effective
state and local, income tax rate of 38%, then the minimum quarterly distribution
and the target distribution levels would each be reduced to 62% of the amount
immediately before the adjustment.

DISTRIBUTIONS OF CASH UPON LIQUIDATION

Following the beginning of our dissolution and liquidation, assets will be
sold or otherwise disposed of and the partners' capital account balances will be
adjusted to reflect any resulting gain or loss. The proceeds of liquidation will
first be applied to the payment of our creditors in the order of priority
provided in the partnership agreement and by law. After that, the proceeds will
be distributed to the unitholders and the general partner in accordance with
their capital account balances, as so adjusted.

Partners are entitled to liquidating distributions in accordance with
capital account balances. The allocations of gains and losses upon liquidation
are intended, to the extent possible, to entitle the holders of outstanding
common units to a preference over the holders of outstanding subordinated units
upon the liquidation of TC PipelLines, to the extent required to permit common
unitholders to receive their Unrecovered Capital plus any unpaid arrearages in
payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units. Thus, net
losses recognized upon liquidation of TC PipelLines will be allocated to the
holders of the subordinated units to the extent of their capital account
balances before any loss is allocated to the holders of the common units. Also
net gains recognized upon liquidation will be allocated first to restore
negative balances in the capital account of the general partner and any
unitholders and then to the common unitholders until their capital account
balances equal their Unrecovered Capital plus unpaid arrearages in payment of
the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units. However, no assurance
can be given that there will be sufficient gain upon liquidation of TC PipeLines
to enable the holders of common
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units to fully recover all of these amounts, even though there may be cash
available for distribution to the holders of subordinated units.

The manner of the adjustment is as provided in the partnership agreement,
the form of which is included as Appendix A to this prospectus. If our
liquidation occurs before the end of the subordination period, any gain, or
unrealized gain attributable to assets distributed in kind, will be allocated to
the partners in the following manner:

- First, to the general partner and the holders of units who have negative
balances in their capital accounts to the extent of and in proportion to
those negative balances;

- Second, 98% to the common units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner,
until the capital account for each common unit is equal to the sum of:

(1) the Unrecovered Capital on that common unit;

(2) the amount of the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter
during which our liquidation occurs; and

(3) any unpaid arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly
distribution on that common unit;

- Third, 98% to the subordinated units, pro rata, and 2% to the general
partner, until the capital account for each subordinated unit is equal to
the sum of:

(1) the Unrecovered Capital on that subordinated unit; and

(2) the amount of the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter
during which our liquidation occurs;

- Fourth, 98% to all units, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner, until
there has been allocated under this paragraph an amount per unit equal to:

(1) the sum of the excess of the First Target Distribution per unit over
the minimum quarterly distribution per unit for each quarter of our
existence; less

(2) the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of Available
Cash from Operating Surplus in excess of the minimum quarterly
distribution per unit that was distributed 98% to the units, pro
rata, and 2% to the general partner for each quarter of our
existence;

- Fifth, 85% to all units, pro rata, and 15% to the general partner, until
there has been allocated under this paragraph an amount per unit equal to:

(1) the sum of the excess of the Second Target Distribution per unit
over the First Target Distribution per unit for each quarter of our
existence; less

(2) the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of Available
Cash from Operating Surplus in excess of the First Target
Distribution per unit that was distributed 85% to the units, pro
rata, and 15% to the general partner for each quarter of our
existence;

- Sixth, 75% to all units, pro rata, and 25% to the general partner, until
there has been allocated under this paragraph an amount per unit equal to:

(1) the sum of the excess of the Third Target Distribution per unit over
the Second Target Distribution per unit for each quarter of our
existence; less

(2) the cumulative amount per unit of any distributions of Available
Cash from Operating Surplus in excess of the Second Target
Distribution per unit that was distributed 75% to the units, pro
rata, and 25% to the general
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partner for each quarter of our existence; and

- Thereafter, 50% to all units, pro rata, and 50% to the general partner.

If the liquidation occurs after the end of the subordination period, the
distinction between common units and subordinated units will disappear, so that
clause (3) of the second priority above and all of the third priority above will
no longer be applicable.

Upon our liquidation, any loss will generally be allocated to the general
partner and the unitholders in the following manner:

- First, 98% to holders of subordinated units in proportion to the positive
balances in their capital accounts and 2% to the general partner, until
the capital accounts of the holders of the subordinated units have been
reduced to zero;

- Second, 98% to the holders of common units in proportion to the positive
balances in their capital accounts and 2% to the general partner, until
the capital accounts of the common unitholders have been reduced to zero;
and

- Thereafter, 100% to the general partner.

If the liquidation occurs after the subordination period, the distinction
between common units and subordinated units will disappear, so that all of the
first priority above will no longer be applicable.

In addition, interim adjustments to capital accounts will be made at the
time we issue additional interests in TC PipelLines or make distributions of
property. These adjustments will be based on the fair market value of the
interests or the property distributed and any gain or loss resulting from the
adjustments will be allocated to the unitholders and the general partner in the
same manner as gain or loss is allocated upon liquidation. In the event that
positive interim adjustments are made to the capital accounts, any later
negative adjustments to the capital accounts resulting from the issuance of
additional TC PipeLines interests, our distributions of property, or upon our
liquidation, will be allocated in a manner which results, to the extent
possible, in the capital account balances of the general partner equaling the
amount which would have been the general partner's capital account balances if
no earlier positive adjustments to the capital accounts had been made.
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CASH AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

We believe that we will generate sufficient Available Cash from Operating
Surplus for each quarter through June 30, 2002, following completion of the
offering to cover the full minimum quarterly distribution on all the outstanding
units. The inclusion of this belief does not constitute an undertaking that we
will provide updates based on future developments. Available Cash for any
quarter will consist generally of all cash on hand at the end of that quarter,
as adjusted for reserves. The definition of Available Cash is in the glossary.
Operating Surplus generally consists of cash generated from operations after
deducting related expenditures and other items, plus $ million.

ASSUMPTIONS. Our belief is based on a number of assumptions, including the
assumptions that:

- there will be no significant changes in Canadian law or export policy that
would adversely impact the levels of imports of Canadian natural gas into
the United States;

- there will be no significant changes in FERC regulation, including the
ratemaking methodology, which generally allows Northern Border Pipeline to
recover its costs and earn a 12.0% return on equity with a deemed income
tax cost recovery component, calculated in accordance with FERC
regulations, not generally accepted accounting principles;

- the project cost containment mechanism, which was instituted to allocate
the risks of the levels of capital costs associated with the Chicago
Project between Northern Border Pipeline and its shippers, will result in
Northern Border Pipeline being allowed to include in its rate base the
entire cost of construction of the Chicago Project;

- Northern Border Pipeline's Project 2000 will achieve an in-service date on
or before November 1, 2000;

- Northern Border Pipeline's debt/equity ratio will remain at approximately
its current ratio;

- business, economic, regulatory, political and competitive conditions will
not change substantially; and

- ongoing maintenance capital expenditures and/or capital contibutions to
Northern Border Pipeline will be funded through a combination of cash
reserved by us and/or short-term financings by us.

Although we believe our assumptions are reasonable, most of our assumptions
are not within our control and cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty.
If our assumptions are not realized, the actual Available Cash from Operating
Surplus that we generate could be substantially less than that currently
expected and could, therefore, be insufficient to permit us to make cash
distributions at the levels described above. In addition, the terms of Northern
Border Pipeline's indebtedness will restrict the ability of Northern Border
Pipeline to distribute cash to the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership, in the
event of a default under the terms of that indebtedness. Accordingly, no
assurance can be given that distributions of the minimum quarterly distribution
or any other amounts will be made.

CHANGE IN TIMING OF CASH DISTRIBUTIONS BY NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE. In
December 1998, the Northern Border Pipeline management committee changed its
policy regarding the timing of cash distributions to its partners, as follows:

- Changed the timing of distributions from the last business day of the
quarter to the second business day of the second month following the end
of the quarter. For example, for the quarter ended with December the
distribution date changed from December 31 to February 2.

- Changed the computation period for distributions from quarterly with one
month in arrears to quarterly. For
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example, making distributions quarterly with one month in arrears, the
distribution that would have been made on December 31 would have included
the distributable cash for September, October and November. Making
distributions quarterly, the distribution made on February 2 would include
the distributable cash for October, November and December.

These changes resulted in a one-time shift in the payment of distributable cash
from the fourth quarter of 1998 to the first quarter of 1999.

If this change in the timing of distributions had not occurred, then the
distributions to the partners of Northern Border Pipeline for 1998 would have
been approximately $30.3 million more than the actual distribution of
approximately $61.2 million.

As a result of the change in timing, the distribution to the partners of
Northern Border Pipeline in the first quarter of 1999 included distributable
cash for four months, rather than three months. Therefore, the first quarter
1999 distribution to the partners of Northern Border Pipeline was approximately
$38.0 million.

TC PIPELINES' PRO FORMA AVAILABLE CASH. The amount of Available Cash
constituting Operating Surplus needed to pay the minimum quarterly distribution
for four quarters on the common units, the subordinated units and the general
partner interest to be outstanding immediately after the transactions is
approximately:

$23.5

common units.................. million
Subordinated units............ 5.9 million
General partner interest...... 0.6 million
$30.0

Total. ...t million

If the transactions contemplated in this prospectus had been completed on
January 1, 1998, pro forma Available Cash from Operating Surplus generated
during 1998 would have been approximately $17.2 million. This amount would not
have been sufficient to allow us to distribute the minimum quarterly
distribution on the common units and the subordinated units and the related
distribution on the general partner interest for the period by approximately
$12.8 million.

The change in the timing of distributions to the partners of Northern Border
Pipeline resulted in a one-time shift in the payment of distributable cash from
the fourth quarter of 1998 to the first quarter of 1999. If this change in the
timing of distributions had not occurred, then TC PipeLines' pro forma Available
Cash from Operating Surplus for 1998 would have been approximately $26.3 million
rather than approximately $17.2 million.

As a result of the change in timing, TC PipelLines' pro forma Available Cash
from Operating Surplus for the first quarter of 1999 included cash generated
during four months, rather than three months. Therefore, TC PipelLines' pro forma
Available Cash from Operating Surplus for the first quarter of 1999 was
approximately $11.1 million.

The amounts of pro forma Available Cash from Operating Surplus shown above
were derived from our pro forma financial statements and historical financial
statements of Northern Border Pipeline in the manner described in Appendix D.
The pro forma adjustments are based upon currently available information and
specific estimates and assumptions. The pro forma financial statements do not
purport to present our results of operations had the transactions contemplated
in this prospectus actually been completed as of the dates indicated.
Furthermore, Available Cash from Operating Surplus as defined in the partnership
agreement is a cash accounting concept, while our pro forma financial statements
and Northern Border Pipeline's historical financial statements have been
prepared on an accrual basis. As a result, the amount of pro forma Available
Cash from Operating Surplus shown above should only be viewed as a general
indication of the amount of Available Cash from Operating Surplus that we might



have generated had TC PipelLines been formed in an earlier period. For
definitions of Available Cash and Operating Surplus, see the glossary.
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SELECTED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA OF TC PIPELINES

The following unaudited Selected Pro Forma Financial Data as of and for the
year ended December 31, 1998 is derived from the TC PipelLines' Pro Forma
Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. For the purpose of
this pro forma financial data, it is assumed that TC PipelLines will be in a
position to exercise significant influence over Northern Border Pipeline and the
investment is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The pro forma
financial data is based on currently available information and various estimates
and assumptions, and therefore the actual financial data will differ from the
pro forma financial data. For a more complete discussion of the assumptions used
in preparing the Selected Pro Forma Financial Data, see Notes to the Pro Forma
Financial Statements of TC PipelLines appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The
following information should not be deemed indicative of future operating
results for TC PipelLines.

YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 1998

(UNAUDITED)

(thousands of dollars,
except per unit amount)

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:

Equity income from investment in Northern Border Pipeline(1)............. . viiiinuinnnnn 30,069
General and administrative EXPENSES. ...ttt et e e (1,200)
Net InCome O ParfNerS. .ottt i it et s e e e 28,869
NEet INCOME PeI UNIE (L) ittt et s s s it i ittt nnns $ 1.44

BALANCE SHEET DATA (AT PERIOD END):

Investment in Northern Border Pipeline(2)........iiuiiiiinniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaananans 253,031
TOtAL AS S S . v vttt ittt e e s 253,032

Partners' capital
General Partner(B) . v vttt ittt e 5,062
COMMON UNZES(B) .t u ittt ittt i i it 197,870
Subordinated UNitS(3) . vttt et e e 50,100
253,032

(1) Pro forma equity income represents 30% of the net income of Northern Border
Pipeline. The general partner's allocation of pro forma net income is based
on an aggregate 2% interest in TC PipelLines which has been deducted before
calculating the pro forma net income per unit. The computation of pro forma
net income per unit assumes that 15,640,000 common units and 3,960,000
subordinated units are outstanding at all times during the period presented.

(2) The pro forma investment balance as of December 31, 1998 represents the
combined carrying values of the investment in Northern Border Pipeline as
reflected in the financial records of TransCanada Border PipelLine and
TransCan Northern as at that date. The balance also equates to 30% of the
net assets of Northern Border Pipeline as at December 31, 1998.

(3) Pro forma partners' capital is allocated 2% to the general partner, 78.2% to
the common unitholders and 19.8% to the subordinated unitholders.
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SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA OF
NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

The selected financial information below for Northern Border Pipeline as of
and for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997, 1996, 1995 and 1994 is derived
from the audited financial statements of Northern Border Pipeline. Some
reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial data to conform
with the presentation used in the audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 1998. The operating data for all periods presented is derived
from the records of Northern Border Pipeline. The Selected Historical Financial
and Operating Data below should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements of Northern Border Pipeline, included elsewhere in this prospectus,
and with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations".

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(thousands of dollars, except operating data)
INCOME STATEMENT DATA:

Operating revenues, Net..........iiiiiinnrninnnnnennns 196, 600 186, 050 201,943 206,497 211,580
Operations and maintenance............coiviiiinnnnrnnnnn 29,447 28,522 26,974 25,573 27,682
Depreciation and amortization............. ..o, 40,989 38,708 46,979 47,081 41,959
Taxes other than income...........co ity 21,381 22,393 24,390 23,886 24,438
Regulatory credit...... ..ottt i (8,878) -- -- -- --
Operating 1NCOME. ... ...ttt ittt ittt e e 113,661 96,427 103, 600 109,957 117,501
Interest expense, Net........ov it nnnns (25,541) (29,360) (32,670) (35,106) (38,375)
Other income (EXPEeNSE) ... vt iin ittt 12,111 5,705 2,913 (316) (1,968)
L= o o 1= 100, 231 72,772 73,843 74,535 77,158

CASH FLOW DATA:

Net cash provided by operating activities............... 103,777 115,328 136, 808 127,429 121,679

Capital exXpenditures. ...ttt 651,169 152,070 18,597 8,310 3,086

Distributions to partners........... s 61, 205 99, 322 102, 845 98,517 87,509
BALANCE SHEET DATA (AT PERIOD END):

Net property, plant and equipment............. ... 1,714,523 1,100,890 937,859 957,587 983, 843

Total @SSeLS. v vttt e 1,790,889 1,147,120 974,137 1,011,361 1,063,210

Long-term debt, including current maturities............ 862, 000 459, 000 377,500 410, 000 445,000

Partners' capital........ooiiiiiiiin i 843,438 581,412 526,962 555, 964 579, 946
OPERATING DATA (UNAUDITED):

Natural gas delivered (millions of cubic feet).......... 619, 669 633, 280 633,908 615,133 597,898

Average throughput (millions of cubic feet per day)..... 1,737 1,770 1,764 1,720 1,663
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MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION OF THE PRO FORMA FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS OF TC PIPELINES SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH TC PIPELINES' PRO
FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES THERETO AND THE HISTORICAL RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS FOR NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH
NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE'S HISTORICAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES THERETO.
FOR MORE DETAILED INFORMATION REGARDING THE BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE
FOLLOWING FINANCIAL INFORMATION, SEE THE NOTES TO EACH OF THE PRO FORMA AND
HISTORICAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, INCLUDED ELSEWHERE IN THIS PROSPECTUS.

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OF TC PIPELINES

Upon the closing of the offering, TC PipelLines will own a 30% general
partner interest in Northern Border Pipeline. TC PipelLines will account for this
interest using the equity method of accounting. TC PipelLines' investment
initially will be recorded at the combined carrying values of the investment in
Northern Border Pipeline as reflected in the financial records of TransCanada
Border PipeLine and TransCan Northern as of that date. In accordance with the
equity method of accounting, the future carrying value of this investment will
be adjusted to include TC PipeLines' 30% share of earnings or losses of Northern
Border Pipeline. Any distributions received or receivable by TC PipeLines from
Northern Border Pipeline will reduce the future carrying value of the investment
and additional contributions to Northern Border Pipeline will increase the
carrying value of the investment.

TC PipelLines' results of operations after the closing of the offering are
expected to be influenced by and to reflect the same factors that influence the
financial results of Northern Border Pipeline until TC PipeLines owns additional
assets.

Upon the closing of the offering, TC PipelLines will enter into a $40 million
unsecured two year revolving credit facility with TransCanada PipelLine USA Ltd.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of TransCanada. The purpose of the revolving credit
facility is to provide borrowings to fund capital expenditures, to fund capital
contributions to Northern Border Pipeline and for working capital and other
general business purposes, including enabling TC PipelLines to make distributions
on the units when there is a temporary interruption or delay in the receipt of
cash distributions from Northern Border Pipeline.

We expect that Northern Border Pipeline will request capital contributions
in aggregate of approximately $12 million from TC PipelLines in 2000. We expect
to fund these capital contributions from cash reserves and/or drawings under the
revolving credit facility.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OF NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

1998 COMPARED TO 1997

Operating revenues, net increased $10.5 million (6%) for the year ended
December 31, 1998, as compared to the results for the comparable period in 1997
due primarily to returns on higher levels of invested equity. Northern Border
Pipeline's FERC tariff provides an opportunity to recover all of the operations
and maintenance costs of the pipeline, taxes other than income taxes, interest,
depreciation and amortization, an allowance for income taxes and a regulated
return on equity. Northern Border Pipeline is generally allowed to collect from
its shippers a return on unrecovered rate base as well as recover that rate base
through depreciation and amortization. The return amount Northern Border
Pipeline collects from its shippers declines as the rate base is recovered. As a
result of placing the facilities for the Chicago project into service, Northern
Border Pipeline added approximately $840 million to its gas plant in service in
1998.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.3 million (6%) for the
year ended
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December 31, 1998, as compared to the same period in 1997 primarily due to
facilities that were placed in service in 1998.

For the year ended December 31, 1998, Northern Border Pipeline recorded a
regulatory credit of approximately $8.9 million. During the construction of the
Chicago project, Northern Border Pipeline placed some new facilities into
service in advance of the December 1998 in service date to maintain gas flow at
firm contracted capacity while existing facilities were being modified. The
regulatory credit results in deferral of the cost of service of these new
facilities. Northern Border Pipeline is allowed to recover from its shippers the
regulatory asset that resulted from the cost of service deferral over a ten-year
period commencing with the in-service date of the Chicago project.

Interest expense, net decreased $3.8 million (13%) for the year ended
December 31, 1998, as compared to the results for the same period in 1997, due
to an increase in interest expense of $11.5 million offset by an increase in the
amount of interest expense capitalized of $15.3 million. The increase in
interest expense is due primarily to an increase in average debt outstanding,
reflecting amounts borrowed to finance a portion of the capital expenditures for
the Chicago project. The increase in interest expense capitalized primarily
relates to Northern Border Pipeline's expenditures for the Chicago project.

Other income increased $6.4 million (112%) for the year ended December 31,
1998, as compared to the same period in 1997. The increase was primarily due to
an $8.8 million increase in the allowance for equity funds used during
construction. The increase in the allowance for equity funds used during
construction primarily relates to Northern Border Pipeline's expenditures for
the Chicago project. Other income for 1997 included $4.8 million received by
Northern Border Pipeline for vacating some microwave frequency bands.

1997 COMPARED TO 1996

Operating revenue decreased $15.9 million (8%) for the year ended December
31, 1997, as compared to the results for the comparable period in 1996 due
primarily to lower depreciation and amortization expense, taxes other than
income and return on a lower rate base. These lower recoveries were partially
offset by higher operations and maintenance expense recoveries. Additionally, in
accordance with the stipulation and agreement approved by the FERC to settle
Northern Border Pipeline's November 1995 rate case, the allowed equity rate of
return was 12.75% through September 30, 1996 and 12.0% thereafter.

Operations and maintenance expense increased $1.5 million (6%) for the year
ended December 31, 1997, from the comparable period in 1996 due primarily to
higher administrative expenses.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $8.3 million (18%) for the
year ended December 31, 1997, as compared to the same period in 1996. In
accordance with the terms of the stipulation, filed with the FERC in 1996 and
approved in August 1997, the depreciation rate applied to Northern Border
Pipeline's gross transmission plant was 2.5% for 1997. The average depreciation
rate applied to gross transmission plant for the year ended December 31, 1996
was 3.1%.

Taxes other than income decreased $2.0 million (8%) for the year ended
December 31, 1997, as compared to the results for the same period in 1996 due
primarily to lower property tax assessments received in various states where the
Northern Border pipeline system operates.

Interest expense, net decreased $3.3 million (10%) for the year ended
December 31, 1997, as compared to the results for the same period in 1996, due
to an increase in the amount of interest capitalized. This increase primarily
relates to Northern Border Pipeline's expenditures for the Chicago project.
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Other income increased $2.8 million (96%) for the year ended December 31,
1997, as compared to the same period in 1996. The increase was primarily due to
$4.8 million received in 1997 by Northern Border Pipeline for vacating some
microwave frequency bands.

Northern Border Pipeline employs a microwave system that uses the 2Ghz. band
of radio frequencies for transmitting operational data of the pipeline. This
bandwidth was subsequently reserved by the Federal Communications Commission for
personal communications services and as a result Northern Border Pipeline
vacated 21 of the 39 segments of its microwave system and received payments
accordingly. The remaining 18 segments of Northern Border Pipeline's microwave
system are located in sparsely populated areas. The payments related to the
vacated segments is a one-time occurrence and Northern Border Pipeline does not
expect to receive any material payments for vacating microwave frequency bands
in the future. This increase was partially offset by the reversal into income of
$2.2 million of previously established reserves for regulatory issues in 1996.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES OF NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flows provided by operating activities decreased $11.5 million to
$103.8 million for the year ended December 31, 1998 as compared to the same
period in 1997 primarily related to a $25.4 million reduction for changes in
accounts payable, exclusive of accruals for the Chicago project. In addition,
for the year ended December 31, 1998, there was a $7.4 million reduction for
changes in over/ under recovered cost of service. These reductions were
partially offset by the effect of the refund activity in 1997 discussed below.
The over/under recovered cost of service is the difference between Northern
Border Pipeline's estimated billings to its shippers, which are determined on a
six-month cycle, and the actual cost of service determined in accordance with
the FERC tariff. The difference is either billed to or credited back to the
shippers accounts. Cash flows provided by operating activities for the year
ended December 31, 1997 reflected a $52.6 million refund in October 1997 in
accordance with the Stipulation approved by the FERC to settle Northern Border
Pipeline's November 1995 rate case. During 1997, $40.4 million had been
collected subject to refund by Northern Border Pipeline as a result of its rate
case.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures of $651.2 million for the year ended December 31, 1998,
include $638.7 million for the Chicago project and $11.7 million for linepack
gas. The remaining $0.8 million of capital expenditures for 1998 is primarily
related to renewals and replacements of existing facilities.

Capital expenditures of $152.1 million for the year ended December 31, 1997,
include $135.7 million for the Chicago project. The remaining $16.4 million of
capital expenditures for 1997 are primarily related to renewals and replacements
of Northern Border Pipeline's existing facilities.

Total capital expenditures for 1999 are estimated to be $131 million
including $30 million for Project 2000 and $85 million for the Chicago project.
Approximately $37 million of the capital expenditures for the Chicago project is
for construction completed in 1998. An additional $16 million of 1999 capital
expenditures is planned for renewals and replacements of the existing
facilities. Northern Border Pipeline anticipates funding its 1999 capital
expenditures primarily by borrowing on the pipeline credit agreement and using
internal sources.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash flows provided by financing activities increased $512.4 million to
$564.8 million for the year ended December 31, 1998, as compared to the same
period in 1997. Financing activities for 1998 include borrowings under the
pipeline credit agreement of $403.0 million and were used primarily for
construction expenditures related to the Chicago project. Contributions received
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from the general partners increased $142.0 million to $223.0 million and were
used by Northern Border Pipeline to fund a portion of its capital expenditures.
Distributions to the general partners decreased $38.1 million to $61.2 million
primarily due to a change in the timing of Northern Border Pipeline's
distributions.

Cash flows provided by financing activities were $52.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 1997, as compared to cash flows used in financing activities
of $125.3 million for the year ended December 31, 1996. In 1997, sources of
funds from financing activities included a contribution from partners of $81.0
million. Borrowings under the pipeline credit agreement totaled $209 million and
were used primarily to retire amounts related to Northern Border Pipeline's
existing bank loan agreements of $137.5 million and for construction
expenditures related to the Chicago project.

DESCRIPTION OF INDEBTEDNESS OF NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

DESCRIPTION OF NOTES

The following is a summary of the material terms of $250 million aggregate
principal amount of notes issued by Northern Border Pipeline in a private
placement under a note purchase agreement dated as of July 15, 1992, amended by
a supplemental agreement dated as of June 1, 1995. Copies of the note purchase
agreement and the supplemental agreement are filed as an exhibit to the
registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

Northern Border Pipeline's obligations under the note purchase agreement and
supplemental agreement are unsecured and non-recourse to the general partners of
Northern Border Pipeline. The note purchase agreement and supplemental agreement
provide for four series of notes with varying interest rates and maturity dates.
The Series A Notes in a total principal amount of $66 million bear interest at
an annual rate of 8.26%, payable semiannually, and mature in August 2000. The
Series B Notes in a total principal amount of $41 million bear interest at an
annual rate of 8.38%, payable semiannually, and mature in August 2001. The
Series C Notes in a total principal amount of $78 million bear interest at an
annual rate of 8.49%, payable semiannually, and mature in August 2002. The
Series D Notes in a total principal amount of $65 million bear interest at an
annual rate of 8.57%, payable semiannually, and mature in August 2003.

Northern Border Pipeline may at any time, at its option and on written
notice, prepay the notes of one or more series in whole or in part. Prepayment
must be in a minimum amount of, and otherwise in multiples of, $1.0 million.
Optional prepayments will be payable with accrued interest plus any Make-Whole
Amount (as defined in the note purchase agreement) premium.

The note purchase agreement contains various restrictive and affirmative
covenants applicable to Northern Border Pipeline, including:

- requirement that the ratio of Northern Border Pipeline's total
indebtedness to Partners' Capital (as defined in the note purchase
agreement) not exceed 2.3 to 1 on a consolidated basis. As of December 31,
1998, the ratio was 1.57 to 1 on a consolidated basis;

- requirement that Northern Plains or another person approved by a majority
of the holders of the notes outstanding at the time of selection by the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee be the operator of Northern
Border Pipeline;

- restrictions on specific liens, investments, lines of business, mergers,
consolidations, or sales of assets of Northern Border Pipeline;

- restrictions on amendments, modification, or cancellation of any
Controlled Service Agreement or related Support Agreement (as defined in
the note purchase agreement), subject to some exceptions; and
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- restrictions on transactions with affiliates of Northern Border Pipeline
except on an arm's-length basis.

Under the note purchase agreement, so long as no Default or Event of Default
(as defined in the note purchase agreement) exists or would result, Northern
Border Pipeline is permitted to make cash distributions to its partners if the
total amount of cash distributions made from January 1, 1992 to the date of the
proposed cash distribution (the Computation Period, as defined in the note
purchase agreement) would not exceed $20 million plus (or minus in case of a
negative amount) the sum of:

- Consolidated Net Income (as defined in the note purchase agreement) for
the Computation Period,

- an amount equal to the total net cash proceeds received by Northern Border
Pipeline during the Computation Period from the sale of partnership
interests or from capital contributions treated as equity in accordance
with Required Accounting Principles (as defined in the note purchase
agreement),

- an amount equal to Current Taxes (as defined in the note purchase
agreement) for the Computation Period and interest payable in respect of
any income tax deficiencies (to the extent recovered under the FERC tariff
during the Computation Period),

- an amount equal to 35% of Deferred Income Taxes (as defined in the note
purchase agreement) during the Computation Period, and

- an amount equal to 35% of Depreciation (as defined in the note purchase
agreement) during the Computation Period. Under the most restrictive debt
covenant, the amount of partners' capital that could have been distributed
as of December 31, 1998 was $173 million.

If an Event of Default (as defined in the note purchase agreement) exists,
the holders of notes may accelerate the maturity of the notes and exercise other
rights and remedies.

DESCRIPTION OF BANK CREDIT FACILITY

Northern Border Pipeline entered into a credit agreement, dated as of June
16, 1997 with financial institutions for which the First National Bank of
Chicago acts as administrative agent, to borrow up to a total principal amount
of $750 million. The following is a summary of the material terms of the
pipeline credit agreement, a copy of which is filed as an exhibit to the
registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

Northern Border Pipeline's obligations under the credit agreement are
unsecured obligations, rank equally with the notes and are non-recourse to the
general partners of Northern Border Pipeline. The credit agreement is comprised
of a $200 million five-year revolving credit facility to be used for the
retirement of Northern Border Pipeline's prior credit facility and for general
business purposes and a $550 million three-year revolving credit facility to be
used for the construction of the Chicago project. The three-year revolving
credit facility converted to a term loan maturing in June 2002 effective March
31, 1999. The credit agreement permits Northern Border Pipeline to choose among
various interest rate options, to specify the portion of the borrowings to be
covered by specific interest rate options and to specify the interest rate
period, subject to specific parameters. Northern Border Pipeline may borrow
under either facility at (1) fixed interest rates or a margin added or
subtracted from a London Interbank Offered Rate index and further adjusted based
on Northern Border Pipeline's leverage ratio or (2) under an auction procedure
set forth in the credit agreement. Northern Border Pipeline is required to pay a
facility fee on the total principal amount of $750 million. As of December 31,
1998, $127.5 million had been borrowed on the five-year and $484.5 million had
been borrowed on the three-year revolving credit facilities.
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The credit agreement contains various restrictive covenants applicable to
Northern Border Pipeline, including restrictions on liens, additional
indebtedness, investments, mergers, consolidations, sales of assets, guarantees,
entering into transactions with affiliates, allowing final judgments in excess
of $25 million to remain undischarged or unbonded, maintaining or contributing
to any ERISA Plan without obtaining the prior written consent of the Majority
Banks (as defined in the credit agreement), and not permitting the ratio of
Northern Border Pipeline's Indebtedness to the sum of its general partners'
capital plus indebtedness to exceed .65 to 1 on a consolidated basis. As of
December 31, 1998, the ratio was .51 to 1 on a consolidated basis.

The credit agreement also contains various affirmative covenants, customary
for this type of facility, including that Northern Border Pipeline will use its
best efforts to cause its tariff to remain effective at all times, use it best
efforts to maintain existing Service Agreements and Support Agreements (as
defined in the credit agreement), and that Northern Border Pipeline will require
that all shippers meet certain credit worthiness standards.

If an Event of Default (as defined in the credit agreement) occurs under the
credit agreement, the lending banks may accelerate the maturity of the amounts
due thereunder and exercise other rights and remedies.

SETTLEMENT OF 1995 FERC RATE CASE AND PROJECT COST CONTAINMENT MECHANISM

In connection with the rate case filed with the FERC in November 1995,
Northern Border Pipeline reached a settlement accord with shippers holding in
excess of 90% of the aggregate contracted firm capacity as of October 15, 1996
and filed a stipulation to settle that rate case. The stipulation was approved
by the FERC in August 1997. As agreed to in the stipulation, Northern Border
Pipeline implemented a new depreciation schedule with an extended depreciable
life, a $31 million settlement adjustment mechanism that effectively reduces the
allowed return on rate base after completion of construction of the Chicago
Project in December 1998, and the project cost containment mechanism. The
purpose of the project cost containment mechanism was to limit Northern Border
Pipeline's ability to include cost overruns in rate base and to provide
incentives to Northern Border Pipeline for cost underruns. The stipulation
required the budgeted cost for the Chicago project, which had been initially
filed with the FERC for approximately $839 million, to be adjusted for the
effects of inflation and for costs attributable to changes in project scope, as
defined by the stipulation.

In the determination of the project cost containment mechanism, the actual
cost of the project is compared to the budgeted cost. If there is a cost overrun
of $6 million or less, the shippers will bear the actual cost of the project
through its inclusion in Northern Border Pipeline's rate base. If there is a
cost savings of $6 million or less, the full budgeted cost will be included in
the rate base. If there is a cost overrun or cost savings of more than $6
million but less than 5% of the budgeted cost, that amount will be allocated 50%
to Northern Border Pipeline and 50% to its shippers (50% of the difference
between 5% of the budgeted cost and $6 million will be included in Northern
Border Pipeline's rate base and 50% will be excluded). All cost overruns
exceeding 5% of the budgeted cost are excluded from the rate base.

The budgeted cost of the Chicago project, as adjusted for the effects of
inflation and project scope changes, has been estimated as of the project's
in-service date to be $889 million, with the final construction cost estimated
to be $892 million. Thus, Northern Border Pipeline's notification to the FERC
and its shippers in late December 1998 reflected the conclusion that, based on
the information as of that date, once the budgeted cost has been established,
there would be no adjustment to rate base related to the project cost
containment mechanism.

Northern Border Pipeline is obligated by the stipulation to update its
calculation of the
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project cost containment mechanism six months after the project's in-service
date. The stipulation requires the calculation of the project cost containment
mechanism to be reviewed by an independent national accounting firm. Several
parties to the stipulation advised the FERC that they may have questions and
desire further information about the report, and may possibly wish to test it or
the final report and its conclusions at an appropriate proceeding in the future.
The parties also stated that if it is determined that Northern Border Pipeline
is not permitted to include some claimed costs for the Chicago project in its
rate base, they reserve their rights to seek refunds, with interest, of any
overcollections.

Although TC PipelLines believes the initial computation has been completed
under the terms of the stipulation, it is unable to make a definitive
determination at this time whether any adjustments will be required. Should
subsequent developments cause costs not to be recovered under the project cost
containment mechanism, a non-cash charge to write down transmission plant may
result and that charge could be material to the operating results of TC
PipelLines.

AMORTIZATION OF INCENTIVE RATE OF RETURN

The Northern Border Pipeline rate base includes, as an additional amount, a
one-time ratemaking adjustment to reflect the receipt of a financial incentive
on the original construction of the pipeline. Since inception, the rate base
adjustment, called an incentive rate of return, has been amortized through
monthly additions to the cost of service. As a result, TC PipelLines' pro forma
net income for 1998 includes $4.2 million for such amortization along with a
related income tax allowance. This impact on net income is expected to continue
until November 2001 when the incentive rate of return is fully amortized. See
"Business of Northern Border Pipeline--FERC Regulation--COST OF SERVICE TARIFF."

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Northern Border Pipeline's interest rate exposure results from its variable
rate borrowings from commercial banks. To mitigate potential fluctuations in
interest rates, Northern Border Pipeline maintains a significant portion of its
debt portfolio in fixed rate debt. Northern Border Pipeline also uses interest
rate swap agreements to increase the portion of its fixed rate debt and uses
interest rate forward agreements to establish an approximate effective borrowing
rate for anticipated long-term debt issuances.

If interest rates average one percentage point more than rates in effect as
of December 31, 1998, Northern Border Pipeline's annual interest expense would
increase by approximately $5.2 million. This amount has been determined by
considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on Northern Border
Pipeline's variable rate borrowings and interest rate swap agreements
outstanding as of December 31, 1998. Northern Border Pipeline's tariff provides
the pipeline an opportunity to recover, among other items, interest expense.
Therefore, TC PipeLines believes that Northern Border Pipeline would be allowed
to recover the increase in its interest expense, if it were to occur. Thus,
there would not be any material impact on Northern Border Pipeline's annual
earnings and cash flow from a hypothetical one percentage point increase in
interest rates.

YEAR 2000

NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE

Northern Border Pipeline, similar to most businesses, relies heavily on
information systems technology to operate in an efficient and effective manner.
Much of this technology takes the form of computers and associated hardware for
data processing and analysis. In addition, a great deal of information
processing technology is embedded in microelectronic devices.
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The Year 2000 problem results from the use in computer hardware and software
of two digits rather than four digits to define the applicable year. As a
result, computer programs that have date-sensitive software may recognize a date
using "00" as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000.

If not corrected, many computer applications could fail or create erroneous
results. The effects of the Year 2000 problem are compounded because of the
interdependence of computer and telecommunication systems in the United States
and throughout the world. This interdependence is true for Northern Border
Pipeline and its respective suppliers and customers.

Northern Border Pipeline has developed a plan, which will be modified as
events warrant, to address Year 2000 problems. This plan is designed to take
reasonable steps to prevent mission-critical functions from being impaired due
to the Year 2000 problem. Mission critical functions are pipeline operations,
operated in a manner that is safe for personnel and the public. Pipeline
operations include the flow of natural gas through the pipeline with the
operation of thirteen natural gas fired compressor stations, two electric
powered compressor stations, measurement stations for receipt and delivery of
gas and the supervisory control and data acquisition computer system.

Northern Border Pipeline is committed to allocating the resources necessary
to implement this plan. A core team of individuals has been established to
implement and complete the plan. The plan includes developing a comprehensive
component inventory of computer hardware, software, embedded chips and
third-party interfaces; assessing the risk of non-compliance of each component;
identifying the impact of any component failure; assessing Year 2000 compliance
of each component; identifying and implementing solutions for non-compliance of
components; testing of solutions implemented; and developing contingency plans
for critical components and systems.

As of February 1999, computer software, hardware, embedded chips, and
third-party interfaces have been identified, inventoried, and assessed. Where
necessary, remediation, replacement, or adequate work-arounds have been
identified and implemented or are in the process of being implemented. The
workaround Northern Border Pipeline has employed in very limited instances is to
turn the system clocks back to a past date so that the systems will not
roll-over to the year 2000 for several years. At this time, TC PipeLines
believes that all of Northern Border Pipeline's mission critical systems are
Year 2000 ready. As far as non-mission critical systems, TC PipelLines estimates
that at the current time the systems are approximately 90% Year 2000 ready,
based on the work effort involved. Additional work remaining consists primarily
of completing upgrades of certain off-the-shelf software.

Northern Border Pipeline's plan recognizes that the computer,
telecommunications and other systems of outside entities have the potential for
major, mission-critical, adverse effects on the conduct of Northern Border
Pipeline's business. Northern Border Pipeline does not have control of these
outside systems. However, its plan includes an ongoing process of identifying
and contacting outside entities whose systems have or may have a substantial
effect on Northern Border Pipeline's ability to continue to conduct the
mission-critical aspects of its businesses without disruption from Year 2000
problems. The plan requires Northern Border Pipeline to attempt to inventory and
assess the extent to which these outside systems may not be Year 2000
compatible. Northern Border Pipeline's Year 2000 team will attempt reasonably to
coordinate with these outside entities in an ongoing effort to obtain assurances
that these outside systems will be Year 2000 compatible well before January 1,
2000.

A listing of critical outside entities has been developed which includes
shippers, electrical suppliers, and interconnecting pipelines. Currently,
Northern Border Pipeline's Year 2000 team is in the process of contacting
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these entities to determine their Year 2000 readiness and the extent to which
joint testing or mutual contingency planning is required. Northern Border
Pipeline has made initial contacts with all critical third-party entities and
has received responses from all but two of the parties contacted. Northern
Border Pipeline will continue its efforts with the remaining two entities to
determine their Year 2000 readiness. All outside entities contacted have Year
2000 readiness programs underway and they expect to be Year 2000 ready before
the end of the year. The assessment of the Year 2000 readiness of outside
entities is an important factor in the internal contingency planning process.

The processes of inventorying, assessing, analyzing, remediating through
replacement or adequate workarounds, testing, and developing contingency plans
for mission-critical functions in anticipation of the Year 2000 are necessarily
iterative processes. That is, the steps are repeated as Northern Border
Pipeline's Year 2000 team learns more about the Year 2000 problem and its
effects on internal systems and on outside systems, and about the effects that
embedded chips may have on Northern Border Pipeline's systems and outside
systems. As the steps are repeated, it is likely that new problems will be
identified and addressed. TC PipeLines knows of no specific Northern Border
Pipeline systems that are susceptible to problems that can only be identified
after January 1, 2000.

Northern Border Pipeline has in place a Year 2000 contingency plan designed
to address specific Year 2000 related problems including loss of all commercial
electrical power, loss of all commercial telecommunications, and unforeseen
failures in critical systems. In the event of loss of commercial power, all
critical Northern Border Pipeline facilities have back up power sources
including auxiliary generators and battery back up except for the two electric
powered compressor stations. Northern Border Pipeline has its own internal,
private communications systems for voice, data, and the supervisory control and
data acquisition computer system traffic. All of the communications sites have
back-up power sources. Northern Border Pipeline also has a redundant back-up
site for critical operation and systems functions. All compressor facilities
will be manned at year end so that unforeseen issues can be dealt with
immediately.

Northern Border Pipeline has not incurred material historical costs
associated with the Year 2000 issues. Further, TC PipelLines anticipates that
Northern Border Pipeline's future costs of implementing the plan will not be
material. Although TC PipeLines believes Northern Border Pipeline's estimates
are reasonable, there can be no assurance, for the reasons stated in the
following paragraph, that the actual costs of implementing the plan will not
differ materially from the estimated costs or that Northern Border Pipeline will
not be adversely affected by Year 2000 issues.

The extent and magnitude of the Year 2000 problem as it may affect Northern
Border Pipeline is difficult to predict or quantify for a number of reasons.
Among the most important is the potential complexity of locating embedded
microprocessors that may be in a great variety of hardware used for process or
flow control, environmental, transportation, access, communications and other
systems. TC PipelLines believes that Northern Border Pipeline will be able to
identify and remediate mission-critical systems containing embedded
microprocessors.

Other important difficulties relate to the lack of control over and
difficulty inventorying, assessing, remediating, verifying and testing outside
systems; the complexity of evaluating all software (computer code) internal to
Northern Border Pipeline that may not be Year 2000 compatible; and the potential
limited availability of certain necessary internal or external resources,
including but not limited to trained hardware and software engineers,
technicians and other personnel to perform adequate remediation, verification
and testing of internal systems or outside systems.

Year 2000 costs are difficult to estimate accurately because of
unanticipated vendor delays, technical difficulties, the impact of tests of
outside systems, and similar events. There
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can be no assurance for example that all outside systems will be adequately
remediated so that they are Year 2000 ready by January 1, 2000, or by some
earlier date, so as not to create a material disruption to business. If, despite
diligent, prudent efforts under the plan, there are Year 2000-related failures
that create substantial disruptions to Northern Border Pipeline's business, the
adverse impact could be material. Moreover, the estimated costs of pursuing the
current course of action do not take into account the costs, if any, that might
be incurred as a result of Year 2000-related failures that occur despite
implementation of the plan, as it may be modified over time.

In a recent SEC release regarding Year 2000 disclosures, the SEC stated that
public companies must disclose the most reasonably likely worst case Year 2000
scenario. Analysis of the most reasonably likely worst case Year 2000 scenarios
Northern Border Pipeline may face leads to contemplation of the following
possibilities: widespread failure of electrical, gas, and similar supplies by
utilities serving Northern Border Pipeline; widespread disruption of the
services of communications common carriers; similar disruption to means and
modes of transportation for Northern Border Pipeline and its employees,
contractors, suppliers, and customers; significant disruption to Northern Border
Pipeline's ability to gain access to, and remain working in, office buildings
and other facilities; and the failure of outside systems, the effects of which
would have a cumulative material adverse impact on Northern Border Pipeline's
mission-critical systems.

Among other things, Northern Border Pipeline could face substantial claims
due to service interruptions, inability to fulfill contractual obligations,
inability to account for certain revenues or obligations or to bill shippers
accurately and on a timely basis, and increased expenses associated with
litigation, stabilization of operations following mission-critical failures, and
the execution of contingency plans. Northern Border Pipeline could also
experience an inability by shippers to pay, on a timely basis or at all,
obligations owed to Northern Border Pipeline. Under these circumstances, the
adverse effect on Northern Border Pipeline, and the diminution of Northern
Border Pipeline's revenues, would be material, although not quantifiable at this
time. Northern Border Pipeline will continue to monitor business conditions with
the aim of assessing and quantifying material adverse effects, if any, that
result or may result from the Year 2000 problem.

OUR GENERAL PARTNER

TC PipelLines and the general partner are not materially dependent upon
computer systems to conduct their businesses. Accordingly, we do not believe
that the Year 2000 problem will have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations, except as to any material adverse
effect that may result from any Year 2000 problem in Northern Border Pipeline,
as discussed above.
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The supply of Canadian natural gas imported into the United States increased
from 1.30 trillion cubic feet in 1988 to 2.96 trillion cubic feet in 1997, an
increase of approximately 128%. Over the same period, total United States
natural gas demand increased by approximately 22%. Consequently, Canadian
natural gas has increased its market share in the United States of total natural
gas consumption from 7.2% in 1988 to over 13% in 1997.

IMPORTS OF CANADIAN NATURAL GAS
(TRILLIONS OF CUBIC FEET)

TOTAL U.S. NET IMPORTS FROM

YEAR CONSUMPTION CANADA

S 18.03 1.30
1989, . 18.80 1.38
1990, . s 18.72 1.47
S 1 o 19.04 1.72
1002, e 19.54 2.16
1993, . e 20.28 2.31
1994 . i e s 20.71 2.62
S 1 21.58 2.84
1996, . i e 21.97 2.94
1997 . s 21.98 2.96

Source: Energy Information Administration, Natural Gas Monthly August 1998, U.S.
Natural Gas Imports and Exports--1997, Tables SR1, SR4 and SR5

The majority of this increasing Canadian supply has been supported by the
extensive natural gas reserves found in the western Canadian sedimentary basin,
located in the provinces of Alberta, British Columbia, and Saskatchewan. While
this basin had remaining established natural gas reserves of 65 trillion cubic
feet as of December 31, 1997, it remains relatively undeveloped with a reserves
to production ratio of approximately 11 years at current production levels.
These estimates are based on information from the Canadian Association of
Petroleum Producers and internal analyses by TransCanada PipelLines. Remaining
established natural gas reserves are those reserves that can be recovered under
present and anticipated economic conditions using current technology and
technical judgement. In comparison, the more mature natural gas basins in the
lower 48 United States, with remaining reserves of approximately 157 trillion
cubic feet, have a reserves to production ratio of approximately 8.4 years.
These estimates are from the Energy Information Administration 1997 Annual
Report dated September 1998. The western Canadian sedimentary basin is poised
for production increases in the future as the basin undergoes further
development; over the last four years natural gas production increased by 10%,
and is expected to increase by 26% over the twelve year period from 1998 to
2010.

57

NET CANADIAN
MARKET SHARE

2%
. 3%
.8%
1%
1%
4%
.6%
2%
. 4%
4%



WESTERN CANADIAN SEDIMENTARY BASIN MARKETABLE NATURAL GAS PRODUCTION:
HISTORICAL AND FORECAST

1995(1) 1996(1) 1997(1) 1998(2)
Production (billions of cubic
feet per day).................. 14.6 15.3 15.5 16.1
Production Growth from 1995...... 5% 6% 10%
2010(2)
Production (billions of cubic
feet per day)............oo... 20.3
Production Growth from 1995...... 39%

(1) Canadian Association of Petroleum Producers Statistical Handbook.

(2) "The Future Natural Gas Supply Capability of the Western Canadian
Sedimentary Basin 1997-2019", prepared by Sproule Associates Limited for
TransCanada PipeLines Limited, April 1998.

The Northern Border pipeline system currently serves the midwest region of
the United States, including Ohio, Wiconsin, Indiana, Michigan and Illinois. In
addition, Northern Border transports gas for delivery in Montana, North Dakota,
South Dakota, Minnesota and Iowa. Growth in the midwest is expected to continue
at a rate of 1.4% per year until 2010 which is equivalent to a total incremental
demand of 1.9 billion cubic feet per day.

One of the key objectives of our business strategy is to participate in
extensions and expansions of our current Northern Border Pipeline asset as well
as pursue select acquisitions of other high quality pipeline assets. We intend
to target the northeastern United States with our strategy and thereby
capitalize on the growing demand for natural gas in this region, which includes
the states of Maine, Massachusetts, Vermont, Rhode Island, New Hampshire,
Connecticut, New York, New Jersey and Pennsylvania. Between 1993 and 1997,
natural gas demand in these northeastern states increased by 18% and currently
represents 14.0% of the total United States demand. This trend is expected to
continue, with natural gas demand in the northeast region forecast to grow at a
rate of approximately 2.5% per year until at least 2010. This growth rate would
result in a total incremental demand over that period of 2.8 billion cubic feet
per day.

HISTORICAL & FORECAST NATURAL GAS DEMAND(1)(2)(3)

NORTHEAST
TOTAL NORTHEAST PERCENTAGE
U.S. GAS GAS OF GAS
DEMAND DEMAND DEMAND
(BCF/D) (BCF/D) (%)
1008, ittt 55.6 7.4 13.3%
1004, ot 56.7 7.8 13.8%
1005 . ottt 59.1 8.4 14.2%
1006 .+ttt e 60.2 8.4 14.0%
1007 0 et e 60.2 8.7 14.5%
=TT 60.2 8.4 14.0%
1000, 1ttt e e 61.9 8.7 14.1%
2000, .\t e e e 62.9 8.8 14.0%
2005 et e e 69.8 10.0 14.3%
2000 vttt e e 76.7 11.2 14.6%

1999(2)

18%

MIDWEST

GAS
DEMAND

(BCF/D)

10

10.
10.
11.

NOoOWRONR,ROR O

2000(2)

22%

2005(2)

MIDWEST
PERCENTAGE
OF GAS

DEMAI

ND

.0%
.8%
. 9%
. 4%
.8%
. 9%
. 9%

. 9%
.6%

36%



(1) Actuals through 1997 are from the Energy Information Administration's
"Historical Natural Gas Annual 1930 Through 1997", Table 22, plus an
adjustment for lease, plant, and pipeline fuel.

(2) Forecast values from 1998 to 2010 are based on an average of forecasts,
including Energy Information Administration's "1999 Annual Energy Outlook",
the Gas Research Institute's "1999 Baseline Projections Databook", and
Standard & Poor's DRI "Fall/Winter 1998/99 Energy Service U.S. Outlook".
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The growth in natural gas demand in the midwest and northeast regions of the
United States primarily reflects growth in the electrical generation business,
including cogeneration and independent power producers, as well as growth in the
commercial and industrial sectors. In addition, the influence of the Clean Air
Act and other environmental legislation has driven demand for cleaner burning
fuels such as natural gas instead of coal or oil. In the future, we believe
these factors will continue to increase the demand for natural gas, and
therefore the demand for pipeline capacity to transport this gas, in the United
States.
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BUSINESS OF TC PIPELINES

We were recently formed to acquire, own and participate in the management
and growth of United States based pipeline assets. We will initially own a 30%
interest in Northern Border Pipeline. Our general partner will manage and
operate our activities.

BUSINESS STRATEGY AND COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS OF TC PIPELINES
Our business strategy is twofold:

1. ACQUIRE UNITED STATES TRANSMISSION ASSETS FROM TRANSCANADA

TransCanada is one of the largest energy services companies in North
America. One of TransCanada's core strengths is the identification, development
and construction of new pipelines. TransCanada has ownership interests in
numerous United States transmission assets. TransCanada views TC PipelLines as
its preferred acquisition and growth vehicle in the United States for pipeline
assets. We believe that TransCanada's United States based pipeline assets will
provide us with acquisition opportunities. Furthermore, we believe that
opportunities may exist to acquire from TransCanada non-natural gas transmission
assets that are consistent with our strategy of investing in businesses with
relatively stable cash flows and additional growth opportunities. Our strategy
is designed to complement our existing assets and increase cash distributions to
unitholders.

2. BENEFIT FROM THE INCREASED FLOW OF NATURAL GAS FROM WESTERN CANADA TO
GROWING MARKETS IN THE UNITED STATES

The historical growth in natural gas demand in the northeast region of the
United States has resulted from a number of factors including growth in the
electrical generation business and the influence of Clean Air legislation which
mandates the use of cleaner-burning fuels. This growth in natural gas demand is
projected to continue at a rate of approximately 2.5% per year until at least
2010. At the same time, the traditional sources of natural gas supply to this
region are characteristically more mature United States basins which are
expected to have higher long-run supply costs relative to the western Canadian
sedimentary basin. As a result, we believe that the abundant natural gas
reserves in the western Canadian sedimentary basin have the opportunity to
capture a share of the growing demand in the northeast region of the United
States in the foreseeable future. We believe TC PipelLines can capitalize on the
growth opportunities inherent in the northeast markets through our participation
in further expansions and extensions of the Northern Border pipeline system, as
well as through select acquisitions of ownership interests in other United
States pipeline transmission and related assets. Through this strategy we intend
to generate increasing amounts of cash from shippers to distribute to our
unitholders.

Through our participation in expansions and extensions of the Northern
Border pipeline system, we will increase the amount of gas transported from
western Canada to the United States, create a wider range of end market options
for our shippers and facilitate the flow of natural gas to the growing markets
in the northeast United States. Project 2000 is a proposed Northern Border
Pipeline extension which complements our business strategy.

We will also focus on acquiring significant ownership positions in
fully-operating United States pipeline transmission and related assets with
minimal development risk, relatively stable cash flows and growth potential.
These acquisitions will primarily be intended to increase the flow of natural
gas from the western Canadian sedimentary basin to the northeastern United
States. Northern Border Pipeline is part of a pathway between pipeline systems
accessing supply in western Canada and pipeline systems serving the market areas
in the northeastern United States. We envision completing acquisitions that
complement the strategic location of Northern Border Pipeline and facilitate the
flow of natural gas to the growing markets in the northeastern United
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States. Our objective is to create access to new markets for our shippers by
participating in the establishment of these cross-country routes.

WE BELIEVE WE HAVE VARIOUS STRENGTHS THAT WILL ASSIST IN IMPLEMENTING OUR
STRATEGY .
THESE STRENGTHS INCLUDE:

- PARTIAL OWNERSHIP IN A LARGE AND EFFICIENT PIPELINE SYSTEM WELL-POSITIONED
FOR FUTURE GROWTH. The Northern Border pipeline system links large natural
gas reserves in western Canada with a number of United States interstate
pipeline systems. We believe that the interconnections with other
interstate natural gas transmission systems as well as the cost
competitiveness of its tariff have made the Northern Border pipeline
system an attractive transportation option for shippers. In addition, we
believe that due to its strategic location, Northern Border Pipeline is
well positioned for further growth and provides TC PipelLines with a base
to serve developing natural gas markets in the
northeast United States.

- ACCESS TO THE EXPERIENCED MANAGEMENT OF TRANSCANADA. Through our general
partner we will have access to the management of TransCanada, one of the
largest energy services companies in North America and the largest in
Canada. TransCanada has been in the business of designing, constructing
and operating pipeline transmission assets for 40 years, and we expect to
benefit from the services of its management which has substantial
experience in the transmission business, knowledge of United States
regulatory matters, and a demonstrated ability to operate pipeline assets
in an efficient and profitable manner.

- ACCESS TO ACQUISITION OPPORTUNITIES. One significant component of
TransCanada's corporate strategy is to develop markets in the United
States for the consumption of western Canadian natural gas. TransCanada
has developed and expects to continue to develop pipeline assets which
either link western Canadian natural gas supplies directly to United
States markets or complement pipelines which do so. TransCanada views TC
PipeLines as its preferred acquisition and growth vehicle in the United
States, and hence, TransCanada's current and future transmission assets
may provide acquisition opportunities for us. However, TransCanada has no
obligation to offer any assets to us and no assurances can be given that
it will offer us any assets in the future or, if offered, that they will
be offered on terms attractive to us.

- STABLE AND GROWING CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS. Pipeline transportation of
natural gas in a regulated environment is a relatively stable business,
well suited to serve as a base for our strategy. For example, as of
December 31, 1998, at least 97% of the Northern Border pipeline system's
capacity was under contract through mid-September 2003 with a weighted
average contract life, based upon annual cost of service obligations, of
slightly under eight years. Our strategy of growth through the acquisition
of ownership interests in developed, relatively stable cash flow-producing
assets is designed to minimize some of the risks inherent in the
identification, development and construction of new pipelines.

- ACCESS TO CAPITAL. We believe the efficiency of the partnership structure
and access to debt and equity markets enable us to compete successfully
with large corporate buyers to acquire developed natural gas pipeline
transmission assets in the United States.

No assurance can be given that we will be successful in implementing our
business strategy.
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BUSINESS OF NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE
STRUCTURE

TC PipelLines owns a 30% general partner interest in Northern Border
Pipeline. The remaining 70% general partner interest is currently owned by
Northern Border Partners, a publicly traded limited partnership that is not
affiliated with TC PipeLines.

The four-member Northern Border Pipeline management committee oversees
management of Northern Border Pipeline. TC PipelLines controls 30% of the voting
power of the Northern Border Pipeline management committee and designates one
member. Northern Border Partners controls 70% of the voting power of the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee and designates three members.

Under the Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement, voting power on
the Northern Border Pipeline management committee is allocated among Northern
Border Partners' three general partners in proportion to their general partner
interests in Northern Border Partners. As a result, the 70% voting power of
Northern Border Partners' representatives on the Northern Border Pipeline
management committee is allocated as follows: 35% to Northern Plains, 22.75% to
Pan Border and 12.25% to Northwest Border. Northern Plains and Pan Border are
subsidiaries of Enron. Northwest Border is a subsidiary of The wWilliams
Companies. Each of Northern Plains, Pan Border and Northwest Border has the
right to designate one member of the Northern Border Pipeline management
committee. Enron controls 57.75% of the voting power of the Northern Border
Pipeline management committee and has the right to designate two of the members
of this management committee.

The Northern Border pipeline system is operated by Northern Plains under an
operating agreement. As of December 31, 1998, Northern Plains employed
approximately 190 individuals located at its headquarters in Omaha, Nebraska and
at locations along the pipeline route. Northern Plains' employees are not
represented by any labor union and are not covered by any collective bargaining
agreements.

GENERAL

Northern Border Pipeline generates revenues from the receipt and delivery of
natural gas at points along the Northern Border pipeline system according to
individual transportation contracts with its shippers. Northern Border
Pipelines' revenues are equal to the cost of service actually incurred for
providing service to its shippers.

A FERC-regulated tariff specifies the calculation of amounts to be paid by
shippers and the general terms and conditions of transportation service on the
Northern Border pipeline system.

The tariff provides an opportunity to recover:

- all of the operations and maintenance costs of the pipeline,

- taxes other than income taxes,

- interest,

- depreciation and amortization,

- an allowance for income taxes and

- a regulated return on equity.

Northern Border Pipeline is generally allowed to collect from its shippers a
return on rate base as well as recover that rate base through depreciation and
amortization.



In the absence of additions to the rate base, the amount received by
Northern Border Pipeline from its regulated return on equity decreases as the
rate base is recovered.

Billings for firm transportation agreements are based on contracted volumes
to determine the proportionate share of the cost of service and are not
dependent upon the percentage of available capacity actually used.

Northern Border Pipeline does not own the natural gas that it transports and
therefore
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Northern Border Pipeline does not assume any natural gas commodity price risk.

THE NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE SYSTEM

With the recent completion of the Chicago project in December 1998, Northern
Border Pipeline owns a 1,214-mile United States interstate pipeline system that
transports natural gas from the Montana-Saskatchewan border near Port of Morgan,
Montana, to interconnecting pipelines in the upper midwest of the United States.
The Northern Border pipeline system was initially constructed in 1982 and was
expanded and/or extended in 1991, 1992, and 1998.

The Northern Border pipeline system has pipeline access to natural gas
reserves in the western Canadian sedimentary basin in the provinces of Alberta,
British Columbia and Saskatchewan in Canada, as well as the wWilliston Basin in
the United States. The Pipeline System also has access to production of
synthetic gas processed at the Dakota Gasification Plant in North Dakota.

The Northern Border pipeline system consists of 822 miles of 42-inch
diameter pipe designed to transport 2,373 million cubic feet per day from the
Canadian border to Ventura, Iowa; 30-inch diameter pipe and 36-inch diameter
pipe, each approximately 147 miles in length, designed to transport 1,300
million cubic feet per day from Ventura, Iowa to Harper, Iowa; and 226 miles of
36-inch diameter pipe and 19 miles of 30-inch diameter pipe designed to
transport 645 million cubic feet per day from Harper, Iowa to a terminus near
Manhattan, Illinois (Chicago area). Along the pipeline there are fifteen
compressor stations with total rated horsepower of 476,500 and measurement
facilities to support the receipt and delivery of gas at various points. Other
facilities include five field offices and a microwave communication system with
fifty-one tower sites.

At its northern end, the Northern Border pipeline system is connected to
TransCanada's majority-owned Foothills (Sask.) Pipe Lines Ltd. system in Canada.
The Foothills (Sask.) system is connected to the Alberta system of TransCanada
and the pipeline system of the unaffiliated Transgas Limited in Saskatchewan.
The Alberta system gathers and transports a substantial portion of Canadian
natural gas production. The Northern Border pipeline system also connects with
facilities of Williston Basin Interstate Pipeline at Glen Ullin and Buford,
North Dakota, facilities of Amerada Hess Corporation at wWatford City, North
Dakota and facilities of Dakota Gasification Company at Hebron, North Dakota in
the northern portion of the system.

INTERCONNECTS

Northern Border Pipeline connects with multiple pipelines which allow its
shippers to access the various natural gas markets served by those pipelines.
The Northern Border pipeline system interconnects with pipeline facilities of:

- Northern Natural Gas Company, an Enron subsidiary, at Ventura, Iowa as
well as multiple smaller interconnections in South Dakota, Minnesota and
Iowa;

- Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America at Harper, Iowa;

- MidAmerican Energy Company at Iowa City and Davenport, Iowa;

- Interstate Power Company at Prophetstown, Illinois;

- Northern Illinois Gas Company at Troy Grove and Minooka, Illinois;

- Midwestern Gas Transmission Company near Channahon, Illinois;

- ANR Pipeline Company near Manhattan, Illinois; and

- The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company near Manhattan, Illinois (Chicago

area) at the terminus of the Northern Border pipeline system.

The Ventura, Iowa interconnect with Northern Natural Gas Company functions
as a large market center, where natural gas transported on the Northern Border
pipeline system is sold, traded and received for transport to significant
consuming markets in the Midwest and to interconnecting pipeline facilities
destined for other markets.
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PROJECT 2000

In October 1998, Northern Border Pipeline applied to the FERC for approval
of its Project 2000 to expand and extend its Northern Border pipeline system
into Indiana by November 2000. If approved and constructed, Project 2000 will
strategically position Northern Border Pipeline to move natural gas east and
will place it in direct contact with major industrial natural gas consumers.
Project 2000 would afford shippers on the extended pipeline system access to the
northern Indiana industrial zone, including Northern Indiana Public Service
Company, a major midwest local distribution company with a large industrial load
requirement.

Permanent releases of capacity have been negotiated between several existing
and project shippers originally included in the October 1998 application. On
March 25, 1999, Northern Border Pipeline amended its application to the FERC to
reflect these changes.

Project 2000 revised capital expenditures are estimated to be $126 million
and, with timely regulatory approvals, the general partner anticipates
construction activities to begin in late 1999. TC PipelLines' share of capital
expenditures is expected to be approximately $12 million payable during 2000.
Proposed facilities will include approximately 34.4 miles of 36-inch pipeline
and a total net increase of 22,500 compressor horsepower at three compressor
stations, one meter station and related facilities.

As a result of the proposed revised expansion, the pipeline will have the
ability to receive 1,484 million cubic feet per day from Ventura to Harper,
Iowa, 844 million cubic feet per day from Harper to Manhattan, Illinois, and 544
million cubic feet per day on the new extension from Manhattan to North Hayden,
Indiana.

Five project shippers have agreed to take transportation service of all the
capacity, subject to Northern Border Pipeline satisfying specific conditions
including receipt of FERC and other regulatory approvals by specific dates. The
Project 2000 shippers are: Bethlehem Steel Corporation, El Paso Energy Marketing
Company, Northern Indiana Public Service Company, Peoples Energy Services
Corporation, and The People's Light and Coke Company.

The proposed pipeline extension will interconnect with Northern Indiana
Public Service Company at the terminus near North Hayden, Indiana. Northern
Indiana Public Service has confirmed to Northern Border Pipeline that the
interconnect will be able to receive the required capacity.

COMPETITION

Northern Border Pipeline competes with other pipeline companies that
transport natural gas from the western Canadian sedimentary basin or that
transport natural gas to markets in the midwest. Its competitive position is
affected by the availability of Canadian natural gas for export and demand for
natural gas in the United States. Shippers of natural gas from the western
Canadian sedimentary basin have other options to transport Canadian natural gas
to the United States, including transportation on pipelines eastward in Canada
or to markets on the west coast.

The Alliance Pipeline recently received Canadian and United States
regulatory approvals. The sponsors of Alliance have announced their plans for
the Alliance pipeline to be in service by late 2000. If constructed, the
Alliance Pipeline would compete directly with Northern Border Pipeline. The
Alliance Pipeline would transport gas from the western Canadian sedimentary
basin to the midwestern United States.

It is expected that the Alliance Pipeline would provide its shippers with an
option to ship liquids-rich gas. Further deliveries of natural gas by Alliance
without the liquids-rich element would require facilities to extract the natural
gas liquids. We understand that Alliance may build a natural gas liquids
extraction plant near the pipeline's terminus in Chicago.

While there may be a large increase in natural gas moving from the western
Canadian sedimentary basin to Chicago if the Alliance project is completed,
there are several
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additional projects proposed to transport natural gas from the Chicago area to
growing eastern markets. The proposed projects currently being pursued by
unrelated third parties are targeting markets in eastern Canada and the
northeast United States. None of these proposed projects have received final
regulatory approval.

TransCanada owns and operates a pipeline system which transports natural gas
from the same natural gas reserves in western Canada that supply Northern Border
Pipeline's customers. Shippers of TransCanada compete for the same supplies of
natural gas as shippers of Northern Border Pipeline.

Natural gas is also produced in the United States and transported by other
competing unaffiliated pipeline systems to the same destinations as the Northern
Border pipeline system.

SHIPPERS

The Northern Border pipeline system serves a number of shippers with diverse
financial and market profiles. Based upon shippers' cost of service obligations,
93% of the firm capacity, is contracted by producers and marketers. The
remaining firm capacity is contracted to local distribution companies (5%) and
interstate pipelines (2%). As of December 31, 1998, the termination dates of
these contracts ranged from October 31, 2001 to December 21, 2013 and the
weighted average contract-1life, based upon annual cost of service obligations
was slightly under eight years with at least 97% of capacity contracted through
mid-September 2003.

In 1998, the five shippers that contributed the greatest amount of revenue
to Northern Border Pipeline were as follows: Pan-Alberta Gas U.S. Inc. (44.4%),
TransCanada PipeLines Limited, an affiliate of our general partner (7.2%), Husky
Gas Marketing Inc. (4.9%), ProGas USA Inc. (4.1%) and PanCanadian Energy
Services Inc (3.8%). No other shipper was responsible for more than 4.0% of
Northern Border Pipeline's revenue in 1998. The 20 largest shippers, in total,
were responsible for 95.9% of Northern Border Pipeline's revenue in 1998.

Northern Border Pipeline's recent expansion and extension in 1998, the
Chicago project, was underpinned by a large group of shippers which now
represent 38.9% of the Northern Border pipeline system's cost of service. Those
shippers signed contracts for a minimum of ten years from the date the Chicago
project facilities came in service, with the earliest termination date being
December 21, 2008. The five largest shippers which were part of the Chicago
project expansion are: TransCanada PipelLines Limited, an affiliate of our
general partner (5.3%), PanCanadian Energy Services Inc. (4.5%), Enron Capital &
Trade Resources Corp, an affiliate of Northern Border Partners, L.P. (3.9%), AEC
Marketing (U.S.A) Inc. (3.1%), and Hess Energy Services Company LLC (2.9%).

Currently, based on their proportionate shares of the cost of service of the
Northern Border pipeline system for the first six months of 1999 the five
largest shippers are: Pan-Alberta Gas U.S. Inc. (26.5%), TransCanada PipeLines
Limited, an affiliate of our general partner (10.8%), PanCanadian Energy
Services Inc (7.0%), Enron Capital & Trade Resources Corp, an affiliate of
Northern Border Partners (5.3%) and PetroCanada Hydrocarbons Inc. (4.1%). No
other shipper is currently responsible for more than 5.0% of Northern Border
Pipeline's cost of service. The 20 largest shippers, in total, are responsible
for an estimated 88.2% of Northern Border Pipeline's cost of service.

There are four contracts totaling 143 million cubic feet per day, 3.8% of
firm capacity, with termination dates of December 31, 2008 or July 31, 2009 that
may be terminated by the shippers if the production of synthetic gas at the
Dakota Gasification Plant by Dakota Gasification Company ceases.

Northern Border Pipeline's largest shipper, Pan-Alberta Gas U.S., currently
holds 707 million cubic feet per day, 26.5% of cost of service, under three
contracts with terms that have been extended to October 31, 2003. The extension
of the termination date for one of the contracts covering 150 million cubic feet
per day is subject to further authorization by the FERC. An affiliate of Enron
provides guaranties
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for 300 million cubic feet per day of Pan-Alberta Gas U.S.'s contractual
obligations through October 31, 2001. In addition, Pan-Alberta Gas U.S.'s
remaining capacity is supported by various credit support arrangements,
including, among others, a letter of credit, a guaranty from an interstate
pipeline company through October 31, 2001 for 150 million cubic feet per day, an
escrow account, and an upstream capacity transfer agreement.

Some of Northern Border Pipeline's shippers are affiliated with TransCanada
and the general partners and subsidiaries of Northern Border Partners.
TransCanada holds contracts representing 10.8% of the proportionate share of the
cost of service. Enron Capital & Trade Resources Corp., a subsidiary of Enron
holds contracts representing 5.3% of the proportionate share of the cost of
service. TransContinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation, a subsidiary of Williams,
holds contracts representing 0.8% of the proportionate share of the cost of
service.

Order 636, as discussed below under FERC Regulation, has created a secondary
market in existing Northern Border Pipeline capacity. There have been temporary
releases of capacity where the releasing party receives credit against its firm
transportation contract for revenues received as a result of the temporary
release of the contractually committed capacity to third parties. The releasing
party is not relieved of its obligations under its contract. In addition to the
temporary releases, several shippers have permanently released a portion of
their capacity to other shippers who have agreed to comply with the underlying
contractual and regulatory obligations associated with that capacity.

FERC REGULATION
GENERAL

Northern Border Pipeline is subject to extensive regulation by the FERC as a
"natural gas company" under the Natural Gas Act. Under the Natural Gas Act and
the Natural Gas Policy Act, the FERC has jurisdiction over Northern Border
Pipeline with respect to virtually all aspects of its business, including:

- transportation of natural gas;

- rates and charges;

- construction of new facilities;

- extension or abandonment of service and facilities;
- accounts and records;

- depreciation and amortization policies;

- the acquisition and disposition of facilities; and
- the initiation and discontinuation of services.

Northern Border Pipeline, where required, holds certificates of public
convenience and necessity issued by the FERC covering its facilities, activities
and services. Under Section 8 of the Natural Gas Act, the FERC has the power to
prescribe the accounting treatment for items for regulatory purposes. The
Northern Border Pipeline books and records are periodically audited under
Section 8.

The FERC regulates Northern Border Pipeline's rates and charges for
transportation in interstate commerce. Natural gas companies may not charge
rates exceeding rates judged just and reasonable by the FERC. In addition, the
FERC prohibits natural gas companies from unduly preferring or unreasonably
discriminating against any person with respect to pipeline rates or terms and
conditions of service. Some types of rates may be discounted without further
FERC authorization.

COST OF SERVICE TARIFF

Northern Border Pipeline's firm transportation shippers contract to pay for
a proportionate share of the pipeline system's cost of service. During any given
month, all these shippers pay a uniform mileage based charge for the amount of
capacity contracted, calculated under a cost of service tariff. The shippers are
obligated to pay their proportionate share of the cost of service regardless of
the amount of natural gas they actually transport. The cost of service tariff is
regulated by the FERC and provides an opportunity to recover all operations and
maintenance costs of the Northern Border
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pipeline system, taxes other than income taxes, interest, depreciation and
amortization, an allowance for income taxes and a return on equity approved by
the FERC. Northern Border Pipeline may not charge or collect more than its cost
of service under its tariff on file with the FERC.

Northern Border Pipeline's investment in the pipeline system is reflected in
various accounts referred to collectively as its regulated "rate base." The cost
of service includes a return, with related income taxes, on the rate base. Over
time, the rate base declines as a result of, among other things, the monthly
depreciation and amortization. The Northern Border Pipeline rate base includes,
as an additional amount, a one-time ratemaking adjustment to reflect the receipt
of a financial incentive on the original construction of the pipeline. Since
inception, the rate base adjustment, called an incentive rate of return, has
been amortized through monthly additions to the cost of service. As a result, TC
PipeLines' pro forma net income for 1998 included $4.2 million for such
amortization along with a related income tax allowance. This impact on net
income is expected to continue until November 2001 when the incentive rate of
return is fully amortized.

Northern Border Pipeline bills the cost of service on an estimated basis for
a six month cycle. Any net excess or deficiency between the cost of service
determined for that period according to the FERC tariff and the estimated
billing is accumulated, including carrying charges. This amount is then either
billed to or credited back to the shippers' accounts.

Northern Border Pipeline also provides interruptible transportation service.
Interruptible transportation service is transportation in circumstances when
surplus capacity is available after satisfying firm service requests. The
maximum rate charged to interruptible shippers is calculated from cost of
service estimates on the basis of contracted capacity. Northern Border Pipeline
credits all revenue from the interruptible transportation service to the firm
shippers against cost of service amounts already paid.

As a result of Northern Border Pipeline's rate case filed in November 1995
and the proposed change in the depreciation schedule in conjunction with the
Chicago project, the depreciation rate applied to Northern Border Pipeline's
gross transmission plant was reduced effective June 1, 1996, from 3.6% to 2.7%.
Beginning January 1, 1997, the depreciation rate was reduced to 2.5% through the
in-service date of the Chicago project, and at that time it was reduced to 2%.
The depreciation rate is scheduled to increase on January 1, 2000 and each year
thereafter until it reaches 3.2% in 2002.

The November 1995 rate case was filed in compliance with Northern Border
Pipeline's FERC tariff for the determination of its allowed equity rate of
return. In this proceeding, Northern Border Pipeline reached a settlement accord
with shippers holding in excess of 90% of the total contracted firm capacity as
of October 15, 1996 and filed for FERC approval of a stipulation and agreement
to settle its rate case. The stipulation was approved by the FERC in August
1997. The stipulation allowed Northern Border Pipeline to retain its 12.75%
equity rate of return through September 30, 1996, and a 12% rate beginning
October 1, 1996. For purposes of calculating this return, the equity base is
determined by FERC regulations, and not in accordance with GAAP. In addition,
the depreciation rate applied to Northern Border Pipeline's gross transmission
plant was reduced as described in the previous paragraph. Under the stipulation,
it was agreed that for at least seven years following the completion of the
Chicago project, Northern Border Pipeline may continue to calculate its
allowance for income taxes as a part of its cost of service in the manner it has
historically used.

In addition, in connection with the completion of the Chicago project,
Northern Border Pipeline has implemented a new depreciation schedule with an
extended depreciable life, a capital project cost containment mechanism and a
$31 million settlement adjustment mechanism. The settlement adjustment mechanism
will effectively reduce the allowed return on rate
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base. In October 1997, Northern Border Pipeline made refunds to its shippers in
the amount of $52.6 million, previously reserved, drawing on an existing $750
million revolving credit facility and utilizing cash on hand.

The capital project cost containment mechanism for the Chicago project is
discussed in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations--Settlement of 1995 FERC Case and Project Cost Containment
Mechanism".

OPEN ACCESS REGULATION

Beginning on April 8, 1992, the FERC issued a series of orders, known as,
Order 636, designed to restructure the way that pipelines deliver transportation
services. Among other things, Order 636 required companies to unbundle their
services and offer sales, transportation, storage, gathering and other services
separately; to permanently assign their capacity on upstream pipelines to other
shippers; and to provide all transportation services on a basis that is equal in
quality for all shippers. Order 636 was substantially affirmed by the United
States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia.

Order 636 adopted "right of first refusal" procedures, imposed by the FERC
as a condition to the pipeline's right to abandon long-term transportation
service, to govern a shipper's continuing rights to transportation services when
its contract with the pipeline expires. The FERC's rules require existing
shippers to match any bid of up to five years in order to renew those contracts.
In a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking issued by the FERC on July 20, 1998, the FERC
has proposed to eliminate the requirement that shippers match any bid up to five
years from the right of first refusal and indicated that it is considering
whether the right of first refusal should be eliminated entirely. The effect of
the Order 636 right of first refusal procedures and the FERC's proposals to
revise those procedures on Northern Border Pipeline's ability to renew or
recontract long-term service agreements once existing agreements expire cannot
be quantified at this time.

Beginning in 1996, the FERC issued a series of orders, referred to together
as "Order 587", amending its open access regulations to standardize business
practices and procedures governing transactions between interstate natural gas
pipelines, their customers, and others doing business with the pipelines. These
business standards, developed by the Gas Industry Standards Board ("GISB"),
govern important business practices including as shipper supplied service
nominations, allocation of available capacity, accounting and invoicing of
transportation service, standardized internet business transactions, and
capacity release. Northern Border Pipeline has implemented changes to its tariff
and internal systems so it can fully comply with the business standards as
required by these orders.

In 1998, the FERC initiated a number of proceedings to further amend its
open access regulations. In a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking issued on July 20,
1998, the FERC proposed changes to its regulations governing short-term
transportation services. Among the proposals considered in the proposed
rulemaking are auctions for short-term capacity, removal of price caps for
secondary market transactions, revisions to reporting requirements, revisions to
tariff provisions governing imbalances, and negotiated services. In a companion
Notice of Inquiry issued the same day, the FERC has requested industry comment
on its pricing policies in the existing long-term market for transportation
services and its pricing policies for new capacity. The FERC also issued a
Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to revise its procedures under which shippers or
others may have complaints considered by the FERC. The impact on Northern Border
Pipeline of any final rules adopted by the Commission as a result of these
proceedings cannot be assessed at this time.

The FERC has also commenced proceedings to revise its pipeline construction
regulations. On September 30, 1998, the FERC issued a Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking to amend its regulations to reflect current FERC policies governing
the issuance of pipeline
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construction certificates and to codify the filing of related information. Also
on September 30, 1998, the FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking that
would give applicants seeking to construct, operate or abandon natural gas
services or facilities the option of using a pre-filing collaborative process to
resolve significant issues among parties and the pipeline. The proposed
rulemaking also proposes that a significant portion of the environmental review
process could be completed as part of the collaborative process. As part of the
proposed rulemaking, the FERC intends to examine existing landowner notification
policies related to pipeline construction and environmental and pipeline
construction issues. The impact on Northern Border Pipeline of any final rules
adopted by the Commission as a result of these proceedings cannot be assessed at
this time.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SAFETY MATTERS

The operations of Northern Border Pipeline are subject to federal, state and
local laws and regulations relating to safety and the protection of the
environment which include the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, the Compensation and Liability Act of
1980, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety
Act of 1969, and the Pipeline Safety Act of 1992. Although TC PipelLines believes
that Northern Border Pipeline's operations and facilities comply in all material
respects with applicable environmental and safety regulations, risks of
substantial costs and liabilities are inherent in pipeline operations, and we
cannot provide any assurances that it will not incur these costs and
liabilities. Northern Border Pipeline has ongoing environmental and safety audit
programs.

PROPERTIES

Northern Border Pipeline holds the right, title and interest in the Northern
Border pipeline system. Northern Border Pipeline owns all of its material
equipment and personal property and leases office space in Omaha, Nebraska. With
respect to real property, the Northern Border pipeline system falls into two
basic categories: (a) parcels which Northern Border Pipeline owns in fee,
including some of the compressor stations, measurement stations and pipeline
field office sites; and (b) parcels where the interest of Northern Border
Pipeline derives from leases, easements, rights-of-way, permits or licenses from
landowners or governmental authorities permitting the use of the land for the
construction and operation of the Northern Border pipeline system. The right to
construct and operate the pipeline across some property was obtained by Northern
Border Pipeline through exercise of the power of eminent domain. Northern Border
Pipeline continues to have the power of eminent domain in each of the states in
which it operates the Northern Border pipeline system, although it may not have
the power of eminent domain with respect to Native American tribal lands.

Approximately 90 miles of the pipeline is located on fee, allotted and
tribal lands within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Peck Indian Reservation
in Montana. Tribal lands are lands owned in trust by the United States for the
Fort Peck Tribes and allotted lands are lands owned in trust by the United
States for an individual Indian or Indians. It is not clear as to Northern
Border Pipeline's rights of eminent domain as it pertains to tribal lands. There
is the right of eminent domain as it pertains to allotted lands.

In 1980, Northern Border Pipeline entered into a pipeline right-of-way lease
with the Fort Peck Tribal Executive Board, for and on behalf of the Assiniboine
and Sioux Tribes of the Fort Peck Indian Reservation. This pipeline right-of-way
lease, which was approved by the Department of the Interior in 1981, granted to
Northern Border Pipeline the right and privilege to construct and operate its
pipeline on some tribal lands, for a term of 15 years, renewable for an
additional 15 year term at the option of Northern Border Pipeline without
additional rental. Northern Border Pipeline notified the Bureau of Indian
Affairs in March 1996 that it was exercising its option to renew the pipeline
right-of-way lease for an additional 15 year term. Northern Border Pipeline
continues to operate on this portion of the pipeline located
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on tribal lands in accordance with its renewal rights.

In conjunction with obtaining a pipeline right-of-way lease across tribal
lands located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Peck Indian
Reservation, Northern Border Pipeline also obtained a right-of-way across
allotted lands located within the reservation boundaries. This right-of-way,
granted by the Bureau of Indian Affairs on March 25, 1981, for and on behalf of
individual Indian owners, expired on March 31, 1996. Before the termination
date, Northern Border Pipeline undertook efforts to obtain voluntary consents
from individual Indian owners for a new right-of-way, and Northern Border
Pipeline filed applications with the Bureau of Indian Affairs for new
right-of-way grants across those tracts of allotted lands where a sufficient
number of consents from the Indian owners had been obtained. Also, a
condemnation action was filed in Federal Court in the District of Montana
concerning those remaining tracts of allotted land for which a majority of
consents were not timely received.

An order was entered on March 18, 1999 condemning permanent easements in
Northern Border Pipeline's favor on the tracts in question. The court ordered
approximately $22,000 as compensation. To date, the Bureau of Indian Affairs has
not issued a formal right-of-way grant for those tracts for which sufficient
landowners consents were obtained.

LITIGATION

In addition to the condemnation actions and matters related to the FERC
regulation, various legal actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of
business are pending with respect to Northern Border Pipeline. In TC PipelLines'
opinion, none of these proceedings would reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse impact on Northern Border Pipeline's results of operations or
financial position. See "Business of Northern Border Pipeline--Properties".

TC PipeLines, exclusive of its interest in Northern Border Pipeline, is not
currently a party to any legal proceedings that, individually or combined, would
reasonably be expected to have a material adverse impact on TC PipelLines'
results of operations or financial position.
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TRANSCANADA PIPELINES LIMITED

TransCanada has extensive operations in four principal lines of business:
energy transmission, energy marketing, energy processing and international
energy services.

TransCanada is the largest carrier of natural gas in North America by volume
and operates the longest and most extensive pipeline network in Canada. As of
December 31, 1998, it transported approximately 80% of all Canadian natural gas
production, which represented 18% of all North American natural gas production.
Through the Canadian mainline and the Alberta system, TransCanada owns and
operates natural gas transmission systems with approximately 22,800 miles of
pipeline. TransCanada extends its reach in North America through various
ownership interests in approximately 6,840 miles of natural gas and crude oil
pipelines.

On the basis of market capitalization, TransCanada is one of the largest
energy services companies in North America. For the year ended December 31,
1998, TransCanada had revenues of Cdn.$17 billion and net income from continuing
operations of Cdn.$426 million. As of December 31, 1998, TransCanada had assets
of Cdn.$26 billion. TransCanada's common shares trade primarily on the Toronto,
Montreal and the New York stock exchanges under the symbol "TRP."

ENERGY TRANSMISSION
CANADIAN MAINLINE

TransCanada owns and operates a 9,175-mile natural gas transmission system
in Canada (the "Canadian mainline"). The Canadian mainline is a high pressure
pipeline which transports natural gas from western Canada to large, diverse
markets in eastern Canada and in the northeastern and midwestern United States.
Beginning at the Alberta-Saskatchewan border, the Canadian mainline crosses the
provinces of Saskatchewan, Manitoba and Ontario and ends at the Quebec-Vermont
border. The Canadian mainline also connects with other pipelines that deliver
natural gas to Canada and the United States.

ALBERTA SYSTEM

TransCanada owns and operates the Alberta system, which collects and
transports natural gas for use in Alberta and for delivery to connecting
pipelines (including the Canadian mainline) at the Alberta border for delivery
to eastern Canada and export to the United States.

NORTH AMERICAN PIPELINE INVESTMENTS

TransCanada has ownership interests in other North American pipeline
systems. These interests include:

- a 50% interest in the Great Lakes System beginning at the Canada-United
States border near Emerson, Manitoba and extending through the United
States to Sarnia, Ontario;

- a 35% interest in the Iroquois System beginning at the Canada-United
States border near Iroquois, Ontario, extending through the states of New
York and Connecticut and ending in Long Island, New York;

- a 50% interest in Tuscarora Pipeline extending from Malin, Oregon to Reno,
Nevada;

- a 21.4% interest in the Portland System, extending from the Canada-United
States border near Pittsburg, New Hampshire and ending near Dracut,
Massachusetts;

- a 50% interest in Trans Quebec & Maritimes Pipeline extending from
Montreal to Quebec City, in the province of Quebec;

- a 69.5% interest in the Foothills (Sask.) System beginning at the Alberta-
Saskatchewan border near Empress, Alberta and extending to the Northern
Border pipeline system;
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- a 74.5% interest in the Foothills (Alta.) System located within the
province of Alberta and connecting with the Foothills (Sask.) and the
Foothills (South B.C.) Systems;

- a 74.5% interest in the Foothills (South B.C.) System extending from the
Alberta-British Columbia border to the British Columbia-Idaho border;

- a 100% interest in the Alberta Natural Gas Pipeline System extending from
Alberta's western border through British Columbia to the United States
border; and

- a 50% interest in Express Pipeline, a crude oil pipeline extending from
Hardisty, Alberta and ending near Wood River, Illinois.

As discussed under "Business of the Partnership--Business Strategy and
Competitive Strengths of the Partnership", TransCanada's various United States
pipeline assets may provide opportunities for our growth through acquisitions.

[MAP OF TRANSCANADA'S NORTH AMERICAN PIPELINE INVESTMENTS]

OTHER BUSINESSES

TransCanada has a substantial energy commodity marketing business in North
America. Its diversified energy marketing business includes the marketing of
natural gas, natural gas liquids, crude oil and refined products. TransCanada
markets these energy commodities in both Canada and the United States and
provides a range of supply, storage and transportation services to its
customers.

TransCanada's energy processing operations consist of the processing of
hydrocarbons into other forms of energy and products in Canada and the United
States. The processing assets include natural gas gathering and processing
facilities and extraction plants, specialty chemicals operations and independent
power plants, including a 70.1% interest in the Ocean State Power generation
plant.

TransCanada also invests in energy transmission, processing and power
generation operations and investigates and develops energy services businesses
outside of Canada and the United States.
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MANAGEMENT
TC PIPELINES MANAGEMENT

The general partner will manage and operate the activities of TC Pipelines
under the partnership agreement. The unitholders will not directly or indirectly
participate in the management or operation of TC PipelLines or have actual or
apparent authority to enter into contracts on behalf of, or to otherwise bind,
TC PipeLines. Notwithstanding any limitation on its obligations or duties, the
general partner will be liable, as general partner of TC PipeLines, for all
debts of TC PipelLines, to the extent not paid, except to the extent that
indebtedness or other obligations incurred by TC PipelLines are made specifically
non-recourse to the general partner. Whenever possible, the general partner
intends to make any indebtedness or other obligations non-recourse to the
general partner.

At least two of the members of the board of directors of the general partner
who are neither officers or employees of the general partner nor directors,
officers or employees of any affiliate of the general partner (and have not been
for the past five years) will serve on the conflicts committee. The conflicts
committee will have the authority to review specific matters as to which the
board of directors believes there may be a conflict of interest in order to
determine if the resolution of the conflict proposed by the general partner is
fair and reasonable to TC PipelLines. Any matters approved by the conflicts
committee will be conclusively judged to be fair and reasonable to TC PipelLines,
approved by all partners of TC PipeLines and not a breach by the general partner
or its board of directors of any duties they may owe TC PipeLines or the
unitholders. See "Conflicts of Interest and Fiduciary
Responsibilities--Fiduciary and Other Duties". In addition, the members of the
conflicts committee will also constitute an audit committee which will review
the external financial reporting of TC PipelLines, recommend engagement of TC
PipeLines' independent public accountants and review TC PipelLines' procedures
for internal auditing and the adequacy of its internal accounting controls. The
members of the conflicts committee will also serve on the compensation
committee, which will oversee compensation decisions for the officers of the
general partner as well as the compensation plans described below.

As is commonly the case with publicly traded limited partnerships, TC
PipeLines will not directly employ any of the persons responsible for managing
or operating TC PipeLines. In general, the current TransCanada personnel
involved in managing TransCanada's interest in Northern Border Pipeline and
other United States pipeline investments are expected to manage and operate the
TC PipeLines' business as officers and employees of the general partner and its
affiliates.

Some officers of the general partner may spend a substantial amount of time
managing the business and affairs of TransCanada and its other affiliates and
may face a conflict regarding the allocation of their time between TC PipelLines
and TransCanada's other business interests. The general partner intends to cause
its officers to devote as much time to the management of TC PipelLines as is
necessary for the proper conduct of its business and affairs.
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

The following table sets forth information with respect to the executive
officers and member of the board of directors of the

general partner. Executive officers and directors are elected for one-year

terms.

NAME AGE POSITION WITH GENERAL PARTNER
George W. WatsSon. . ... .ttt 51 Chairman

John W. Carruthers....... ..o 45 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
RUSSELL K. Girling......:uuiniiiiunnnn e 36 Chief Financial Officer and Director
Paul F. MaCGregor. vt iiien e iennne e eennnnneeens 42 Vice-President, Business Development
Bruce A. Westell....... ..ot 52 Vice-President and Treasurer

Gary G. PeNroOSe. ... .ttt it 56 Vice-President, Taxation

Karyn A. BrooKS. ... ...t iiinnn e 45 Vice-President

Rhondda E.S. Grant........c.ouuiiiinnnnnnnnrnnnnnnnns 41 Corporate Secretary

Bruce W. SImpSON. . ... ..ttt 54 Director

RONAld J. TUINEI ..ttt et it e i aeas 45 Director

GEORGE W. WATSON has been Chief
Executive Officer of TransCanada since 1994 and President since 1993. From 1990
to 1993, Mr. Watson was TransCanada's Chief Financial Officer, and, in 1993,
became a member of TransCanada's board of directors. Mr. Watson is a member of
the boards of several of TransCanada's subsidiaries and affiliates as well as
the Toronto-Dominion Bank, a publicly traded Canadian company which is not
affiliated with TransCanada. Mr. Watson holds an MBA, in finance and marketing,
and a BASc in electrical engineering, both from Queen's University. He also
completed the Advanced Management Program at Harvard University in 1988. Mr.
Watson was recently elected Vice-Chair of the Interstate Natural Gas Association
of America.

JOHN W. CARRUTHERS has been Vice-President of Business Development for
TransCanada's energy transmission business unit since July 1998 and, from 1997
to July 1998, he was Vice-President of Strategic Development of that business
unit. Mr. Carruthers was Vice-President, Business Development of TransCanada's
energy management group in 1996 and General Manager, international business
development in 1995. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Carruthers was Amoco Canada's
Manager of Finance & Administration. Mr. Carruthers is Chairman of the Board of
Express Pipeline and has been TransCanada's, and is expected to be the
Partnership's, representative on the Northern Border Pipeline Management
Committee. Mr. Carruthers is also a member of the Management Committees of
several of TransCanada's North American pipeline investments including the
Iroquois System, the Trans Quebec & Maritimes System and the Portland System.
Mr. Carruthers holds a BComm from the University of Calgary.

RUSSELL K. GIRLING has been Vice-President, Finance of TransCanada since
January 1999. He was Executive Vice-President, Power of TransCanada Energy Ltd.
from June 1998 to January 1999. He was Senior Vice-President, North American
Power of TransCanada Energy from May 1997 to June 1998 and prior thereto, he was
Vice-President, Power of TransCanada Energy. Mr. Girling holds a BComm and an
MBA from the University of Calgary.

PAUL F. MACGREGOR has been Vice-President, North American pipeline
investments for TransCanada's energy transmission business unit since July 1998.
Prior to that time and since 1997, Mr. MacGregor has been a Vice-President of
Alberta Natural Gas Company Ltd, a subsidiary of TransCanada. In 1996, Mr.
MacGregor was Director of Field Operations for TransCanada. From 1993 to 1995,
Mr. MacGregor was Regional Manager, Field Operations for TransCanada in North
Bay, Ontario. Mr. MacGregor has been with TransCanada since 1981 holding various
positions in the Facilities Planning and Evaluations,
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Finance and Operations groups. Mr. MacGregor holds an MBA, with a major in
accounting, from McMaster University, and a BASc in civil engineering from the
University of Waterloo.

BRUCE A. WESTELL has been Vice-President and Treasurer of TransCanada since
February 1997 and Treasurer since August 1990. Mr. Westell holds an MBA from the
University of Western Ontario and a BMath from the University of Waterloo.

GARY G. PENROSE has been Vice-President, Taxation of TransCanada since
February 1997. Prior thereto he was General Manager, Taxation. Mr. Penrose has
been with TransCanada since 1972 and for the past 20 years has been a member of
the Taxation Group. Mr. Penrose is a Chartered Accountant and holds a BA from
York University.

KARYN A. BROOKS has been Vice-President and Controller of TransCanada since
February 1997. Prior to February 1997, Ms. Brooks was Director of Corporate
Accounting and Budgets. Prior to January 1995, she was Manager, Financial
Accounting at TransCanada. Ms. Brooks is a Chartered Accountant and holds a
BComm (Honours) from Queens University.

RHONDDA E.S. GRANT has acted as Corporate Secretary and Associate General
Counsel, Corporate of TransCanada since July 1998. From 1994 to 1998, Ms. Grant
was Corporate Secretary and Associate General Counsel of NOVA Corporation. From
1989 to 1995, Ms. Grant was Senior Corporate Counsel at NOVA Corporation. Ms.
Grant holds a Bachelor of Laws and a BA (Honours) from the University of British
Columbia.

BRUCE W. SIMPSON has been Executive Vice-President of TransCanada since July
1998. From May 1994 to July 1998 Mr. Simpson was Senior Vice-President, NOVA
Corporation and President and Chief Operating Officer of NOVA Gas Transmission
Ltd. Prior to that time Mr. Simpson was Senior Vice-President of NOVA's
predecessor, and President and Chief Operating Officer of the Alberta Gas
Transmission Division of that company. Mr. Simpson received a BComm from the
University of Alberta in 1967, and was admitted to the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Alberta in 1970.

RONALD J. TURNER has been Senior Vice-President of TransCanada and President
of Alberta Gas Transmission of TransCanada since July 1998. He was
Vice-President, Value Process West, NOVA Chemicals Ltd. and Executive
Vice-President of NOVA Gas Transmission from December 1997 to July 1998. Prior
thereto and from July 1994, he was Vice-President, Facilities Provision, Nova
Gas Transmission. Prior to July 1994, Mr. Turner was Vice-President,
Engineering, Alberta Gas Transmission Division of NOVA Corporation. Mr. Turner
holds a BSc in Civil Engineering from University of Canterbury in New Zealand.

Shortly after completion of the transactions contemplated in this
prospectus, the general partner will add three independent directors who have
not been for five years and are not currently owners, officers, employees of the
general partner nor officers, directors or employees, of any affiliate of the
general partner. These three additional directors will be sole members of the
conflicts committee, audit committee and compensation committee.

REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES OF THE GENERAL PARTNER AND ITS AFFILIATES

The general partner will not receive any management fee or other
compensation in connection with its management of TC PipelLines. The general
partner and its affiliates, including TransCanada, performing services for TC
PipeLines will be reimbursed for all expenses incurred on behalf of TC
PipeLines. These expenses include the costs of employee, officer and director
compensation and benefits properly allocable to TC PipeLines, and all other
expenses necessary or appropriate to the conduct of the business of, and
allocable to, TC PipelLines. The partnership agreement provides that the general
partner will determine the expenses that are allocable to TC PipelLines in any
reasonable manner determined by the general partner in its sole discretion.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

TC PipeLines and the general partner were formed in December 1998.
Accordingly, the general partner paid no compensation to its directors and
officers with respect to the 1998 fiscal year. No obligations accrued in respect
of management incentive or retirement benefits for the directors and officers
with respect to the 1998 fiscal year. Officers and employees of the general
partner may participate in employee benefit plans and arrangements sponsored by
the general partner or its affiliates, including plans which may be established
by the general partner or its affiliates in the future.

Shortly after the completion of the transactions contemplated in this
prospectus, the general partner expects that the compensation committee will
consider and implement incentive compensation arrangements for key officers of
the general partner. The general partner expects that these arrangements would
provide additional compensation to these key officers under circumstances where
the general partner is receiving distributions under the Incentive Distribution
Rights. See '"Cash Distribution Policy--Incentive Distribution Rights". This
incentive compensation will be an expense of TC PipeLines.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

No additional remuneration will be paid to officers or employees of the
general partner who also serve as directors. The general partner anticipates
that each independent director will receive a combination of cash and units for
attending meetings of the board of directors as well as committee meetings. In
addition, each independent director will be reimbursed for his out-of-pocket
expenses in connection with attending meetings of the board of directors or
committees. Each director will be fully indemnified by TC PipelLines for his
actions associated with being a director to the extent permitted under Delaware
law.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of units that will
be issued upon the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this
prospectus and held by beneficial owners of 5% or more of the units, by
directors of the general partner and by all directors and executive officers of
the general partner as a group. TransCanada PipelLines Limited is the sole
ultimate stockholder of TC PipelLines GP, Inc. The address of TransCanada
PipeLines Limited is 111 Fifth Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta T2P 3Y6. The address
of TC PipeLines GP, Inc. is Four Greenspoint Plaza, 16945 Northchase Drive
Houston, Texas 77060. If the over-allotment option is exercised, the general
partner will own 1,614,000 subordinated units.

PERCENTAGE
OF
COMMON COMMON
UNITS TO BE UNITS TO BE
BENEFICIALLY BENEFICIALLY
NAME OF BENEFICIAL OWNER OWNED OWNED

TransCanada PipeLines Limited..............cciiiunn.
TC PipeLines GP,
George W. WatsSon.......oviiiiiiiiii it --
John W. Carruthers.......ooiiii i i --
RUSSELL K. Girling......cuinineiiinnnriinnnnneennnnns --
Paul F. MaCGregor . vuutttirennnn i --
Bruce A. Westell......... ot --
GArY G. PENIOSE. t it ittt ittt it --
Karyn A. BrooKS. . ...t --
Rhondda E.S. Grant...........i s --
Bruce W. SIimpSON. . ... ..ttty --
Ronald J.

101 1S --

All directors and executive officers as a group (10
PEISONS ) ittt ittt ittt e --
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BENEFICIALLY
OWNED

3,960,000

3,960,000

PERCENTAGE
OF
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The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of TransCanada
common shares held by directors and executive officers of the general partner as
of March 31, 1999. The shares beneficially owned include both outstanding
TransCanada common shares and TransCanada common shares issuable upon exercise
of outstanding options within 60 days after March 31, 1999. Shares subject to
exercisable stock options include 405,882 for Mr. Watson; 33,972 for Mr.
Carruthers; 25,080 for Mr. Girling; 18,122 for Mr. MacGregor; 75,025 for Mr.
Westell; 39,138 for Mr. Penrose; 24,404 for Ms. Brooks; 4,029 for Ms. Grant;
41,311 for Mr. Simpson; and 33,237 for Mr. Turner.

SHARES PERCENT

BENEFICIALLY OF
NAME OF BENEFICIAL OWNER OWNED CLASS
GEOIrgE W. WAL SOM. ottt ettt et et e e e e e e 445,321 *
JONN W. CarrULREr S . oot e et e s 33,972 *
20 = 0 R S It e 1 o o 25,080 *
2 YO A 1 - 1o € o =T o 18,382 *
BruCE A. WeEStEL L. . ittt ittt ittt et e e 77,080 *
GarY G. PENIOSE . i ittt ittt ittt it e e 41,370 *
Karyn A BroOKS . oottt e s 25,280 *
[ d oY ¥ [o F- N SIS S €1 oF - 1 o o 4,029 *
BrUCE W. SamMPSON . &ttt sttt it s 144,357 *
[0 o = 8 o [N W o o V= 41,430 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (10 PersSONS)......... ..o innnnnnnnnannn 856,301 *

* Less than 1%.
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CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Conflicts of interest exist and may arise in the future as a result of the
relationships between the general partner and TransCanada, its indirect ultimate
sole stockholder, and its other affiliates, on the one hand, and TC PipeLines
and its limited partners, on the other hand. The directors and officers of the
general partner have fiduciary duties to manage the general partner in a manner
beneficial to TransCanada. At the same time, the general partner has a fiduciary
duty to manage TC PipeLines in a manner beneficial to TC PipelLines and the
unitholders.

The partnership agreement contains provisions that allow the general partner
to take into account the interests of parties in addition to TC Pipelines in
resolving conflicts of interest. In effect, these provisions limit the general
partner's fiduciary duty to the unitholders. The partnership agreement also
restricts the remedies available to unitholders for actions taken that might,
without those limitations, constitute breaches of fiduciary duty.

Whenever a conflict arises between the general partner or its affiliates, on
the one hand, and TC PipelLines or any other partner, on the other, the general
partner shall resolve that conflict. A conflicts committee of the board of
directors of the general partner will, at the request of the general partner,
review conflicts of interest. The general partner shall not be in breach of its
obligations under the partnership agreement or its duties to TC PipeLines or the
unitholders if the resolution of the conflict is considered to be fair and
reasonable to TC PipelLines. Any resolution is considered to be fair and
reasonable to TC PipelLines if that resolution is:

- approved by the conflicts committee, although no party is obligated to
seek approval and the general partner may adopt a resolution or course of
action that has not received approval;

- on terms no less favorable to TC PipelLines than those generally being
provided to or available from unrelated third parties; or

- fair to TC PipelLines, taking into account the totality of the
relationships between the parties involved, including other transactions
that may be particularly favorable or advantageous to TC PipeLines.

In resolving a conflict, the general partner may, unless the resolution is
specifically provided for in the partnership agreement, consider:

- the relative interests of the parties involved in the conflict or affected
by the action;

- any customary or accepted industry practices or historical dealings with a
particular person or entity; and

- generally accepted accounting practices or principles and other factors as
it considers relevant, if applicable.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST COULD ARISE IN THE SITUATIONS DESCRIBED BELOW, AMONG
OTHERS:

ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE GENERAL PARTNER MAY AFFECT THE AMOUNT OF CASH AVAILABLE FOR
DISTRIBUTION TO UNITHOLDERS OR ACCELERATE THE CONVERSION OF SUBORDINATED UNITS

The amount of cash that is available for distribution to unitholders is
affected by decisions of the general partner regarding various matters,
including:

- amount and timing of asset purchases and sales;

- cash expenditures;

- borrowings;

- issuances of additional units; and

- the creation, reduction or increase of reserves in any quarter.



In addition, borrowings by TC PipeLines do not constitute a breach of any
duty owed by the general partner to the unitholders,
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including borrowings that have the purpose or effect of:

- enabling the general partner and its affiliates to receive distributions
on any subordinated units held by them or the incentive distribution
rights; or

- hastening the expiration of the subordination period.

The partnership agreement provides that TC PipelLines and the TC PipelLines
intermediate partnership may borrow funds from the general partner and its
affiliates. The general partner and its affiliates may not borrow funds from TC
PipeLines or the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership.

TC PIPELINES WILL NOT HAVE ANY EMPLOYEES AND WILL RELY ON THE EMPLOYEES OF THE
GENERAL PARTNER AND ITS AFFILIATES

We will not have any officers or employees and will rely solely on officers
and employees of the general partner and its affiliates. Affiliates of the
general partner will conduct business and activities of their own in which we
will have no economic interest. If these separate activities are significantly
greater than our activities, there could be material competition between TC
PipeLines, the general partner and affiliates of the general partner for the
time and effort of the officers and employees who provide services to the
general partner. Most of the officers of the general partner who will provide
services to TC PipeLines will not be required to work full time on our affairs.
These officers may devote significant time to the affairs of the general
partner's affiliates and will be compensated by these affiliates for the
services rendered to them. There may be significant conflicts between TC
PipeLines and affiliates of the general partner regarding the availability of
these officers of the general partner to manage TC PipelLines.

TC PIPELINES WILL REIMBURSE THE GENERAL PARTNER AND ITS AFFILIATES FOR EXPENSES.

TC PipelLines will reimburse the general partner and its affiliates for costs
incurred in managing and operating TC PipelLines, including costs incurred in
rendering corporate staff and support services to TC PipeLines. The partnership
agreement provides that the general partner will determine the expenses that are
allocable to TC PipelLines in any reasonable manner determined by the general
partner in its sole discretion. See "Management-- Reimbursement of Expenses of
the General Partner and its Affiliates".

THE GENERAL PARTNER INTENDS TO LIMIT ITS LIABILITY REGARDING TC PIPELINES'
OBLIGATIONS

The general partner intends to limit our liability under contractual
arrangements so that the other party has recourse only as to all or particular
assets of TC PipelLines, and not against the general partner or its assets. The
partnership agreement provides that any action taken by the general partner to
limit its liability or that of TC PipelLines is not a breach of the general
partner's fiduciary duties, even if we could have obtained more favorable terms
without the limitation on liability.

COMMON UNITHOLDERS WILL HAVE NO RIGHT TO ENFORCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE GENERAL
PARTNER AND ITS AFFILIATES UNDER AGREEMENTS WITH TC PIPELINES

Any agreements between TC PipelLines, on the one hand, and the general
partner and its affiliates, on the other, will not grant to the unitholders,
separate and apart from TC PipelLines, the right to enforce the obligations of
the general partner and those affiliates in favor of TC PipelLines.

CONTRACTS BETWEEN TC PIPELINES, ON THE ONE HAND, AND THE GENERAL PARTNER AND ITS
AFFILIATES, ON THE OTHER, WILL NOT BE THE RESULT OF ARM'S-LENGTH NEGOTIATIONS

The partnership agreement allows the general partner to pay itself or its
affiliates for any services rendered, provided these services are on terms fair
and reasonable to us. The general partner may also enter into additional
contractual arrangements with any of its affiliates
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on our behalf. Neither the partnership agreement nor any of the other
agreements, contracts and arrangements between TC PipelLines, on the one hand,
and the general partner and its affiliates, on the other, are or will be the
result of arm's-length negotiations. In addition, the general partner will
negotiate the terms of any acquisitions from TransCanada, subject to the
approval of the conflicts committee consisting of the directors of the general
partner unaffiliated with TransCanada.

All of these transactions entered into after the sale of the common units
offered in this offering are to be on terms which are fair and reasonable to TC
PipeLines.

The general partner and its affiliates will have no obligation to permit us
to use any facilities or assets of the general partner and its affiliates,
except as may be provided in contracts entered into specifically dealing with
that use. There will not be any obligation of the general partner and its
affiliates to enter into any contracts of this kind.

COMMON UNITS ARE SUBJECT TO THE GENERAL PARTNER'S LIMITED CALL RIGHT

The general partner may exercise its right to call and purchase common units
as provided in the partnership agreement or assign that right to one of its
affiliates or to us. The general partner may use its own discretion, free of
fiduciary duty restrictions, in determining whether to exercise this right. As a
consequence, a common unitholder may have his common units purchased from him at
an undesirable time or price. For a description of this right, see "The
Partnership Agreement--Limited Call Right".

TC PIPELINES MAY NOT RETAIN SEPARATE COUNSEL FOR ITSELF OR FOR THE HOLDERS OF
COMMON UNITS

The attorneys, independent public accountants and others who have performed
services for us regarding the offering have been retained by the general
partner, its affiliates and us and may continue to be retained by the general
partner, its affiliates and us after the offering. Attorneys, independent public
accountants and others who will perform services for us in the future will be
selected by the general partner or the conflicts committee and may also perform
services for the general partner and its affiliates. TC PipelLines may retain
separate counsel for TC PipeLines or the holders of common units in the event of
a conflict of interest arising between the general partner and its affiliates,
on the one hand, and TC PipeLines or the holders of common units, on the other,
after the sale of the common units offered in this prospectus, depending on the
nature of that conflict. TC PipelLines does not intend to do so in most cases.

THE GENERAL PARTNER'S AFFILIATES MAY COMPETE WITH TC PIPELINES

The partnership agreement provides that the general partner will be
restricted from engaging in any business activities other than those incidental
to its ownership of interests in TC PipelLines. TransCanada and other affiliates
of the general partner will not be prohibited from engaging in other businesses
or activities, including those that might be in direct competition with TC
PipeLines. Accordingly, TransCanada and its affiliates, other than the general
partner, are free to engage in any type of business activity whatsoever,
including those that may be in direct competition with TC PipelLines.
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FIDUCIARY AND OTHER DUTIES OWED TO UNITHOLDERS BY THE GENERAL PARTNER AS
PRESCRIBED BY LAW AND THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

The general partner will be accountable to us and the unitholders as a
fiduciary. Consequently, the general partner must exercise good faith and
integrity in handling our assets and affairs. The Delaware Act provides that
Delaware limited partnerships may, in their partnership agreements, restrict or
expand the fiduciary duties owed by a general partner to limited partners and
the partnership.

In order to induce the general partner to manage the business of TC
PipeLines, the partnership agreement contains various provisions restricting the
fiduciary duties that might otherwise be owed by the general partner. The
following is a summary of the material restrictions of the fiduciary duties owed
by the general partner to the limited partners.

State-Law Fiduciary Duty Standards........... Fiduciary duties are generally considered to
include an obligation to act with due care
and loyalty. The duty of care, in the absence
of a provision in a partnership agreement
providing otherwise, would generally require
a general partner to act for the partnership
in the same manner as a prudent person would
act on their own behalf. The duty of loyalty,
in the absence of a provision in a
partnership agreement providing otherwise,
would generally prohibit a general partner of
a Delaware limited partnership from taking
any action or engaging in any transaction
where a conflict of interest is present.

The Delaware Act provides that a limited
partner may institute legal action on our
behalf to recover damages from a third party
where the general partner has refused to
institute the action or where an effort to
cause the general partner to do so is not
likely to succeed. In addition, the statutory
or case law of some jurisdictions may permit
a limited partner to institute legal action
on behalf of himself and all other similarly
situated limited partners to recover damages
from a general partner for violations of its
fiduciary duties to the limited partners.
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Partnership Agreement Modified Standards.....
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The partnership agreement contains provisions
that waive or consent to conduct by the
general partner and its affiliates that might
otherwise raise issues as to compliance with
fiduciary duties or applicable law. For
example, the partnership agreement permits
the general partner to make a number of
decisions in its "sole discretion." This
entitles the general partner to consider only
the interests and factors that it desires and
it shall have no duty or obligation to give
any consideration to any interest of, or
factors affecting, TC PipelLines, its
affiliates or any limited partner. Other
provisions of the partnership agreement
provide that the general partner's actions
must be made in its reasonable discretion.
These standards reduce the obligations to
which the general partner would otherwise be
held.

The partnership agreement generally provides
that affiliated transactions and resolutions
of conflicts of interest not involving a
required vote of unitholders must be "fair
and reasonable" to TC PipeLines under the
factors previously set forth. In determining
whether a transaction or resolution is "fair
and reasonable" the general partner may
consider interests of all parties involved,
including its own. Unless the general partner
has acted in bad faith, the action taken by
the general partner shall not constitute a
breach of its fiduciary duty. These standards
reduce the obligations to which the general
partner would otherwise be held.

The partnership agreement specifically
provides that it shall not be a breach of the
general partner's fiduciary duty if its
affiliates engage in business interests and
activities in preference or to the exclusion
of TC PipelLines. Also, the general partner
and its affiliates have no obligation to
present business opportunities to TC
PipeLines. These standards reduce the
obligations to which the general partner
would otherwise be held.



In addition to the other more specific
provisions limiting the obligations of the
general partner, the partnership agreement
further provides that the general partner and
its officers and directors will not be liable
for monetary damages to TC PipelLines, the
limited partners or assignees for errors of
judgment or for any acts or omissions if the
general partner and those other persons acted
in good faith.

In order to become a limited partner of TC PipeLines, a common unitholder is
required to agree to be bound by the provisions of the partnership agreement,
including the provisions discussed above. This is in accordance with the policy
of the Delaware Act favoring the principle of freedom of contract and the
enforceability of partnership agreements. The failure of a limited partner or
assignee to sign a partnership agreement does not render the partnership
agreement unenforceable against that person.

TC PipeLines is required to indemnify the general partner and its officers,
directors, employees, affiliates, partners, members, agents and trustees, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, against liabilities, costs and expenses
incurred by the general partner or these other persons. This indemnification is
required if the general partner or these persons acted in good faith and in a
manner they reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests
of TC PipelLines. Indemnification is required for criminal proceedings if the
general partner or these other persons had no reasonable cause to believe their
conduct was unlawful. See "The Partnership Agreement--Indemnification". Thus,
the general partner could be indemnified for its negligent acts if it met these
requirements concerning good faith and the best interests of TC PipelLines.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE COMMON UNITS

Upon completion of the offering, the common units will be registered under
the Exchange Act, and TC PipelLines will be subject to the reporting and other
requirements of the Exchange Act. TC PipeLines will be required to file periodic
reports containing financial and other information with the SEC.

THE UNITS

The common units and the subordinated units represent limited partner
interests in TC PipelLines. The holders of units are entitled to participate in
partnership distributions and exercise the rights or privileges available to
limited partners under the TC PipelLines partnership agreement. For a description
of the relative rights and preferences of holders of common units and
subordinated units in and to partnership distributions, together with a
description of the circumstances under which subordinated units may convert into
common units, see "Cash Distribution Policy" and "Description of Subordinated
Units". For a description of the rights and privileges of limited partners under
the TC PipeLines partnership agreement, see "The Partnership Agreement".

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

DUTIES

ChaseMellon Shareholders Services will serve as registrar and transfer agent
for the common units and will receive a fee from TC PipelLines. All fees charged
by the transfer agent for transfers of common units will be borne by TC
PipeLines, except that the following fees shall be paid by unitholders:

- surety bond premiums to replace lost or stolen certificates, taxes and
other governmental charges,

- special charges for services requested by a holder of a common unit and

- other similar fees or charges.

There will be no charge to holders for disbursements of TC PipelLines cash
distributions. TC PipelLines will indemnify the transfer agent, its agents and
each of their particular shareholders, directors, officers and employees against
all claims and losses that may arise out of acts performed or omitted in respect
of its activities in that capacity, except for any liability due to any
negligence, gross negligence, bad faith or intentional misconduct of the
indemnified person or entity.

RESIGNATION OR REMOVAL

The transfer agent may at any time resign, by notice to us, or be removed by
us. The resignation or removal of the transfer agent shall become effective upon
the appointment by TC PipelLines of a successor transfer agent and registrar and
its acceptance of the appointment. If no successor has been appointed and
accepted the appointment within 30 days after notice of the resignation or
removal, the general partner is authorized to act as the transfer agent and
registrar until a successor is appointed.

TRANSFER OF COMMON UNITS

The transfer of the common units to persons that purchase directly from the
underwriters will be accomplished through the completion, execution and delivery
of a transfer application by the investor. Any subsequent transfers of a common
unit will not be recorded by the transfer agent or recognized by the Partnership
unless the transferee executes and delivers a transfer application. The form of
transfer application is set forth as Appendix B to this prospectus and is also
set forth on the reverse side of the certificates representing the common units.
By executing and delivering a transfer application, the transferee of common
units

(1) becomes the record holder of the common units and is an assignee until
admitted into TC PipelLines as a substitute limited partner,

(2) automatically requests admission as a substituted limited partner in TC
PipelLines,
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(3) agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of, and executes, the TC
PipeLines partnership agreement,

(4) represents that the transferee has the capacity, power and authority to
enter into the partnership agreement,

(5) grants powers of attorney to officers of the general partner and any
liquidator of TC PipelLines as specified in the partnership agreement,
and

(6) makes the consents and waivers contained in the partnership agreement.

An assignee will become a substituted limited partner of TC PipelLines in
respect of the transferred common units upon the consent of the general partner
and the recordation of the name of the assignee on the books and records of TC
PipeLines. The general partner may withhold its consent in its sole discretion.

Transfer applications may be completed, executed and delivered by a
transferees' broker, agent or nominee. TC PipelLines is entitled to treat the
nominee holder of a common unit as the absolute owner. In that case, the
beneficial holders rights are limited solely to those that it has against the
nominee holder as a result of any agreement between the beneficial owner and the
nominee holder.

Common units are securities and are transferable according to the laws
governing transfer of securities. In addition to other rights acquired upon
transfer, the transferor gives the transferee the right to request admission as
a substituted limited partner in TC PipelLines in respect of the transferred
common units. A purchaser or transferee of common units who does not execute and
deliver a transfer application obtains only

- the right to assign the common units to a purchaser or other transferee

- the right to transfer the right to seek admission as a substituted limited
partner in TC PipelLines.

Thus, a purchaser or transferee of common units who does not execute and deliver
a transfer application will not receive

- cash distributions or federal income tax allocations unless the common
units are held in a nominee or "street name" account and the nominee or
broker has executed and delivered a transfer application, and

- may not receive federal income tax information or reports furnished to
record holders of common units.

The transferor of common units will have a duty to provide the transferee with
all information that may be necessary to transfer the common units. The
transferor will not have a duty to insure the execution of the transfer
application by the transferee and will have no liability or responsibility if
the transferee neglects to or chooses not to execute and forward the transfer
application to the transfer agent. See "The Partnership Agreement--Status as
Limited Partner or Assignee".

Until a common unit has been transferred on the books of TC PipelLines, TC
PipeLines and the transfer agent, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary,
may treat the record holder of the unit as the absolute owner for all purposes,
except as otherwise required by law or stock exchange regulations.

86



DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBORDINATED UNITS

The subordinated units are a separate class of interests in TC Pipelines,
and the rights of holders to participate in distributions to partners differ
from, and are subordinated to, the rights of the holders of common units. For
any given quarter, any Available Cash will first be distributed to the general
partner and to the holders of common units, plus any arrearages, and then will
be distributed to the holders of subordinated units. See "Cash Distribution
Policy".

CONVERSION OF SUBORDINATED UNITS

The subordination period will generally extend from the closing of the
offering until the first day of any quarter beginning after June 30, 2004 in
respect of which

(1) distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus on the common
units, the subordinated units and the related distributions on the general
partner interests with respect to each of the three consecutive four-quarter
periods immediately preceding that date equaled or exceeded the sum of the
minimum quarterly distribution on all of the outstanding common units, the
subordinated units and the related distributions on the general partner
interests during those periods,

(2) the Adjusted Operating Surplus generated during each of the three
consecutive four-quarter periods immediately preceding that date equaled or
exceeded the sum of the minimum quarterly distribution on all of the common
units and the subordinated units that were outstanding on a fully diluted
basis and the related distributions on the general partner interests during
those periods, and

(3) there are no outstanding arrearages in the payment of the minimum
quarterly distribution on the common units.

Prior to the end of the subordination period and to the extent the tests for
conversion described below are satisfied, a portion of the subordinated units
may be eligible to convert into common units prior to June 30, 2004.
Subordinated units will convert into common units on a one-for-one basis on the
first day after the record date established for the distribution in respect of
any quarter ending on or after

- June 30, 2002 with respect to one-third of the subordinated units
(1,320,000 subordinated units) and

- June 30, 2003 with respect to one-third of the subordinated units
(1,320,000 subordinated units), in respect of which each of the financial
tests described in clauses (1), (2) and (3) above have been satisfied;
provided, however, that the early conversion of the second one-third of
subordinated units may not occur until at least one year following the
early conversion of the first one-third of subordinated units.

Upon expiration of the subordination period, all remaining subordinated
units will convert into common units on a one-for-one basis and will thereafter
participate, pro rata, with the other common units in distributions of Available
Cash. In addition, if the general partner is removed as our general partner
under circumstances where cause does not exist and units held by the general
partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor of that removal,

(1) the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated
units will immediately convert into common units on a one-for-one basis,
(2) any existing arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly

distribution on the common units will be extinguished and

(3) the general partner will have the right to convert its general
partner interests (and incentive distribution rights) into common units or
to receive cash in exchange for those interests.
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LIMITED VOTING RIGHTS

Holders of subordinated units will generally vote as a class separate from
the holders of common units and, as in the case of holders of common units, will
have very limited voting rights. During the subordination period, common units
and subordinated units each vote separately as a class on the following matters:

(1) a sale or exchange of all or substantially all of our assets,
(2) the election of a successor general partner,
(3) a dissolution or reconstitution of TC Pipelines,

(4) a merger of TC Pipelines,

(5) issuance of limited partner interests in some circumstances and

(6) some amendments to the partnership agreement, including any
amendment that would cause TC PipelLines to be treated as an association
taxable as a corporation.

The subordinated units are not entitled to vote on approval of the
withdrawal of the general partner or the transfer by the general partner of its
general partner interest or incentive distribution rights under some
circumstances. Removal of the general partner requires a two-thirds vote of all
outstanding units. Under the partnership agreement, the general partner
generally will be permitted to effect amendments to the partnership agreement
that do not materially adversely affect unitholders without the approval of any
unitholders.

DISTRIBUTIONS UPON LIQUIDATION

If TC PipeLines liquidates during the subordination period, in some
circumstances holders of outstanding common units will be entitled to receive
more per unit in liquidating distributions than holders of outstanding
subordinated units. The per unit difference will be dependent upon the amount of
gain or loss recognized by TC PipeLines in liquidating its assets. Following
conversion of the subordinated units into common units, all units will be
treated the same upon liquidation of TC PipeLines.
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THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE TC PIPELINES
PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT. THE FORM OF THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT IS INCLUDED IN THIS
PROSPECTUS AS APPENDIX A. THE FORM OF PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT FOR THE INTERMEDIATE
PARTNERSHIP IS INCLUDED AS AN EXHIBIT TO THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OF WHICH
THIS PROSPECTUS CONSTITUTES A PART. TC PIPELINES WILL PROVIDE PROSPECTIVE
INVESTORS WITH A COPY OF THE FORM OF THE INTERMEDIATE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT UPON
REQUEST AT NO CHARGE. UNLESS THE CONTEXT OTHERWISE REQUIRES, REFERENCES HEREIN
TO THE "PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT" CONSTITUTE REFERENCES TO THE TC PIPELINES
PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT AND THE INTERMEDIATE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT, COLLECTIVELY.

THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS OF THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT ARE SUMMARIZED
ELSEWHERE IN THIS PROSPECTUS.

- WITH REGARD TO THE TRANSFER OF COMMON UNITS, SEE "DESCRIPTION OF THE
COMMON UNITS--TRANSFER OF COMMON UNITS".

- WITH REGARD TO DISTRIBUTIONS OF AVAILABLE CASH, SEE "CASH DISTRIBUTION
POLICY".

- WITH REGARD TO ALLOCATIONS OF TAXABLE INCOME AND TAXABLE LOSS, SEE "TAX
CONSIDERATIONS".

ORGANIZATION AND DURATION

TC PipeLines was organized in December 1998. TC PipeLines will dissolve on
December 31, 2097, unless sooner dissolved under the terms of the partnership
agreement.

PURPOSE

Our purpose under the partnership agreement is limited to serving as the
limited partner of the intermediate partnership and engaging in any business
activity that may be engaged in by the intermediate partnership or that is
approved by the general partner. The TC PipeLines intermediate partnership
agreement provides that TC PipelLines intermediate partnership may, directly or
indirectly, engage in:

(1) the operations as conducted immediately before the offering, including the
ownership of a general partner interest in Northern Border Pipeline;

(2) any other activity approved by the general partner but only to the extent
that the general partner reasonably determines that, as of the date of the
acquisition or commencement of the activity, the activity generates
"qualifying income" as that term is defined in Section 7704 of the Internal
Revenue Code; or

(3) any activity that enhances the operations of an activity that is described
in (1) or (2) above.

Although the general partner has the ability to cause TC PipelLines and the
TC PipeLines intermediate partnership to engage in activities other than the
transportation of natural gas, the general partner has no current plans to do
so. The general partner is authorized in general to perform all acts deemed
necessary to carry out the purposes and to conduct our business.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each limited partner, and each person who acquires a unit from a unitholder
and executes and delivers a transfer application, grants to the general partner
and, if appointed, a liquidator, a power of attorney to, among other things,
execute and file documents required for the qualification, continuance or
dissolution of TC PipelLines. The power of attorney also grants the authority for
the amendment of, and to make consents and waivers under, the partnership
agreement.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

For a description of the initial capital contributions to be made to us, see
"The Transactions." Unitholders are not obligated to
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make additional capital contributions, except as described below under
"--Limited Liability".

LIMITED LIABILITY

Assuming that a limited partner does not participate in the control of our
business within the meaning of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership
Act and that he otherwise acts in conformity with the provisions of the
partnership agreement, his liability under the Delaware Act will be limited,
subject to possible exceptions, to the amount of capital he is obligated to
contribute to us for his common units plus his share of any undistributed
profits and assets. If it were determined, however, that the right or exercise
of the right by the limited partners as a group:

- to remove or replace the general partner;
- to approve some amendments to the partnership agreement; or
- to take other action under the partnership agreement

constituted "participation in control" of our business for purposes of the
Delaware Act, then the limited partners could be held personally liable for our
obligations under the laws of Delaware to the same extent as the general
partner. This liability would extend to persons who transact business with us
who reasonably believe that the limited partner is a general partner.

Under the Delaware Act, a limited partnership may not make a distribution to
a partner if after the distribution, all liabilities of the limited partnership,
other than liabilities to partners on account of their partnership interests and
liabilities for which the recourse of creditors is limited to specific property
of the partnership, exceed the fair value of the assets of the limited
partnership. For the purpose of determining the fair value of the assets of a
limited partnership, the Delaware Act provides that the fair value of property
subject to liability for which recourse of creditors is limited shall be
included in the assets of the limited partnership only to the extent that the
fair value of that property exceeds the nonrecourse liability. The Delaware Act
provides that a limited partner who receives a distribution and knew at the time
of the distribution that the distribution was in violation of the Delaware Act
shall be liable to the limited partnership for the amount of the distribution
for three years. Under the Delaware Act, an assignee who becomes a substituted
limited partner of a limited partnership is liable for the obligations of his
assignor to make contributions to the partnership, except the assignee is not
obligated for liabilities unknown to him at the time he became a limited partner
and which could not be ascertained from the partnership agreement.

As a general partner in Northern Border Pipeline, the TC PipelLines
intermediate partnership will be liable for the debts and obligations of
Northern Border Pipeline, although the partnership agreement of Northern Border
Pipeline provides that, unless agreed to by all partners, Northern Border
Pipeline may not enter into any contract or other obligation unless recourse by
the parties is limited to the assets of Northern Border Pipeline.

TC PipeLines intermediate partnership will initially conduct business in at
least seven states. Maintenance of limited liability for TC PipelLines, as the
limited partner in the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership, may require
compliance with legal requirements in the jurisdictions in which TC PipelLines
intermediate partnership conducts business, including qualifying TC PipelLines
intermediate partnership to do business there. Limitations on the liability of
limited partners for the obligations of a limited partner have not been clearly
established in many jurisdictions. If it were determined that we were, by virtue
of our limited partner interest in the intermediate partnership or otherwise,
conducting business in any state without compliance with the applicable limited
partnership statute, or that the right or exercise of the right by the limited
partners as a group to remove or replace the general partner, to approve some
amendments to the partnership agreement, or to take other action under the
partnership agreement constituted "participation in the control" of our
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business for purposes of the statutes of any relevant jurisdiction, then the
limited partners could be held personally liable for our obligations under the
law of that jurisdiction to the same extent as the general partner under the
circumstances. We will operate in a manner as the general partner considers
reasonable and necessary or appropriate to preserve the limited liability of the
limited partners.

ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL SECURITIES

The partnership agreement authorizes us to issue an unlimited number of
additional limited partner interests and other equity securities for the
consideration and on the terms and conditions established by the general partner
in its sole discretion without the approval of any limited partners;

During the subordination period, we may not issue an aggregate of more than
9,400,000 additional common units or units on a parity with common units,
without the approval of the holders of a unit majority.

During the subordination period or thereafter, we may issue an unlimited
number of common units as follows:

(1) upon exercise of the underwriters' overallotment option;
(2) upon conversion of subordinated units;
(3) issuance under employee benefit plans;

(4) upon conversion of the general partner interests and incentive distribution
rights as a result of a withdrawal of the general partner;

(5) in the event of a combination or subdivision of common units; or

(6) issuance for an acquisition or capital improvement that would have resulted,
on a pro forma basis, in an increase in Adjusted Operating Surplus on a per
unit basis pro forma for the preceding four-quarter period or within 365
days of, and the net proceeds from the issuance are used to repay debt
incurred with an acquisition or capital improvement.

It is possible that we will fund acquisitions through the issuance of
additional common units or other equity securities. Holders of any additional
common units we issue will be entitled to share equally with the then-existing
holders of common units in our distributions of Available Cash. In addition, the
issuance of additional partnership interests may dilute the value of the
interests of the then-existing holders of common units in our net assets.

In accordance with Delaware law and the provisions of the partnership
agreement, we may also issue additional partnership securities that, in the sole
discretion of the general partner, may have special voting rights to which the
common units are not entitled.

Upon issuance of additional partnership securities, other than upon exercise
of the over-allotment option, the general partner will be required to make
additional capital contributions to the extent necessary to maintain its
combined 2% general partner interest in us and in the intermediate partnership.
Moreover, the general partner will have the right, which it may from time to
time assign in whole or in part to any of its affiliates, to purchase common
units, subordinated units or other equity securities whenever, and on the same
terms that, we issue those securities to persons other than the general partner
and its affiliates, to the extent necessary to maintain their percentage
interest, including their interest represented by common units and subordinated
units, that existed immediately prior to each issuance. The holders of common
units will not have preemptive rights to acquire additional common units or
other partnership interests.

AMENDMENT OF PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

Amendments to the partnership agreement may be proposed only by or with the
consent of the general partner, which consent may be given or withheld in its
sole discretion. In order to adopt a proposed amendment, other than the
amendments discussed below, the general partner is required to seek written
approval of the holders of the number of units required to approve the amendment
or call a meeting of
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the limited partners to consider and vote upon the proposed amendment except as
described below.

PROHIBITED AMENDMENTS. No amendment may be made that would:

(1) enlarge the obligations of any limited partner without its consent, unless
approved by at least a majority of the type or class of limited partner
interests so affected;

(2) enlarge the obligations of, restrict in any way any action by or rights of,
or reduce in any way the amounts distributable, reimbursable or otherwise
payable by TC PipeLines to the general partner or any of its affiliates
without its consent, which may be given or withheld in its sole discretion;

(3) change the term of TC PipeLines;

(4) provide that TC PipelLines is not dissolved upon the expiration of its term
or upon an election to dissolve TC PipelLines by the general partner that is
approved by holders of a unit majority; or

(5) give any person the right to dissolve TC PipeLines other than the general
partner's right to dissolve TC PipeLines with the approval of holders of a
unit majority.

The provision of the partnership agreement preventing the amendments having
the effects described in clauses (1)-(5) above can be amended upon the approval
of the holders of at least 90% of the outstanding units voting together as a
single class.

NO UNITHOLDER APPROVAL. The general partner may generally make amendments
to the partnership agreement without the approval of any limited partner or
assignee to reflect:

(1) a change in the name of TC PipeLines, the location of the principal place of
business of TC PipeLines, the registered agent or the registered office of
TC PipelLines;

(2) the admission, substitution, withdrawal or removal of partners in accordance
with the partnership agreement;

(3) a change that, in the sole discretion of the general partner, is necessary
or advisable to qualify or continue the qualification of TC PipelLines as a
limited partnership or a partnership in which the limited partners have
limited liability under the laws of any state or to ensure that neither TC
PipeLines nor the intermediate partnership will be treated as an association
taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxed as an entity for federal income
tax purposes;

(4) an amendment that is necessary, in the opinion of counsel to TC PipelLines to
prevent TC PipelLines or the general partner or its directors, officers,
agents or trustees, from in any manner being subjected to the provisions of
the Investment Company Act of 1940, the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, or
"plan asset" regulations adopted under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, whether or not substantially similar to plan asset
regulations currently applied or proposed;

(5) subject to the limitations on the issuance of additional common units or
other limited or general partner interests described above, an amendment
that in the discretion of the general partner is necessary or advisable for
the authorization of additional limited or general partner interests;

(6) any amendment expressly permitted in the partnership agreement to be made by
the general partner acting alone;

(7) an amendment effected, necessitated or contemplated by a merger agreement
that has been approved under the terms of the partnership agreement;

(8) any amendment that, in the discretion of the general partner, is necessary
or advisable for the formation by TC PipelLines of, or its investment in, any
corporation, partnership or other entity, other than the intermediate
partnership, as otherwise permitted by the partnership agreement;
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(9) a change in the fiscal year or taxable year of TC PipelLines and related
changes; and

(10) any other amendments substantially similar to any of the matters described
in (1)-(9) above.

In addition, the general partner may make amendments to the partnership
agreement without the approval of any limited partner or assignee if those
amendments, in the discretion of the general partner:

(1) do not adversely affect the limited partners in any material respect;

(2) are necessary or advisable to satisfy any requirements, conditions or
guidelines contained in any opinion, directive, order, ruling or regulation
of any federal or state agency or judicial authority or contained in any
federal or state statute;

(3) are necessary or advisable to facilitate the trading of limited partner
interests or to comply with any rule, regulation, guideline or requirement
of any securities exchange on which the limited partner interests are or
will be listed for trading, compliance with any of which the general partner
deems to be in the best interests of TC PipeLines and the limited partners;

(4) are necessary or advisable for any action taken by the general partner
relating to splits or combinations of units under the provisions of the
partnership agreement; or

(5) are required to effect the intent expressed in this prospectus or the intent
of the provisions of the partnership agreement or are otherwise contemplated
by the partnership agreement.

OPINION OF COUNSEL AND UNITHOLDER APPROVAL. The general partner will not be
required to obtain an opinion of counsel that an amendment will not result in a
loss of limited liability to the limited partners or result in TC Pipelines
being treated as an entity for federal income tax purposes if one of the
amendments described above under "-- No Unitholder Approval" should occur. No
other amendments to the partnership agreement will become effective without the
approval of holders of at least 90% of the units unless TC PipelLines obtains an
opinion of counsel to the effect that the amendment will not affect the limited
liability under applicable law of any limited partner in TC PipelLines or cause
TC PipeLines or the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership to be taxable as a
corporation or otherwise to be taxed as an entity for federal income tax
purposes (to the extent not previously taxed as such).

Any amendment that would have a material adverse effect on the rights or
preferences of any type or class of outstanding units in relation to other
classes of units will require the approval of at least a majority of the type or
class of units so affected. Any amendment that reduces the voting percentage
required to take any action is required to be approved by the affirmative vote
of limited partners constituting not less than the voting requirement sought to
be reduced.

MERGER, SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF ASSETS

The general partner is generally prohibited, without the prior approval of
holders of a unit majority, from causing TC PipelLines to, among other things,
sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets in
a single transaction or a series of related transactions, including by way of
merger, consolidation or other combination, or approving on behalf of TC
PipeLines the sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of
the assets of the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership; provided that the
general partner may mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or grant a security interest
in all or substantially all of TC PipelLines' assets without that approval. The
general partner may also sell all or substantially all of TC PipelLines' assets
under a foreclosure or other realization upon the encumbrances above without
that approval. Furthermore, provided that conditions specified in the
partnership agreement are satisfied, the general partner may merge TC PipelLines
or any of its subsidiaries into, or convey some or all of their assets to, a
newly formed entity if the sole purpose of that merger or conveyance
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is to effect a mere change in the legal form of TC PipelLines into another
limited liability entity. The unitholders are not entitled to dissenters' rights
of appraisal under the partnership agreement or applicable Delaware law in the
event of a merger or consolidation, a sale of substantially all of TC PipeLines'
assets or any other transaction or event.

TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION

We will continue until December 31, 2097, unless terminated sooner under the
partnership agreement. We will dissolve upon:

(1) the election of the general partner to dissolve us, if approved by the
holders of a unit majority;

(2) the sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
assets and properties of TC PipelLines and the intermediate partnership;

(3) the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of TC PipelLines; or

(4) the withdrawal or removal of the general partner or any other event that
results in its ceasing to be the general partner other than by reason of a
transfer of its general partner interest in accordance with the partnership
agreement or withdrawal or removal following approval and admission of a
successor.

Upon a dissolution under clause (4), the holders of a unit majority may also
elect, within specific time limitations, to reconstitute TC PipelLines and
continue its business on the same terms and conditions described in the
partnership agreement by forming a new limited partnership on terms identical to
those in the partnership agreement and having as general partner an entity
approved by the holders of a unit majority subject to receipt by TC PipeLines of
an opinion of counsel to the effect that:

(1) the action would not result in the loss of limited liability of any limited
partner; and

(2) neither TC PipeLines, the reconstituted limited partnership, nor the
intermediate partnership would be treated as an association taxable as a
corporation or otherwise be taxable as an entity for federal income tax
purposes upon the exercise of that right to continue.

LIQUIDATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF PROCEEDS

Upon our dissolution, unless we are reconstituted and continued as a new
limited partnership, the liquidator authorized to wind up our affairs will,
acting with all of the powers of the general partner that the liquidator deems
necessary or desirable in its good faith judgment, liquidate our assets and
apply the proceeds of the liquidation as provided in "Cash Distribution
Policy--Distributions of Cash Upon Liquidation". The liquidator may defer
liquidation or distribution of our assets for a reasonable period of time or
distribute assets to partners in kind if it determines that a sale would be
impractical or would cause undue loss to the partners.

WITHDRAWAL OR REMOVAL OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

Except as described below, TC PipeLines GP has agreed not to withdraw
voluntarily as the general partner of TC PipelLines and the intermediate
partnership prior to June 30, 2009, without obtaining the approval of the
holders of at least a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding common
units held by the general partner and its affiliates, and furnishing an opinion
of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters. On or after June 30,
2009, TC PipelLines GP may withdraw as the general partner without first
obtaining approval from any unitholder by giving 90 days' written notice, and
that withdrawal will not constitute a violation of the partnership agreement.
Notwithstanding the information above, TC PipeLines GP may withdraw without
unitholder approval upon 90 days' notice to the limited partners if at least 50%
of the outstanding common units are held or controlled by one person and its
affiliates other than the general partner and its affiliates. In addition, the
partnership agreement permits the general partner in some instances to sell or
otherwise transfer all of its general partner interests in TC PipelLines without
the approval
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of the unitholders. See "--Transfer of General Partner Interest and Incentive
Distribution Rights".

Upon the withdrawal of the general partner under any circumstances, other
than as a result of a transfer by the general partner of all or a part of its
general partner interests in TC PipeLines, the holders of a unit majority may
select a successor to that withdrawing general partner. If a successor is not
elected, or is elected but an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and
tax matters cannot be obtained, TC PipeLines will be dissolved, wound up and
liquidated, unless within 180 days after that withdrawal the holders of a unit
majority agree in writing to continue the business of TC PipeLines and to
appoint a successor general partner. See "--Termination and Dissolution".

The general partner may not be removed unless that removal is approved by
the vote of the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of the outstanding units,
including units held by the general partner and its affiliates, and TC PipeLines
receives an opinion of counsel regarding limited liability and tax matters. The
ownership of an aggregate of 20.2% of the outstanding units by the general
partner has the practical effect of making the general partner's removal quite
difficult. Any removal of this kind is also subject to the approval of a
successor general partner by the vote of the holders of a unit majority. The
partnership agreement also provides that if the general partner is removed as
general partner of TC PipeLines under circumstances where cause does not exist
and units held by the general partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor
of that removal:

(1) the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units
will immediately convert into common units on a one-for-one basis;

(2) any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on
the common units will be extinguished; and

(3) the general partner will have the right to convert its general partner
interests and all the incentive distribution rights into common units or to
receive cash in exchange for those interests.

wWithdrawal or removal of the general partner as a general partner of TC
PipeLines also constitutes withdrawal or removal, as the case may be, of the
general partner as a general partner of the TC PipeLines intermediate
partnership.

In the event of removal of the general partner under circumstances where
cause exists or withdrawal of the general partner where that withdrawal violates
the partnership agreement, a successor general partner will have the option to
purchase the general partner interests and incentive distribution rights of the
departing general partner for a cash payment equal to the fair market value of
those interests. Under all other circumstances where the general partner
withdraws or is removed by the limited partners, the departing general partner
will have the option to require the successor general partner to purchase the
general partner interests of the departing general partner and its incentive
distribution rights for the fair market value. In each case, this fair market
value will be determined by agreement between the departing general partner and
the successor general partner. If no agreement is reached, an independent
investment banking firm or other independent expert selected by the departing
general partner and the successor general partner will determine the fair market
value. Or if the departing general partner and the successor general partner
cannot agree upon an expert, then an expert chosen by agreement of the experts
selected by each of them will determine the fair market value. In addition, TC
PipeLines will be required to reimburse the departing general partner for all
amounts due the departing general partner, including, without limitation, all
employee-related liabilities, including severance liabilities, incurred for the
termination of any employees employed by the departing general partner for the
benefit of TC PipelLines.

If the above-described option is not exercised by either the departing
general
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partner or the successor general partner, the departing general partner's
general partner interests and its incentive distribution rights will
automatically convert into common units equal to the fair market value of those
interests, as determined by an investment banking firm or other independent
expert selected in the manner described in the preceding paragraph.

TRANSFER OF GENERAL PARTNER INTEREST AND INCENTIVE DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS

Except for a transfer by a general partner of all, but not less than all, of
its general partner interest in TC PipelLines and the intermediate partnership
to:

(a) an affiliate of the general partner; or

(b) another person as part of the merger or consolidation of the general partner
with or into another person or the transfer by the general partner of all or
substantially all of its assets to another person, the general partner may
not transfer all or any part of its general partner interest in TC PipeLines
and the intermediate partnership to another person prior to June 30, 2009,
without the approval of the holders of at least a majority of the
outstanding common units, excluding common units held by the general partner
and its affiliates. As a condition to this transfer, the transferee must
assume the rights and duties of the general partner to whose interest that
transferee has succeeded, agree to be bound by the provisions of the
partnership agreement, furnish an opinion of counsel regarding limited
liability and tax matters, agree to acquire all of the general partner's
interest in the intermediate partnership and agree to be bound by the
provisions of TC PipeLine's intermediate partnership agreement. The general
partner may at any time, however, transfer its common units and subordinated
units to one or more persons, other than TC PipeLines, without unitholder
approval. At any time, the stockholder(s) of the general partner may sell or
transfer all or part of their interest in the general partner to an
affiliate without the approval of the unitholders. The general partner or
its affiliates or a later holder may transfer its incentive distribution
rights to an affiliate or another person as part of its merger or
consolidation with or into, or sale of all or substantially all of its
assets to, that person without the prior approval of the unitholders;
provided that, in each case, the transferee agrees to be bound by the
provisions of the partnership agreement. Prior to June 30, 2009, other
transfers of the incentive distribution rights will require the affirmative
vote of holders of a unit majority. On or after June 30, 2009, the incentive
distribution rights will be freely transferable.

TRANSCANADA OWNERSHIP OF GENERAL PARTNER

TransCanada has agreed with the underwriters of the offering that it will
retain beneficial ownership of our general partner until the later to occur of:

(1) the date when TransCanada, or an affiliate, is no longer providing the
revolving credit facility; and

(2) six months after the date when there are no officers of our general partner
who are also directors, officers or employees of
TransCanada or its other affiliates.

CHANGE OF MANAGEMENT PROVISIONS

The partnership agreement contains specific provisions that are intended to
discourage a person or group from attempting to remove TC PipelLines GP as
general partner of TC PipeLines or otherwise change management. If any person or
group other than the general partner and its affiliates acquires beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of any class of units, that person or group loses
voting rights on all of its units. The partnership agreement also provides that
if the general partner is removed under circumstances where cause does not exist
and
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units held by the general partner and its affiliates are not voted in favor of
that removal:

(1) the subordination period will end and all outstanding subordinated units
will immediately convert into common units on a one-for-one basis;

(2) any existing arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on
the common units will be extinguished; and

(3) the general partner will have the right to convert its general partner
interests and all of its incentive distribution rights into common units or
to receive cash in exchange for those interests.

LIMITED CALL RIGHT

If at any time not more than 20% of the then-issued and outstanding limited
partner interests of any class are held by persons other than the general
partner and its affiliates, the general partner will have the right, which it
may assign in whole or in part to any of its affiliates or to TC PipelLines, to
acquire all, but not less than all, of the remaining limited partner interests
of the class held by unaffiliated persons as of a record date to be selected by
the general partner, on at least 10 but not more than 60 days' notice. The
purchase price in the event of this purchase is the greater of:

(1) the highest price paid by the general partner or any of its affiliates for
any limited partner interests of the class purchased within the 90 days
preceding the date on which the general partner first mails notice of its
election to purchase those limited partner interests; and

(2) the Current Market Price as of the date three days before the date that
notice is mailed.

As a result of the general partner's right to purchase outstanding limited
partner interests, a holder of limited partner interests may have his limited
partner interests purchased at an undesireable time or price. The tax
consequences to a unitholder of the exercise of this call right are the same as
a sale by that unitholder of his common units in the market. See "Tax
Considerations--Disposition of Common Units."

MEETINGS; VOTING

Except as described below regarding a person or group owning 20% or more of
all units, unitholders or assignees who are record holders of units on the
record date will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, meetings of limited
partners of TC PipelLines and to act upon matters for which approvals may be
solicited. Common units that are owned by an assignee who is a record holder,
but who has not yet been admitted as a limited partner, shall be voted by the
general partner at the written direction of the record holder. Absent direction
of this kind, the common units will not be voted, except that, in the case of
common units held by the general partner on behalf of non-citizen assignees, the
general partner shall distribute the votes on those common units in the same
ratios as the votes of limited partners on other units are cast.

The general partner does not anticipate that any meeting of unitholders will
be called in the foreseeable future. Any action that is required or permitted to
be taken by the unitholders may be taken either at a meeting of the unitholders
or without a meeting if consents in writing describing the action so taken are
signed by holders of the number of units as would be necessary to authorize or
take that action at a meeting. Meetings of the unitholders may be called by the
general partner or by unitholders owning at least 20% of the outstanding units
of the class for which a meeting is proposed. Unitholders may vote either in
person or by proxy at meetings. The holders of a majority of the outstanding
units of the class or classes for which a meeting has been called represented in
person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum unless any action by the
unitholders requires approval by holders of a greater percentage of the units,
in which case the quorum shall be the greater percentage.

Each record holder of a unit has a vote according to his percentage interest
in TC PipelLines, although additional limited
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partner interests having special voting rights could be issued. See "--Issuance
of Additional Securities". However, if at any time any person or group, other
than the general partner and its affiliates, or a direct transferee of the
general partner or its affiliates, acquires, in the aggregate, beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of any class of units then outstanding, the person or
group will lose voting rights on all of its units and the units may not be voted
on any matter and will not be considered to be outstanding when sending notices
of a meeting of unitholders, calculating required votes, determining the
presence of a quorum or for other similar purposes. Common units held in nominee
or street name account will be voted by the broker or other nominee in
accordance with the instruction of the beneficial owner unless the arrangement
between the beneficial owner and his nominee provides otherwise. Except as
otherwise provided in the partnership agreement, subordinated units will vote
together with common units as a single class.

Any notice, demand, request, report or proxy material required or permitted
to be given or made to record holders of common units under the partnership
agreement will be delivered to the record holder by TC PipeLines or by the
transfer agent.

STATUS AS LIMITED PARTNER OR ASSIGNEE

Except as described above under "--Limited Liability", the common units will
be fully paid, and unitholders will not be required to make additional
contributions.

An assignee of a common unit, after executing and delivering a transfer
application, but pending its admission as a substituted limited partner, is
entitled to an interest equivalent to that of a limited partner for the right to
share in allocations and distributions from TC PipelLines, including liquidating
distributions. The general partner will vote and exercise other powers
attributable to common units owned by an assignee who has not become a
substitute limited partner at the written direction of the assignee. See
"--Meetings; Voting". Transferees who do not execute and deliver a transfer
application will be treated neither as assignees nor as record holders of common
units, and will not receive cash distributions, federal income tax allocations
or reports furnished to record holders of common units. See "Description of the
Common Units--Transfer of Common Units".

NON-CITIZEN ASSIGNEES; REDEMPTION

If we are or become subject to federal, state or local laws or regulations
that, in the reasonable determination of the general partner, create a
substantial risk of cancellation or forfeiture of any property that we have an
interest in because of the nationality, citizenship or other related status of
any limited partner or assignee, we may redeem the units held by the limited
partner or assignee at their Current Market Price. In order to avoid any
cancellation or forfeiture, the general partner may require each limited partner
or assignee to furnish information about his nationality, citizenship or related
status. If a limited partner or assignee fails to furnish information about this
nationality, citizenship or other related status within 30 days after a request
for the information or the general partner determines after receipt of the
information that the limited partner or assignee is not an eligible citizen, the
limited partner or assignee may be treated as a non-citizen assignee. In
addition to other limitations on the rights of an assignee who is not a
substituted limited partner, a non-citizen assignee does not have the right to
direct the voting of his units and may not receive distributions in kind upon
our liquidation.

INDEMNIFICATION
Under the partnership agreement, in most circumstances, we will indemnify
the following persons, to the fullest extent permitted by law, from and against
all losses, claims, damages or similar events:
(1) the general partner;
(2) any departing general partner;

(3) any person who is or was an affiliate of a general partner or any departing
general partner;
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(4) any person who is or was a member, partner, officer, director, employee,
agent or trustee of a general partner or any departing general partner or
any affiliate of a general partner or any departing general partner; or

(5) any person who is or was serving at the request of a general partner or any
departing general partner or any affiliate of a general partner or any
departing general partner as an officer, director, employee, member,
partner, agent, fiduciary or trustee of another person.

Any indemnification under these provisions will be only out of our assets.
The general partner shall not be personally liable for, or have any obligation
to contribute or loan funds or assets to us to enable us to effectuate
indemnification. We are authorized to purchase insurance against liabilities
asserted against and expenses incurred by persons for our activities, regardless
of whether we would have the power to indemnify the person against liabilities
under the partnership agreement.

BOOKS AND REPORTS

The general partner is required to keep appropriate books of our business at
our principal offices. The books will be maintained for both tax and financial
reporting purposes on an accrual basis. For tax and financial reporting
purposes, our fiscal year is the calendar year.

We will furnish or make available to record holders of common units, within
120 days after the close of each fiscal year, an annual report containing
audited financial statements and a report on those financial statements by our
independent public accountants. Except for our fourth quarter, we will also
furnish or make available summary financial information within 90 days after the
close of each quarter.

We will furnish each record holder of a unit information reasonably required
for tax reporting purposes within 90 days after the close of each calendar year.
This information is expected to be furnished in summary form so that some
complex calculations normally required of partners can be avoided. Our ability
to furnish this summary information to unitholders will depend on the
cooperation of unitholders in supplying us with specific information. Every
unitholder will receive information to assist him in determining his federal and
state tax liability and filing his federal and state income tax returns,
regardless of whether he supplies us with information.

RIGHT TO INSPECT TC PIPELINES BOOKS
AND RECORDS

The partnership agreement provides that a limited partner can, for a purpose
reasonably related to his interest as a limited partner, upon reasonable demand
and at his own expense, have furnished to him:

(1) a current 1list of the name and last known address of each partner;

(2) a copy of our tax returns;

(3) information as to the amount of cash, and a description and statement of the
agreed value of any other property or services, contributed or to be
contributed by each partner and the date on which each became a partner;

(4) copies of the partnership agreement, the certificate of limited partnership
of the partnership, related amendments and powers of attorney under which
they have been executed;

(5) information regarding the status of our business and financial condition;
and

(6) other information regarding our affairs that is just and reasonable.

The general partner may, and intends to, keep confidential from the limited
partners trade secrets or other information the disclosure of which the general
partner believes in good faith is not in our best interests or which we are is
required by law or by agreements with third parties to keep confidential.

REGISTRATION RIGHTS

Under the partnership agreement, we have agreed to register for resale under
the
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Securities Act and applicable state securities laws any common units,
subordinated units or other partnership securities proposed to be sold by the
general partner or any of its affiliates if an exemption from the registration
requirements is not otherwise available. We are obligated to pay all expenses
incidental to the registration, excluding underwriting discounts and
commissions. See "Units Eligible for Future Sale".
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UNITS ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

After the sale of the common units offered hereby, the general partner will
hold 3,960,000 (or 1,614,000 if the underwriters' over-allotment option is
exercised in full) subordinated units. All of these subordinated units will
convert into common units at the end of the subordination period and some may
convert earlier. The sale of these units could have an adverse impact on the
price of the common units or on any trading market that may develop.

The common units sold in the offering will generally be freely transferable
without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act, except
that any common units owned by an "affiliate" of TC PipeLines may not be resold
publicly except in compliance with the registration requirements of the
Securities Act or under an exemption therefrom under Rule 144 or otherwise. Rule
144 permits securities acquired by an affiliate of the issuer to be sold into
the market in an amount that does not exceed, during any three-month period, the
greater of

(1) 1% of the total number of the securities outstanding or

(2) the average weekly reported trading volume of the common units for
the four calendar weeks prior to the sale. Sales under Rule 144 are also
subject to specific manner of sale provisions, notice requirements and the
availability of current public information about TC PipelLines. A person who
is not deemed to have been an affiliate of TC PipelLines at any time during
the three months preceding a sale, and who has beneficially owned his or her
common units for at least two years, would be entitled to sell common units
under Rule 144 without regard to the public information requirements, volume
limitations, manner of sale provisions or notice requirements of Rule 144.

Prior to the end of the subordination period, TC PipeLines may not issue
equity securities of the partnership ranking prior or senior to the common units
or an aggregate of more than 9,400,000 additional common units or an equivalent
amount of securities ranking on a parity with the common units, without the
approval of the holders of a Unit Majority. The 9,400,000 number is subject to
adjustment in the event of a combination or subdivision of common units and
shall exclude common units issued upon exercise of the underwriters'
over-allotment option, upon conversion of subordinated units, upon conversion of
the general partner interest as a result of a withdrawal of the general partner,
under an employee benefit plan or in connection with some acquisitions or
capital improvements. The partnership agreement provides that, after the
subordination period, TC PipelLines may issue an unlimited number of limited
partner interests of any type without a vote of the unitholders. The partnership
agreement does not restrict TC PipelLines' ability to issue equity securities
ranking junior to the common units at any time. Any issuance of additional
common units or some other equity securities would result in a corresponding
decrease in the proportionate ownership interest in TC PipelLines represented by,
and could adversely affect the cash distributions to and market price of, common
units then outstanding. See "The Partnership Agreement--Issuance of Additional
Securities".

Under the partnership agreement, the general partner and its affiliates will
have the right to cause TC PipelLines to register under the Securities Act and
state laws the offer and sale of any units that they hold. Subject to the terms
and conditions of the partnership agreement, these registration rights allow the
general partner and its affiliates or their assignees holding any units to
require registration of these units and to include these units in a registration
by TC PipeLines of other units, including units offered by TC PipelLines or by
any unitholder. These registration rights will continue in effect for two years
following any withdrawal or removal of the general partner as a general partner
of TC PipelLines. In connection with any registration of this kind,
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TC PipeLines will indemnify each unitholder participating in the registration
and its officers, directors and controlling persons from and against any
liabilities under the Securities Act or any state securities laws arising from
the registration statement or prospectus. TC PipelLines will bear all costs and
expenses of any the registration. Except as described below, the general partner
and its affiliates may sell their units in private transactions at any time,
subject to compliance with applicable laws.

TC PipeLines, the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership, the general
partner, TransCanada and some of its affiliates and the officers and directors
of the general partner have agreed with the underwriters not to dispose of or
hedge any of their common units or subordinated units or securities convertible
into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common units
or subordinated units or any securities that are senior to or pari passu with
common units during the period from the date of this prospectus continuing
through the date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, except with the
prior written consent of the representatives of the underwriters (other than the
redemption of the subordinated units in the event the over-allotment option is
exercised).
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NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

ON COMPLETION OF THE OFFERING, THE PRINCIPAL ASSET OF TC PIPELINES WILL
BE A 30% GENERAL PARTNER INTEREST IN NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE. THE RIGHTS,
BENEFITS, PRIVILEGES AND OBLIGATIONS OF TC PIPELINES INTERMEDIATE PARTNERSHIP AS
A PARTNER IN NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE ARE GOVERNED BY THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS
OF THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT FOR NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE. THE FOLLOWING
PARAGRAPHS ARE A SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE NORTHERN BORDER
PIPELINE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT, A COPY OF WHICH IS INCLUDED AS AN EXHIBIT TO THE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT OF WHICH THIS PROSPECTUS IS A PART.

ORGANIZATION AND PARTNERS

Northern Border Pipeline is a general partnership that was formed as of
March 9, 1978 under the Uniform Partnership Act as then in effect in the State
of Texas.

On March 17, 1999, Northern Plains, Pan Border, Northwest Border Pipeline,
the subsidiaries of TransCanada, the general partners of Northern Border
Pipeline, the Northern Border Pipeline management committee, and the operator of
Northern Border Pipeline, entered into an agreement that provides for, among
other things, (1) the consent to transfer the 30% general partner interest from
the subsidiaries of TransCanada to TC PipelLines or its subsidiary upon closing
of the offering and (2) the admission of TC PipelLines or its subsidiary as a
general partner in Northern Border Pipeline.

Therefore, on completion of the offering, the general partners of Northern
Border Pipeline will be TC PipelLines, through the TC PipelLines intermediate
partnership, which will own a 30% general partner interest, and Northern Border
Partners through a subsidiary limited partnership, which will own the remaining
70% general partner interest. The address of Northern Border Pipeline is 1111
South 103rd Street, Omaha, Nebraska 68124-1000, and its telephone number is
(402) 398-7700.

PURPOSE

The purpose of Northern Border Pipeline under the Northern Border Pipeline
partnership agreement is limited to the planning, design, financing,
construction, ownership and operation of the Pipeline System, together with all
related properties and facilities, and any extensions, expansions, additions or
other improvements thereto. Unless all of the partners in Northern Border
Pipeline agree otherwise, the purpose clause has the effect of restricting
Northern Border Pipeline from constructing or acquiring additional natural gas
transmission assets, other than those that constitute an expansion, extension,
addition or improvement of the Pipeline System, and from expanding the scope of
its activities beyond the natural gas transmission business.

MANAGEMENT AND VOTING

Except for the day to day management of the affairs of Northern Border
Pipeline and the operation of the Pipeline System, which are the responsibility
of the operator, management of Northern Border Pipeline will be overseen by the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee, composed of one representative of
TC PipeLines and three representatives of Northern Border Partners, one
designated by each general partner of Northern Border Partners. The
representative of TC PipeLines on the Northern Border Pipeline management
committee will receive no fee from TC PipelLines for serving in that capacity
other than reimbursement for expenses of being a representative. Voting power on
the Northern Border Pipeline management committee is based on the percentage
interest of the general partners, so that the representative of TC PipelLines
will control 30% of the total voting power and the representatives of Northern
Border Partners will control 70% of the total voting power. Under the Northern
Border Pipeline partnership agreement, voting power on the Northern Border
Pipeline management committee is allocated in accordance with the relative
interests of the general partners of Northern Border Partners. Accordingly, the
70% voting power of the
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Northern Border Partner's representatives on the Northern Border Pipeline
management committee is allocated as follows: 35% to the representative
designated by Northern Plains, 22.75% to the representative designated by Pan
Border, and 12.25% to the representative designated by Northwest Border, an
affiliate of williams. Northern Plains and Pan Border are subsidiaries of Enron.
Enron, through Northern Plains and Pan Border, controls 57.75% of the voting
power of the Northern Border Pipeline management committee and has the right to
designate two of its members.

Each member of the Northern Border Pipeline management committee is entitled
to vote its percentage of voting power without regard to the decision of the
other members. Thus, except as to any matters requiring unanimity, it is
possible that the Northern Border Pipeline management committee could approve a
particular project by majority vote. This would obligate TC PipeLines with
respect to that project to the full extent of its 30% interest, despite the fact
that TC PipelLines's representative on the Northern Border Pipeline management
committee voted against that project. TC PipelLines representative will generally
be obligated to vote the interest of TC PipeLines in Northern Border Pipeline in
a manner that is in the best interests of TC PipeLines. The TC PipelLines
partnership agreement currently modifies that duty, however, by providing that
the general partner of TC PipeLines or a person designated by it to serve on the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee will not be in breach of the terms
of the TC PipelLines partnership agreement or in breach of a fiduciary duty to TC
PipeLines or the unitholders with respect to the voting of TC PipelLines'
interest on the Northern Border Pipeline management committee if they acted in
good faith and in a manner they reasonably believed to be in, or not
inconsistent with, the best interests of TC PipelLines. See "Conflicts of
Interest and Fiduciary Responsibility--Fiduciary Duties of the general partners
and TC PipeLines policy committee".

Generally, the Northern Border Pipeline management committee will act by
majority vote. However, unanimity will be required with respect to the following
matters:

(1) expansions or extensions of the Northern Border pipeline system
requiring capital expenditures in an amount, currently $19.6 million or
more, requiring certification of those facilities by the FERC,

(2) settlement of cases brought under Section 4 or 5 of the Natural Gas
Act,

(3) some transfers of general partner interests in Northern Border
Pipeline and

(4) any change in, or suspension of, the cash distribution policy of
Northern Border Pipeline.

If, however, all but one of the members of the Northern Border Pipeline
management committee vote in favor of a matter requiring unanimous approval,
other than transfers of general partner interests, any one of the partners
voting in favor of the matter has the right to submit the matter to an
arbitration panel. The arbitration panel will be composed of three independent
natural gas industry experts, one appointed by the members voting in favor of
the matter, one appointed by the dissenting member and a third appointed by the
two experts. The arbitration panel will determine if Northern Border Pipeline
should proceed with the disputed matter, using the best interests of Northern
Border Pipeline as its sole criteria. If the panel concludes that approval of
the matter before it is in the best interests of Northern Border Pipeline, the
matter will be deemed to have received unanimous approval despite the
disapproving vote of the dissenting member. If the matter approved by the
arbitration panel involves a project the cost of which requires FERC
certification, however, the partner represented by the dissenting member will
not be required, but will have the option, to advance funds with respect to that
project. For example, if the representative of TC PipelLines votes against an
extension of the Northern Border pipeline system requiring FERC certification,
the three representatives of Northern Border Partners vote in favor of that
extension and the arbitration panel concludes that the extension
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is in the best interests of Northern Border Pipeline, then Northern Border
Pipeline would be allowed to proceed with the proposed extension. TC PipelLines
would have the right, but would not be obligated, to contribute its proportional
share of the equity contributions to fund that extension. If TC PipeLines
elected not to make the additional contributions, its interest in Northern
Border Pipeline would be diluted, and Northern Border Partners would be required
to fund 100% of the additional contributions, if it elected to go forward on
that basis.

OPERATOR

The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement designates Northern
Plains as the operator of the Pipeline System. Northern Plains' rights and
obligations as operator are provided for in the Northern Border Pipeline
partnership agreement and in a separate operating agreement between Northern
Plains and Northern Border Pipeline. The initial term of the operating agreement
expires in 2007. The operating agreement will continue in effect thereafter on a
year-to-year basis unless terminated by Northern Border Pipeline or Northern
Plains. Substantially all of the services provided by the operator are provided
by employees of Northern Plains who devote their time to the day-to-day
operations of Northern Border Pipeline.

The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement states that Northern
Plains may be removed as operator by unanimous vote of the members of the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee, other than the member appointed
by Northern Plains. If the total number of members on the Northern Border
Pipeline management committee has increased to five or more members Northern
Plains may be removed as operator by the vote of members representing 65% or
more of the total interest in Northern Border Pipeline, in support of a finding
that the operator has, through misfeasance, nonfeasance or gross negligence,
acted in a manner contrary to the best interests of Northern Border Pipeline.

The operator is entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable costs,
including overhead and administrative expenses, incurred by it and its
affiliates in connection with the performance of its responsibilities as
operator. In addition, Northern Border Pipeline has agreed to indemnify the
operator against any claims and liabilities arising out of the good faith
performance by the operator of its responsibilities under the Northern Border
Pipeline partnership agreement, to the extent the operator is acting within the
scope of its authority and in the course of Northern Border Pipeline's business.

CASH DISTRIBUTION POLICY

Because the principal asset of TC PipelLines will be its 30% general partner
interest in Northern Border Pipeline, the ability of TC PipeLines to make
distributions to the unitholders is dependent upon the receipt of cash
distributions by TC PipeLines from Northern Border Pipeline. In general, the
Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement provides that distributions to
the partners in Northern Border Pipeline are to be made on a proportionate basis
according to each partner's capital account balance. The amount and timing of
distributions are determined by the Northern Border Pipeline management
committee. Any changes to, or suspension of, the cash distribution policy of
Northern Border Pipeline requires the unanimous approval of the Northern Border
Pipeline management committee, subject to arbitration in the event three of the
four members of the Northern Border Pipeline management committee vote in favor
of the change or suspension. See "Northern Border Pipeline Partnership
Agreement--Management and Voting".

The cash distribution policy of Northern Border Pipeline as currently
approved by the Northern Border Pipeline management committee provides that
distributions are to be made by Northern Border Pipeline quarterly in an amount
equal to the previous quarter's sum, if positive, of:
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(1) 100% of net income generated by Northern Border Pipeline during the
quarter, excluding specific noncash items, plus

(2) 100% of the current portion of any allowance for income taxes for
that quarter, plus

(3) an amount equal to 35% of the sum of deferred tax expense,
depreciation expense, amortization of regulatory assets, or minus, in the
case of amortization of regulatory liabilities, for that quarter, each as
computed under Northern Border Pipeline's tariff, minus

(4) an amount equal to 35% of maintenance capital expenditures for that
quarter as computed under Northern Border Pipeline's tariff.

If an amount determined by this formula is negative, then the negative
amount is carried forward and subtracted in the calculation for the next
quarter. Decisions by Northern Border Pipeline regarding amounts to be placed in
or released from reserves consistent with the Northern Border Pipeline
partnership agreement will affect the amount of its net income, and therefore
the amount of cash distributed to TC PipelLines. Cash distributions are currently
made by Northern Border Pipeline on a quarterly basis approximately one month
after the end of the quarter.

Under some circumstances, the application of Northern Border Pipeline's cash
distribution policy could result in a reduced distribution to its partners,
including us, in any particular quarter. For example, in the fourth quarter of
1997 Northern Border Pipeline made no cash distributions to its partners as a
result of a rate refund to shippers. This rate refund resulted primarily from a
retroactive adjustment to Northern Border Pipeline's depreciation schedule that
was agreed to in the settlement of its rate case. See "Business of Northern
Border Pipeline--FERC Regulation--Cost of Service Tariff" and '"Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations--Pro
Forma Financial Condition and Results of Operations of TC PipelLines".

AUDIT AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement authorizes each
representative on the Northern Border Pipeline management committee other than
Northern Plains, if Northern Plains or its affiliate is the operator, to appoint
one member to serve on a three member Audit and compensation committee. No
member of the committee may also be an officer, director or employee of the
operator, which is currently Northern Plains, or of any affiliate thereof. The
audit and compensation committee is responsible for all matters relating to any
audits of Northern Border Pipeline and review of the compensation of the
operator's senior management and reimbursement of the operator for its costs and
expenses relating to personnel. The audit and compensation committee is
obligated to report to the Northern Border Pipeline management committee on an
annual basis with respect to these matters.

ALLOCATION OF INCOME, GAIN, LOSS AND DEDUCTION

The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement provides that, if
Northern Border Pipeline has a net profit or a net loss, items of income, gain,
loss and deduction will be allocated to the particular capital accounts of the
partners in accordance with their particular interests in Northern Border
Pipeline, that is based on relative capital account balances. These allocations
are subject to retroactive adjustment resulting from any changes in a partner's
capital account under FERC or other governmental orders or regulations.

TRANSFER OF INTEREST

In general, the general partners in Northern Border Pipeline are not
permitted to transfer their particular general partner interests, or any
indebtedness owed to them by Northern Border Pipeline, without the unanimous
consent of the Northern Border Pipeline management committee. Each general
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partner may, however, encumber its interests in the profits and surplus of
Northern Border Pipeline, and any indebtedness, and transfer its interest in
Northern Border Pipeline, or any indebtedness, to a corporation that is an
affiliate of the transferor in connection with a statutory merger with the
corporation or sale of all or substantially all of its assets to the
corporation.

ADDITIONAL CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement provides that the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee may request additional capital
contributions from the general partners of Northern Border Pipeline. Each
general partner has the right, but not the obligation, to contribute its pro
rata portion of the total amount of additional contributions requested. If TC
PipeLines elected not to make 30% of the additional contribution, its interest
in Northern Border Pipeline would be diluted.

CHANGE TO CORPORATE FORM

The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement provides that, under some
circumstances, the business and assets of Northern Border Pipeline will be
transferred to a corporation in which each partner would receive shares of stock
sufficient to give it an ownership interest in the corporation that is equal to
its then existing ownership interest in Northern Border Pipeline. The transfer
will occur automatically if it becomes unlawful for Northern Border Pipeline to
carry on its business and Northern Border Pipeline holds an effective
certificate of public convenience and necessity from the FERC at that time. The
general partner believes it is unlikely that circumstances requiring an
automatic transfer will occur. The general partners in Northern Border Pipeline
may also cause a transfer to a corporation upon the approval of partners owning
at least a two-thirds interest of Northern Border Pipeline. Under the terms of
the TC PipeLines partnership agreement, however, TC PipelLines' representative on
the Northern Border Pipeline management committee may not approve a voluntary
conversion to a corporation without first obtaining the approval of the holders
of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding units during the Subordination Period and
a majority thereafter.

WITHDRAWAL OF GENERAL PARTNERS

The general partners in Northern Border Pipeline have the right to withdraw
from Northern Border Pipeline. If they do, the withdrawing partner's capital
account is treated as a contingent liability of Northern Border Pipeline to be
repaid on liquidation of Northern Border Pipeline or at any other time as the
Northern Border Pipeline management committee determines that the amount may be
repaid without undue hardship to Northern Border Pipeline.

INDEMNIFICATION

Under the terms of the Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement,
Northern Border Pipeline has agreed to indemnify the operator and the members of
the Northern Border Pipeline management committee and any other committees
established by that committee against any claims and liabilities arising out of
the good faith performance by these persons of their responsibilities and
obligations within the scope of their authority in the course of Northern Border
Pipeline's business. This Indemnification includes the members of the audit and
compensation committee.

BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES

The partners of Northern Border Pipeline have agreed to amend the Northern
Border Pipeline partnership agreement to provide that the partners, their
affiliates and transferees, will not have any duty to offer business
opportunities to Northern Border Pipeline, with specified exceptions.

TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION
The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement provides that Northern
Border Pipeline will automatically dissolve upon (1) the transfer by Northern
Border Pipeline of all of its business and assets to a corporation, (2) the sale

or abandonment of all or substantially all

107



of Northern Border Pipeline's business and assets, provided that this kind of
sale or abandonment may be made only by unanimous written consent of all general
partners; or (3) the occurrence of any event that makes it unlawful for the
business of Northern Border Pipeline to be carried on. In addition to these
automatic dissolution events, Northern Border Pipeline may be dissolved by
unanimous consent of all of its partners, upon the occurrence of a bankruptcy or
similar event with respect to a partner or the dissolution of a partner.

LIQUIDATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF PROCEEDS

The Northern Border Pipeline partnership agreement provides that, following
the dissolution of Northern Border Pipeline, unless Northern Border Pipeline is
reconstituted and continued under the terms of the Northern Border Pipeline
partnership agreement, the business and affairs of Northern Border Pipeline will
be wound up and its assets liquidated in an orderly manner. Any amounts
remaining upon satisfaction of Northern Border Pipeline's obligations to its
creditors will be distributed to the partners in accordance with the positive
balances in their particular capital accounts.
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TAX CONSIDERATIONS

THIS SECTION SETS FORTH THE MATERIAL FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS THAT
MAY BE RELEVANT TO THE DECISION TO PURCHASE UNITS OF A PROSPECTIVE UNITHOLDER
WHO IS AN INDIVIDUAL CITIZEN OR RESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES AND, TO THE EXTENT
SET FORTH BELOW UNDER "--LEGAL OPINIONS AND ADVICE", EXPRESSES THE OPINION OF
FRIED, FRANK, HARRIS, SHRIVER & JACOBSON (A PARTNERSHIP INCLUDING PROFESSIONAL
CORPORATIONS), SPECIAL COUNSEL TO THE GENERAL PARTNER AND US, INSOFAR AS IT
RELATES TO MATTERS OF UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX LAW AND LEGAL CONCLUSIONS
WITH RESPECT THERETO. THIS SECTION IS BASED UPON CURRENT PROVISIONS OF THE
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE, EXISTING AND PROPOSED REGULATIONS AND CURRENT
ADMINISTRATIVE RULINGS AND COURT DECISIONS, ALL OF WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE.
SUBSEQUENT CHANGES IN THESE AUTHORITIES MAY CAUSE THE TAX CONSEQUENCES TO VARY
SUBSTANTIALLY FROM THE CONSEQUENCES DESCRIBED BELOW. UNLESS THE CONTEXT
OTHERWISE REQUIRES, REFERENCES IN THIS SECTION TO US ARE REFERENCES TO BOTH TC
PIPELINES AND THE TC PIPELINES INTERMEDIATE PARTNERSHIP.

NO ATTEMPT HAS BEEN MADE IN THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION TO COMMENT ON ALL
FEDERAL INCOME TAX MATTERS AFFECTING US OR THE UNITHOLDERS, OR ON ANY MATTERS OF
ANY TAX LAW OTHER THAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX LAW. MOREOVER, THE DISCUSSION FOCUSES
ON UNITHOLDERS WHO ARE INDIVIDUAL CITIZENS OR RESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES WHO
ARE NOT SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES PERSONAL TO THE UNITHOLDER AND HAS ONLY
LIMITED APPLICATION TO CORPORATIONS, ESTATES, TRUSTS, NON-RESIDENT ALIENS OR
OTHER UNITHOLDERS SUBJECT TO SPECIALIZED TAX TREATMENT, INCLUDING TAX-EXEMPT
INSTITUTIONS, FOREIGN PERSONS, INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNTS, REITS OR MUTUAL
FUNDS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH PROSPECTIVE UNITHOLDER SHOULD CONSULT, AND SHOULD
DEPEND ON, HIS OR HER OWN TAX ADVISOR IN ANALYZING THE STATE, LOCAL AND FOREIGN
TAX CONSEQUENCES TO HIM OR HER OF THE OWNERSHIP OR DISPOSITION OF COMMON UNITS
AND IN DETERMINING WHETHER OR NOT SUCH UNITHOLDER IS SUBJECT TO SPECIAL
CIRCUMSTANCES OR SPECIALIZED TAX TREATMENT WHICH COULD AFFECT THE FEDERAL INCOME
TAX TREATMENT OF SUCH UNITHOLDER.

LEGAL OPINIONS AND ADVICE

Counsel is of the opinion that, based on the accuracy of the representations
and covenants and subject to the qualifications set forth in the detailed
discussion that follows, for federal income tax purposes:

(1) TC PipelLines and TC PipelLines intermediate partnership will each be
treated as a partnership, and

(2) owners of common units, with specified exceptions, as described in
"--Limited Partner Status" below, will be treated as partners of TC
PipeLines but not the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership.

No ruling has been or will be requested from the IRS regarding our
classification as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, whether our
operations generate "qualifying income" under Section 7704 of the Internal
Revenue Code or any other matter affecting us or prospective unitholders. An
opinion of counsel represents only that counsel's best legal judgment and does
not bind the IRS or the courts. Thus, no assurance can be provided that the
opinions and statements made here would be sustained by a court if contested by
the IRS. Any contest of this sort with the IRS may materially and adversely
impact the market for the common units and the prices at which common units
trade. In addition, the costs of any contest with the IRS will be borne directly
or indirectly by the unitholders and the general partner. Furthermore, no
assurance can be given that the treatment of TC PipeLines or an investment in TC
PipeLines will not be significantly modified by future legislative or
administrative changes or court decisions. Any modifications may or may not be
retroactively applied.

For the reasons described below, counsel has not rendered an opinion with
respect to the following specific federal income tax issues:

(1) the treatment of a unitholder whose common units are loaned to a short
seller to cover a short sale of common units (see "--Tax Consequences of
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Unit Ownership--TREATMENT OF SHORT SALES"),

(2) whether a unitholder acquiring common units in separate transactions
must maintain a single aggregate adjusted tax basis in his or her common
units (see "--Disposition of Common Units--RECOGNITION OF GAIN OR
LOSS"),

(3) whether our monthly convention for allocating taxable income and losses
is permitted by existing Treasury Regulations (see "--Disposition of
Common Units--ALLOCATIONS BETWEEN TRANSFERORS AND TRANSFEREES"), AND

(4) whether our method for depreciating Section 743 adjustments is
sustainable (see "--Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership-- SECTION 754
ELECTION").

PARTNERSHIP STATUS

A partnership is not a taxable entity and incurs no federal income tax
liability. Instead, each partner of a partnership is required to take into
account his or her allocable share of items of income, gain, loss and deduction
of the partnership in computing his or her federal income tax liability,
regardless of whether cash distributions are made. Distributions by a
partnership to a partner are generally not taxable unless the amount of cash
distributed is in excess of the partner's adjusted basis in the partnership
interest.

No ruling has been or will be sought from the IRS and the IRS has made no
determination as to the status of TC PipeLines or the TC PipeLines intermediate
partnership as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. Instead we have
relied on the opinion of counsel that, based upon the Internal Revenue Code, its
regulations, published revenue rulings and court decisions and the
representations described below, TC PipeLines and the TC PipelLines intermediate
partnership will each be classified as a partnership for federal income tax
purposes.

In rendering its opinion, counsel has relied on factual representations and
covenants made by us and the general partner, and has assumed that Northern
Border Pipeline Company is organized and will be operated in accordance with the
Texas Uniform Partnership Act and the Northern Border Pipeline Partnership
Agreement as currently in effect. The representations and covenants made by us
and our general partner upon which counsel has relied are:

(a) Neither we nor the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership will elect
to be treated as an association or corporation;

(b) We will be operated in accordance with:
(1) all applicable partnership statutes,

(2) the partnership agreement, and

(3) the description of us in this prospectus;

(c) The TC PipeLines intermediate partnership will be operated in
accordance with

(1) all applicable partnership statutes,
(2) the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership agreement, and
(3) its description in this prospectus;

(d) For each taxable year, more than 90% of our gross income will be
derived from:

(1) the exploration, development, production, processing, refining,
transportation or marketing of any mineral or natural resource,
including oil, gas, its products and naturally occurring carbon
dioxide, or

(2) other items of income as to which counsel has or will opine are
"qualifying income" within the meaning of Section 7704(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code; and

(e) Neither we, the general partner, nor the TC PipelLines intermediate
partnership will approve any modification to the Northern Border Pipeline
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partnership agreement, which modification would permit Northern Border
Pipeline to engage in any activity other than the transportation (within the
meaning of Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code) of natural gas
without first receiving an opinion of counsel to the effect that the
modification will not cause Northern Border Pipeline to have income that is
not qualifying income (as described below).

Section 7704 of the Internal Revenue Code provides that publicly traded
partnerships will, as a general rule, be taxed as corporations. However, an
exception (the "Qualifying Income Exception") exists with respect to publicly-
traded partnerships of which 90% or more of the gross income for every taxable
year consists of "qualifying income." Qualifying income includes income and
gains derived from the transportation and marketing of natural gas. Other types
of qualifying income include interest (from other than a financial business),
dividends, gains from the sale of real property and gains from the sale or other
disposition of capital assets held for the production of income that otherwise
constitutes qualifying income. We estimate that less than 1% of Northern Border
Pipeline's income in 1998 was not qualifying income and, that for 1999, less
than 1% of TC PipelLines' income will be nonqualifying income; however, these
estimates could change from time to time and may be affected by the activities
of Northern Border Pipeline Company. Based upon and subject to these estimates,
the factual representations and covenants made by us and the general partner and
a review of the applicable legal authorities, counsel is of the opinion that at
least 90% of our gross income constitutes qualifying income.

If we fail to meet the Qualifying Income Exception, other than a failure
which is determined by the IRS to be inadvertent and which is cured within a
reasonable time after discovery, we will be treated as if we had transferred all
of our assets, subject to liabilities, to a newly formed corporation, on the
first day of the year in which we fail to meet the Qualifying Income Exception,
in return for stock in that corporation, and then distributed that stock to the
partners in liquidation of their interests in us. This contribution and
liquidation should be tax-free to unitholders and TC PipelLines, so long as we,
at that time, do not have liabilities in excess of the tax basis of our assets.
Thereafter, we would be treated as a corporation for federal income tax
purposes.

If TC PipeLines or the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership were treated as
an association taxable as a corporation in any taxable year, either as a result
of a failure to meet the Qualifying Income Exception or otherwise, its items of
income, gain, loss and deduction would be reflected only on its tax return
rather than being passed through to the unitholders, and its net income would be
taxed to TC PipelLines or the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership at corporate
rates. In addition, any distribution made to a unitholder would be treated as
either taxable dividend income, to the extent of our current or accumulated
earnings and profits, or in the absence of earnings and profits, a nontaxable
return of capital, to the extent of the unitholder's tax basis in his or her
common units, or taxable capital gain, after the unitholder's tax basis in his
or her common units is reduced to zero. Accordingly, treatment of either us or
the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership as an association taxable as a
corporation would result in a material reduction in a unitholder's cash flow and
after-tax return and thus would likely result in a substantial reduction of the
value of the units.

The discussion below is based on the assumption that we will be classified
as a partnership for federal income tax purposes.

LIMITED PARTNER STATUS
Unitholders who have become limited partners of TC PipelLines will be treated
as partners of TC PipeLines for federal income tax purposes. Counsel is also of
the opinion that

(a) assignees who have executed and delivered transfer applications, and
are awaiting admission as limited partners, and
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(b) unitholders whose common units are held in street name or by a
nominee and who have the right to direct the nominee in the exercise of all
substantive rights attendant to the ownership of their common units,

will be treated as partners of TC PipelLines for federal income tax purposes. As
there is no direct authority addressing assignees of common units who are
entitled to execute and deliver transfer applications and thereby become
entitled to direct the exercise of attendant rights, but who fail to execute and
deliver transfer applications, counsel's opinion does not extend to these
persons. Furthermore, a purchaser or other transferee of common units who does
not execute and deliver a transfer application may not receive federal income
tax information or reports furnished to record holders of common units unless
the common units are held in a nominee or street name account and the nominee or
broker has executed and delivered a transfer application for those common units.

A beneficial owner of common units whose common units have been transferred
to a short seller to complete a short sale would appear to lose his or her
status as a partner with respect to those units for federal income tax purposes.
See "--Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership--TREATMENT OF SHORT SALES".

Income, gain, deductions or losses would not appear to be reportable by a
unitholder who is not a partner for federal income tax purposes, and any cash
distributions received by a unitholder who is not a partner for federal income
tax purposes would therefore be fully taxable as ordinary income. These holders
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to their status as partners
in TC PipeLines for federal income tax purposes.

TAX CONSEQUENCES OF UNIT OWNERSHIP

FLOW-THROUGH OF TAXABLE INCOME

No federal income tax will be paid by us. Instead, each unitholder will be
required to report on his or her income tax return his or her allocable share of
our income, gains, losses and deductions without regard to whether corresponding
cash distributions are received by that unitholder. Consequently, a unitholder
may be allocated income from us even if he or she has not received a cash
distribution. Each unitholder will be required to include in income his or her
allocable share of TC PipeLines income, gain, loss and deduction for the taxable
year of TC PipelLines ending with or within the taxable year of the unitholder.

TREATMENT OF DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions by us to a unitholder generally will not be taxable to the
unitholder for federal income tax purposes to the extent of his or her tax basis
in his or her common units immediately before the distribution. Our cash
distributions in excess of a unitholder's tax basis generally will be considered
to be gain from the sale or exchange of the common units, taxable in accordance
with the rules described under "--Disposition of Common Units" below. Any
reduction in a unitholder's share of our liabilities for which no partner,
including the general partner, bears the economic risk of loss, known as
"nonrecourse liabilities", will be treated as a distribution of cash to that
unitholder. To the extent that our distributions cause a unitholder's "at risk"
amount to be less than zero at the end of any taxable year, he or she must
recapture any losses deducted in previous years. See "--LIMITATIONS ON
DEDUCTIBILITY OF LOSSES".

A decrease in a unitholder's percentage interest in us because of our
issuance of additional common units will decrease his or her share of our
nonrecourse liabilities, and thus will result in a corresponding deemed
distribution of cash. A non-pro rata distribution of money or property may
result in ordinary income to a unitholder, regardless of his or her tax basis in
his or her common units, if the distribution reduces the unitholder's share of
our "unrealized receivables", including depreciation recapture, and/or
substantially appreciated "inventory items", both as defined in Section 751 of
the Internal Revenue Code, and collectively, "Section 751 Assets". To that
extent, he or she will be treated as having been distributed his or her
proportionate share of the Section 751 Assets and having
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exchanged those assets with us in return for the non-pro rata portion of the
actual distribution made to him. This latter deemed exchange will generally
result in the unitholder's realization of ordinary income under Section 751(b)
of the Internal Revenue Code. That income will equal the excess of (1) the
non-pro rata portion of that distribution over (2) the unitholder's tax basis
for the share of the Section 751 Assets deemed relinquished in the exchange.

RATIO OF TAXABLE INCOME TO DISTRIBUTIONS

We estimate that a purchaser of common units in the offering who holds those
common units from the date of the closing of the offering through December 31,
2002 will be allocated an amount of federal taxable income for that period that
will be less than 10% of the cash distributed with respect to that period. We
anticipate that after the taxable year ending December 31, 2002, the ratio of
taxable income to cash distributions to the unitholders will increase. These
estimates are based upon the assumption that gross income from operations will
approximate the amount required to make the minimum quarterly distribution on
all units and other assumptions with respect to capital expenditures, cash flow
and anticipated cash distributions. These estimates and assumptions are subject
to, among other things, numerous business, economic, regulatory, competitive and
political uncertainties beyond our control. Further, the estimates are based on
current tax law and specified tax reporting positions that we intend to adopt
and with which the IRS could disagree. Accordingly, no assurance can be given
that these estimates will prove to be correct. The actual percentage of
distributions that will constitute taxable income could be higher or lower, and
any differences could be material and could materially affect the value of the
common units.

BASIS OF COMMON UNITS

A unitholder's initial tax basis for his or her common units will be the
amount he paid for the common units plus his or her share of our nonrecourse
liabilities. That basis will be increased by his or her share of our income and
by any increases in his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities. That basis
will be decreased, but not below zero, by distributions from us, by the
unitholder's share of our losses, by any decrease in his or her share of our
nonrecourse liabilities and by his or her share of our expenditures that are not
deductible in computing its taxable income and are not required to be
capitalized. A limited partner will have no share of our debt which is recourse
to the general partner, but will have a share, generally based on his or her
share of profits, of our nonrecourse liabilities. See "--Disposition of Common
Units--RECOGNITION OF GAIN OR LOSS".

LIMITATIONS ON DEDUCTIBILITY OF LOSSES

The deduction by a unitholder of his or her share of our losses will be
limited to the tax basis in his or her units and, in the case of an individual
unitholder or a corporate unitholder, if more than 50% of the value of its stock
is owned directly or indirectly by five or fewer individuals or some tax-exempt
organizations, to the amount for which the unitholder is considered to be "at
risk" with respect to our activities, if that is less than his or her tax basis.
A unitholder must recapture losses deducted in previous years to the extent that
distributions cause his or her at risk amount to be less than zero at the end of
any taxable year. Losses disallowed to a unitholder or recaptured as a result of
these limitations will carry forward and will be allowable to the extent that
his or her tax basis or at risk amount, whichever is the limiting factor, is
subsequently increased. Upon the taxable disposition of a unit, any gain
recognized by a unitholder can be offset by losses that were previously
suspended by the at risk limitation but may not be offset by losses suspended by
the basis limitation. Any excess loss above that gain previously suspended by
the at risk or basis limitations is no longer utilizable.

In general, a unitholder will be at risk to the extent of the tax basis of
his or her units, excluding any portion of that basis attributable to his or her
share of our nonrecourse liabilities, reduced by any amount of money he
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or she borrows to acquire or hold his or her units if the lender of those
borrowed funds owns an interest in us, is related to the unitholder or can look
only to units for repayment. A unitholder's at risk amount will increase or
decrease as the tax basis of the unitholder's units increases or decreases,
other than tax basis increases or decreases attributable to increases or
decreases in his or her share of our nonrecourse liabilities.

The passive loss limitations generally provide that individuals, estates,
trusts and some closely-held corporations and personal service corporations can
deduct losses from passive activities, which are generally, activities in which
the taxpayer does not materially participate, only to the extent of the
taxpayer's income from those passive activities. The passive loss limitations
are applied separately with respect to each publicly-traded partnership.
Consequently, any passive losses we generate will only be available to offset
our passive income generated in the future and will not be available to offset
income from other passive activities or investments, including other publicly
traded partnerships, or salary or active business income. Passive losses that
are not deductible because they exceed a unitholder's income generated by us may
be deducted in full when he disposes of his or her entire investment in us in a
fully taxable transaction to an unrelated party. The passive activity loss rules
are applied after other applicable limitations on deductions, including the at
risk rules and the basis limitation.

A unitholder's share of our net income may be offset by any suspended
passive losses, but it may not be offset by any other current or carryover
losses from other passive activities, including those attributable to other
publicly-traded partnerships. The IRS has announced that Treasury Regulations
will be issued that characterize net passive income from a publicly-traded
partnership as investment income for purposes of the limitations on the
deductibility of investment interest.

LIMITATIONS ON INTEREST DEDUCTIONS

The deductibility of a non-corporate taxpayer's "investment interest
expense" is generally limited to the amount of that taxpayer's '"net investment
income." As noted, a unitholder's share of our net passive income will be
treated as investment income for this purpose. In addition, the unitholder's
share of our portfolio income will be treated as investment income. Investment
interest expense includes:

(1) interest on indebtedness properly allocable to property held for
investment,

(2) our interest expense attributed to portfolio income, and

(3) the portion of interest expense incurred to purchase or carry an
interest in a passive activity to the extent attributable to portfolio
income.

The computation of a unitholder's investment interest expense will take into
account interest on any margin account borrowing or other loan incurred to
purchase or carry a unit. Net investment income includes gross income from
property held for investment and amounts treated as portfolio income under the
passive loss rules, less deductible expenses, other than interest, directly
connected with the production of investment income, but generally does not
include gains attributable to the disposition of property held for investment.

ENTITY-LEVEL COLLECTIONS

If we are required or elect under applicable law to pay any federal, state
or local income tax on behalf of any unitholder or any general partner or any
former unitholder, we are authorized to pay those taxes from our funds. That
payment, if made, will be treated as a distribution of cash to the partner on
whose behalf the payment was made. If the payment is made on behalf of a person
whose identity cannot be determined, we are authorized to treat the payment as a
distribution to all current unitholders. We are authorized to amend the
partnership agreement in the manner necessary to maintain uniformity of
intrinsic tax
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characteristics of units and to adjust later distributions, so that after giving
effect to these distributions, the priority and characterization of
distributions otherwise applicable under the partnership agreement is maintained
as nearly as is practicable. Payments by us as described above could give rise
to an overpayment of tax on behalf of an individual partner in which event the
partner could file a claim for credit or refund.

ALLOCATION OF INCOME, GAIN, LOSS AND DEDUCTION

In general, if we have a net profit, our items of income, gain, loss and
deduction will be allocated among the general partner and the unitholders in
accordance with their particular percentage interests in us. At any time that
distributions are made to the common units and not to the subordinated units, or
that incentive distributions are made to the general partner, gross income will
be allocated to the recipients to the extent of these distributions. If we have
a net loss for the entire year, the amount of that loss will generally be
allocated to the general partner.

As required by Section 704(c) of the Internal Revenue Code and as permitted
by its Regulations, specified items of our income, deduction, gain and loss will
be allocated to account for the difference between the tax basis and fair market
value of property contributed to us by the general partner, referred to in this
discussion as "Contributed Property". The effect of these allocations to a
unitholder will be essentially the same as if the tax basis of the Contributed
Property were equal to its fair market value at the time of contribution. In
addition, specified items of recapture income will be allocated to the extent
possible to the partner who was allocated the deduction giving rise to the
treatment of that gain as recapture income in order to minimize the recognition
of ordinary income by some unitholders. Finally, although we do not expect that
our operations will result in the creation of negative capital accounts, if
negative capital accounts nevertheless result, items of our income and gain will
be allocated in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate the negative
balance as quickly as possible.

Regulations provide that an allocation of items of our income, gain, loss or
deduction, other than an allocation required by Section 704(c) of the Internal
Revenue Code to eliminate the difference between a partner's "book" capital
account, credited with the fair market value of Contributed Property, and "tax"
capital account, credited with the tax basis of Contributed Property, (the
"Book-Tax Disparity"), will generally be given effect for federal income tax
purposes in determining a partner's distributive share of an item of income,
gain, loss or deduction only if the allocation has substantial economic effect.
In any other case, a partner's distributive share of an item will be determined
on the basis of the partner's interest in us, which will be determined by taking
into account all the facts and circumstances, including the partners' relative
contributions to us, the interests of the partners in economic profits and
losses, the interest of the partners in cash flow and other nonliquidating
distributions and rights of the partners to distributions of capital upon
liquidation.

Counsel is of the opinion that, with the exception of the issues described
in "--Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership--SECTION 754 ELECTION" and
"--Disposition of Common Units--ALLOCATIONS BETWEEN TRANSFERORS AND
TRANSFEREES", allocations under our partnership agreement will be given effect
for federal income tax purposes in determining a partner's distributive share of
an item of income, gain, loss or deduction.

TREATMENT OF SHORT SALES

A unitholder whose units are loaned to a "short seller" to cover a short
sale of units may be considered as having disposed of ownership of those units.
If so, he or she would no longer be a partner for those units during the period
of the loan and may
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recognize gain or loss from the disposition. As a result, during this period:

- any of our income, gain, deduction or loss with respect to those units
would not be reportable by the unitholder;

- any cash distributions received by the unitholder for those units would be
fully taxable; and

- all of these distributions would appear to be treated as ordinary income.

Unitholders desiring to assure their status as partners and avoid the risk
of gain recognition should modify any applicable brokerage account agreements to
prohibit their brokers from borrowing their units. The IRS has announced that it
is actively studying issues relating to the tax treatment of short sales of
partnership interests. See also "--Disposition of Common Units--RECOGNITION OF
GAIN OR LOSS".

ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM TAX

Although it is not expected that we will generate significant tax preference
items or adjustments, each unitholder will be required to take into account his
or her distributive share of any items of our income, gain, deduction or loss
for purposes of the alternative minimum tax. The minimum tax rate for
noncorporate taxpayers is 26% on the first $175,000 of alternative minimum
taxable income in excess of the exemption amount and 28% on any additional
alternative minimum taxable income. Prospective unitholders should consult with
their tax advisors as to the impact of an investment in units on their liability
for the alternative minimum tax.

TAX RATES

In general, the highest marginal United States federal income tax rate for
individuals for 1999 is 39.6% and the maximum United States federal income tax
rate for net capital gains of an individual is 20% if the asset was held for
more than 12 months at the time of disposition.

SECTION 754 ELECTION

We intend to make the election permitted by Section 754 of the Internal
Revenue Code. That election is irrevocable without the consent of the IRS. The
election will generally permit us to adjust a common unit purchaser's, other
than a common unit purchaser that purchases common units from us, tax basis in
our assets ("inside basis") under Section 743(b) of the Internal Revenue Code to
reflect his or her purchase price. The Section 743(b) adjustment belongs to the
purchaser and not to other partners. For purposes of this discussion, a
partner's inside basis in our assets will be considered to have two components:
(1) his or her share of our tax basis in our assets ("common basis") and (2) his
or her Section 743(b) adjustment to that basis.

Proposed Treasury regulations under Section 743 of the Internal Revenue Code
require, if the remedial allocation method is adopted (which we intend to do), a
portion of the Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to recovery property to be
depreciated over the remaining cost recovery period for the Section 704(c)
built-in gain. Nevertheless, the proposed regulations under Section 197 indicate
that the Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to an amortizable Section 197
intangible should be treated as a newly-acquired asset placed in service in the
month when the purchaser acquires the unit. Under Treasury Regulation Section
1.167(c)-1(a)(6), a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to property subject
to depreciation under Section 167 of the Internal Revenue Code rather than cost
recovery deductions under Section 168 is generally required to be depreciated
using either the straight-line method or the 150% declining balance method.
Although the proposed regulations under Section 743 will likely eliminate many
of the problems if finalized in their current form, the depreciation and
amortization methods and useful lives associated with the Section 743(b)
adjustment may differ from the methods and useful lives generally used to
depreciate the common basis in these properties. Under our partnership
agreement, the general partner is authorized to adopt a convention to preserve
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the uniformity of units even if that convention is not consistent with specified
Treasury Regulations. See "--UNIFORMITY OF UNITS".

Although counsel is unable to opine as to the validity of this approach, we
intend to depreciate the portion of a Section 743(b) adjustment attributable to
unrealized appreciation in the value of Contributed Property, to the extent of
any unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, using a rate of depreciation or amortization
derived from the depreciation or amortization method and useful life applied to
the common basis of the property, or treat that portion as non-amortizable to
the extent attributable to property the common basis of which is not
amortizable. This method is consistent with the proposed regulations under
Section 743 but is arguably inconsistent with Treasury Regulation Section
1.167(c)-1(a)(6) and Proposed Treasury Regulation Section 1.197-2(g)(3), neither
of which is expected to directly apply to a material portion of the
Partnership's assets. To the extent this Section 743(b) adjustment is
attributable to appreciation in value in excess of the unamortized Book-Tax
Disparity, we will apply the rules described in the Treasury Regulations and
legislative history. If we determine that this position cannot reasonably be
taken, we may adopt a depreciation or amortization convention under which all
purchasers acquiring units in the same month would receive depreciation or
amortization, whether attributable to common basis or Section 743(b) adjustment,
based upon the same applicable rate as if they had purchased a direct interest
in our assets. This kind of aggregate approach may result in lower annual
depreciation or amortization deductions than would otherwise be allowable to
specified unitholders. See "--UNIFORMITY OF UNITS".

The allocation of the Section 743(b) adjustment among our assets must be
made in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code. The IRS could seek to
reallocate some or all of any Section 743(b) adjustment to goodwill not so
allocated by us. Goodwill, as an intangible asset, is generally amortizable over
a longer period of time or under a less accelerated method than our tangible
assets.

A Section 754 election is advantageous if the transferee's tax basis in his
or her units is higher than the units' share of the aggregate tax basis of our
assets immediately prior to the transfer. In that case, as a result of the
election, the transferee would have a higher tax basis in his or her share of
our assets for purposes of calculating, among other items, his or her
depreciation deductions and his or her share of any gain or loss on a sale of
our assets. Conversely, a Section 754 election is disadvantageous if the
transferee's tax basis in his or her units is lower than those units' share of
the aggregate tax basis of our assets immediately prior to the transfer. Thus,
the fair market value of the units may be affected either favorably or adversely
by the election.

The calculations involved in the Section 754 election are complex and we
will make them on the basis of specific assumptions as to the value of our
assets and other matters. There is no assurance that the determinations made by
us will not be successfully challenged by the IRS and that the deductions
resulting from them will not be reduced or disallowed altogether. Should the IRS
require a different basis adjustment to be made, and should, in our opinion, the
expense of compliance exceed the benefit of the election, we may seek permission
from the IRS to revoke our Section 754 election. If permission is granted, a
subsequent purchaser of units may be allocated more income than he would have
been allocated had the election not been revoked.

TAX TREATMENT OF OPERATIONS
ACCOUNTING METHOD AND TAXABLE YEAR

We will use the year ending December 31 as our taxable year and will adopt
the accrual method of accounting for federal income tax purposes. Each
unitholder will be required to include in income his or her allocable share of
our income, gain, loss and deduction for our taxable year ending within or with
his or her taxable year. In addition, a unitholder who has a taxable year ending
on a date other than December 31 and who disposes of all of his or her units
following the close of our taxable year but before the close of his or her
taxable
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year must include his or her allocable share of our income, gain, loss and
deduction in income for his or her taxable year with the result that he will be
required to report in income for his or her taxable year his or her distributive
share of more than one year of income, gain, loss and deduction. See
"--Disposition of Common Units--ALLOCATIONS BETWEEN TRANSFERORS AND
TRANSFEREES".

INITIAL TAX BASIS, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

The tax basis of our assets will be used for purposes of computing
depreciation and cost recovery deductions and, ultimately, gain or loss on the
disposition of these assets. A portion of our assets will initially have an
aggregate tax basis equal to the tax basis of those assets in the possession of
TransCanada Border PipelLine immediately prior to the closing of the offering;
the balance of our assets will have an initial tax basis equal to their fair
market value on the date of the closing of the offering. The federal income tax
burden associated with the difference between the fair market value of property
contributed by TransCanada Border PipelLine and the tax basis established for
that property will be borne by the general partner. See "--ALLOCATION OF INCOME,
GAIN, LOSS AND DEDUCTION".

To the extent allowable, we may elect to use the depletion, depreciation and
cost recovery methods that will result in the largest deductions being taken in
the early years after assets are placed in service. We will not be entitled to
any amortization deductions with respect to any goodwill conveyed to us on
formation. Property subsequently acquired or constructed by us may be
depreciated using accelerated methods permitted by the Internal Revenue Code.

If we dispose of depreciable property by sale, foreclosure or otherwise, all
or a portion of any gain, determined by reference to the amount of depreciation
previously deducted and the nature of the property, may be subject to the
recapture rules and taxed as ordinary income rather than capital gain.
Similarly, a partner who has taken cost recovery or depreciation deductions with
respect to property owned by us may be required to recapture those deductions as
ordinary income upon a sale of his or her interest in us. See "--ALLOCATION OF
INCOME, GAIN, LOSS AND DEDUCTION" and "--Disposition of Common
Units--RECOGNITION OF GAIN OR LOSS".

Costs incurred in organizing TC PipelLines may be amortized over any period
selected by us not shorter than 60 months. The costs incurred in promoting the
issuance of units (i.e. syndication expenses) must be capitalized and cannot be
deducted currently, ratably or upon termination of TC PipelLines. There are
uncertainties regarding the classification of costs as organization expenses,
which may be amortized, and as syndication expenses, which may not be amortized.
Under recently adopted regulations, the underwriting discounts and commissions
would be treated as a syndication cost.

UNIFORMITY OF UNITS

Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of units, uniformity of
the economic and tax characteristics of the units to a purchaser of these units
must be maintained. In the absence of uniformity, compliance with a number of
federal income tax requirements, both statutory and regulatory, could be
substantially diminished. A lack of uniformity can result from a literal
application of Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6) and Proposed
Treasury Regulation Section 1.197-2(g)(3). Any non-uniformity could have a
negative impact on the value of the units. See "--Tax Consequences of Unit
Ownership--SECTION 754 ELECTION".

We intend to depreciate the portion of a Section 743(b) adjustment
attributable to unrealized appreciation in the value of contributed property or
adjusted property, to the extent of any unamortized Book-Tax Disparity, using a
rate of depreciation or amortization derived from the depreciation or
amortization method and useful life applied to the common basis of that
property, or treat that portion as nonamortizable, to the extent attributable to
property the common basis of which is not amortizable, consistent with the
proposed regulations under Section 743, but
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despite its inconsistency with Treasury Regulation Section 1.167(c)-1(a)(6) and
Proposed Treasury Regulation Section 1.197-2(g)(3), neither of which is expected
to directly apply to a material portion of our assets. See "--Tax Consequences
of Unit Ownership--SECTION 754 ELECTION". To the extent that the Section 743(b)
adjustment is attributable to appreciation in value in excess of the unamortized
Book-Tax Disparity, we will apply the rules described in the Regulations and
legislative history. If we determine that this type of position cannot
reasonably be taken, we may adopt a depreciation and amortization convention
under which all purchasers acquiring units in the same month would receive
depreciation and amortization deductions, whether attributable to common basis
or Section 743(b) adjustment, based upon the same applicable rate as if they had
purchased a direct interest in our property. If this kind of an aggregate
approach is adopted, it may result in lower annual depreciation and amortization
deductions than would otherwise be allowable to some unitholders and risk the
loss of depreciation and amortization deductions not taken in the year that
these deductions are otherwise allowable. This convention will not be adopted if
we determine that the loss of depreciation and amortization deductions will have
a material adverse effect on the unitholders. If we choose not to utilize this
aggregate method, we may use any other reasonable depreciation and amortization
convention to preserve the uniformity of the intrinsic tax characteristics of
any units that would not have a material adverse effect on the unitholders. The
IRS may challenge any method of depreciating the Section 743(b) adjustment
described in this paragraph. If this type of challenge were sustained, the
uniformity of units might be affected, and the gain from the sale of units might
be increased without the benefit of additional deductions. See "--Disposition of
Common Units-- RECOGNITION OF GAIN OR LOSS".

VALUATION AND TAX BASIS OF OUR PROPERTIES

The federal income tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of
units will depend in part on our estimates of the relative fair market values,
and determinations of the initial tax bases, of our assets. Although we may from
time to time consult with professional appraisers regarding valuation matters,
we will make many of the relative fair market value estimates ourselves. These
estimates and determinations of basis are subject to challenge and will not be
binding on the IRS or the courts. If the estimates of fair market value or
determinations of basis are later found to be incorrect, the character and
amount of items of income, gain, loss or deductions previously reported by
unitholders might change, and unitholders might be required to adjust their tax
liability for prior years.

DISPOSITION OF COMMON UNITS

RECOGNITION OF GAIN OR LOSS

Gain or loss will be recognized on a sale of units equal to the difference
between the amount realized and the unitholder's tax basis for the units sold. A
unitholder's amount realized will be measured by the sum of the cash or the fair
market value of other property received plus his or her share of our nonrecourse
liabilities. Because the amount realized includes a unitholder's share of our
nonrecourse liabilities, the gain recognized on the sale of units could result
in a tax liability in excess of any cash received from the sale.

Prior distributions from us in excess of cumulative net taxable income for a
common unit that decreased a unitholder's tax basis in that common unit will, in
effect, become taxable income if the common unit is sold at a price greater than
the unitholder's tax basis in that common unit, even if the price is less than
his or her original cost.

Should the IRS successfully contest our convention to amortize only a
portion of the Section 743(b) adjustment, described under "--Tax Consequences of
Unit Ownership-- SECTION 754 ELECTION", attributable to an amortizable Section
197 intangible after a sale by the general partner of units, a unitholder could
realize additional gain from the sale of units than had our convention been
respected. In that case, the unitholder may have been entitled to additional
deductions against
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income in prior years but may be unable to claim them, with the result to him of
greater overall taxable income than appropriate. Counsel is unable to opine as
to the validity of the convention but believes a contest by the IRS is unlikely
because a successful contest could result in substantial additional deductions
to other unitholders.

Except as noted below, gain or loss recognized by a unitholder, other than a
"dealer" in units, on the sale or exchange of a unit held for more than one year
will generally be taxable as capital gain or loss. Capital gain recognized by an
individual on the sale of units held for more than 12 months will generally be
taxed at a maximum rate of 20%. A portion of this gain or loss, which will
likely be substantial, however, will be separately computed and taxed as
ordinary income or loss under Section 751 of the Internal Revenue Code to the
extent attributable to assets giving rise to depreciation recapture or other
"unrealized receivables" or to "inventory items" owned by us. The term
"unrealized receivables" includes potential recapture items, including
depreciation recapture. Ordinary income attributable to unrealized receivables,
inventory items and depreciation recapture may exceed net taxable gain realized
upon the sale of the unit and may be recognized even if there is a net taxable
loss realized on the sale of the unit. Thus, a unitholder may recognize both
ordinary income and a capital loss upon a disposition of units. Net capital loss
may offset no more than $3,000 of ordinary income in the case of individuals and
may only be used to offset capital gain in the case of corporations.

The IRS has ruled that a partner who acquires interests in a partnership in
separate transactions must combine those interests and maintain a single
adjusted tax basis. Upon a sale or other disposition of less than all of those
interests, a portion of that tax basis must be allocated to the interests sold
using an "equitable apportionment" method. The ruling is unclear as to how the
holding period of these interests is determined once they are combined. If this
ruling is applicable to the holders of common units, a common unitholder will be
unable to select high or low basis common units to sell as would be the case
with corporate stock. It is not clear whether the ruling applies to us because,
similar to corporate stock, interests in us are evidenced by separate
certificates. Accordingly, counsel is unable to opine as to the effect this
ruling will have on the unitholders. A unitholder considering the purchase of
additional common units or a sale of common units purchased in separate
transactions should consult his or her tax advisor as to the possible
consequences of this ruling.

Specific provisions of the Internal Revenue Code affect the taxation of some
financial products and securities, including partnership interests, by treating
a taxpayer as having sold an "appreciated" partnership interest, one in which
gain would be recognized if it were sold, assigned or terminated at its fair
market value, if the taxpayer or related persons enter(s) into:

(1) a short sale;
(2) an offsetting notional principal contract; or

(3) a futures or forward contract with respect to the partnership interest
or substantially identical property.

Moreover, if a taxpayer has previously entered into a short sale, an offsetting
notional principal contract or a futures or forward contract with respect to the
partnership interest, the taxpayer will be treated as having sold that position
if the taxpayer or related person then acquires the partnership interest or
substantially identical property. The Secretary of Treasury is also authorized
to issue regulations that treat a taxpayer that enters into transactions or
positions that have substantially the same effect as the preceding transactions
as having constructively sold the financial position.
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ALLOCATIONS BETWEEN TRANSFERORS AND TRANSFEREES

In general, our taxable income and losses will be determined annually, will
be prorated on a monthly basis and will be subsequently apportioned among the
unitholders in proportion to the number of units owned by each of them as of the
opening of the Nasdaq National Market on the first business day of the month
(the "Allocation Date"). However, gain or loss realized on a sale or other
disposition of our assets other than in the ordinary course of business will be
allocated among the unitholders on the Allocation Date in the month in which
that gain or loss is recognized. As a result, a unitholder transferring common
units in the open market may be allocated income, gain, loss and deduction
accrued after the date of transfer.

The use of this method may not be permitted under existing Treasury
Regulations. Accordingly, counsel is unable to opine on the validity of this
method of allocating income and deductions between the transferors and the
transferees of units. If this method is not allowed under the Treasury
Regulations, or only applies to transfers of less than all of the unitholder's
interest, our taxable income or losses might be reallocated among the
unitholders. We are authorized to revise our method of allocation between
transferors and transferees, as well as among partners whose interests otherwise
vary during a taxable period, to conform to a method permitted under future
Treasury Regulations.

A unitholder who owns units at any time during a quarter and who disposes of
these units prior to the record date set for a cash distribution for that
quarter will be allocated items of our income, gain, loss and deductions
attributable to that quarter but will not be entitled to receive that cash
distribution.

NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

A unitholder who sells or exchanges units is required to notify us in
writing of that sale or exchange within 30 days after the sale or exchange and
in any event by no later than January 15 of the year following the calendar year
in which the sale or exchange occurred. We are required to notify the IRS of
that transaction and to furnish specified information to the transferor and
transferee. However, these reporting requirements do not apply to a sale by an
individual who is a citizen of the United States and who effects the sale or
exchange through a broker. Additionally, a transferor and a transferee of a unit
will be required to furnish statements to the IRS, filed with their income tax
returns for the taxable year in which the sale or exchange occurred, that
describe the amount of the consideration received for the unit that is allocated
to our goodwill or going concern value. Failure to satisfy these reporting
obligations may lead to the imposition of substantial penalties.

CONSTRUCTIVE TERMINATION

We and the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership will be considered to have
been terminated for tax purposes if there is a sale or exchange of 50% or more
of the total interests in our capital and profits within a 12-month period. If
we elect to be treated as a large partnership, which we do not currently intend
to do, we will not terminate by reason of the sale or exchange of interests in
us. A termination of us will cause a termination of the TC PipeLines
intermediate partnership. A termination of us will result in the closing of our
taxable year for all unitholders. In the case of a unitholder reporting on a
taxable year other than a fiscal year ending December 31, the closing of our
taxable year may result in more than 12 months' of our taxable income or loss
being includable in his taxable income for the year of termination. New tax
elections required to be made by us, including a new election under Section 754
of the Internal Revenue Code, must be made after a termination, and a
termination would result in a deferral of our deductions for depreciation. A
termination could also result in penalties if we were unable to determine that
the termination had occurred. Moreover, a termination might either accelerate
the application of, or subject us to, any tax legislation enacted prior to the
termination.
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TAX-EXEMPT ORGANIZATIONS AND OTHER INVESTORS

Ownership of units by employee benefit plans, other tax-exempt
organizations, nonresident aliens, foreign corporations, other foreign persons
and regulated investment companies raises issues unique to those investors and,
as described below, may have substantially adverse tax consequences. Employee
benefit plans and most other organizations exempt from federal income tax,
including individual retirement accounts and other retirement plans, are subject
to federal income tax on unrelated business taxable income. Virtually all of the
taxable income derived by that kind of organization from the ownership of a unit
will be unrelated business taxable income and thus will be taxable to that
unitholder.

A regulated investment company or "mutual fund" is required to derive 90% or
more of its gross income from interest, dividends, gains from the sale of stocks
or securities or foreign currency or specified related sources. It is not
anticipated that any significant amount of our gross income will include that
type of income.

Non-resident aliens and foreign corporations, trusts or estates that own
units will be considered to be engaged in business in the United States on
account of ownership of units. As a consequence they will be required to file
federal tax returns for their share of our income, gain, loss or deduction and
pay federal income tax at regular rates on any net income or gain. Generally, a
partnership is required to pay a withholding tax on the portion of the
partnership's income that is effectively connected with the conduct of a United
States trade or business and which is allocable to the foreign partners,
regardless of whether any actual distributions have been made to those partners.
However, under rules applicable to publicly traded partnerships, we will
withhold (currently at the rate of 39.6%) on actual cash distributions made
quarterly to foreign unitholders. Each foreign unitholder must obtain a taxpayer
identification number from the IRS and submit that number to our transfer agent
on a Form W-8 in order to obtain credit for the taxes withheld. A change in
applicable law may require us to change these procedures.

Because a foreign corporation that owns units will be treated as engaged in
a United States trade or business, that corporation may be subject to United
States branch profits tax at a rate of 30%, in addition to regular federal
income tax, on its share of our income and gain, as adjusted for changes in the
foreign corporation's "United States net equity", which are effectively
connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business. That tax may be
reduced or eliminated by an income tax treaty between the United States and the
country in which the foreign corporate unitholder is a "qualified resident." In
addition, that type of unitholder is subject to special information reporting
requirements under Section 6038C of the Internal Revenue Code.

Under a ruling of the IRS, a foreign unitholder who sells or otherwise
disposes of a unit will be subject to federal income tax on gain realized on the
disposition of that unit to the extent that this gain is effectively connected
with a United States trade or business of the foreign unitholder. Apart from the
ruling, a foreign unitholder will not be taxed or subject to withholding upon
the disposition of a unit if he has owned less than 5% in value of the units
during the five-year period ending on the date of the disposition and if the
units are regularly traded on an established securities market at the time of
the disposition.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
INFORMATION RETURNS AND AUDIT PROCEDURES

We intend to furnish to each unitholder, within 90 days after the close of
each calendar year, specific tax information, including a Schedule K-1, which
describes each unitholder's share of our income, gain, loss and deduction for
our preceding taxable year. In preparing this information, which will generally
not be reviewed by counsel, we will use various accounting and reporting
conventions, some of which have been mentioned earlier, to determine the
unitholder's share of income, gain, loss and deduction.
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There is no assurance that any of those conventions will yield a result that
conforms to the requirements of the Code, regulations or administrative
interpretations of the IRS. Neither we nor counsel can assure prospective
unitholders that the IRS will not successfully contend in court that those
accounting and reporting conventions are impermissible. Any challenge by the IRS
could negatively affect the value of the units.

The IRS may audit our federal income tax information returns. Adjustments
resulting from any audit of this kind may require each unitholder to adjust a
prior year's tax liability, and possibly may result in an audit of the
unitholder's own return. Any audit of a unitholder's return could result in
adjustments not related to our returns as well as those related to our returns.

Partnerships generally are treated as separate entities for purposes of
federal tax audits, judicial review of administrative adjustments by the IRS and
tax settlement proceedings. The tax treatment of partnership items of income,
gain, loss and deduction are determined in a partnership proceeding rather than
in separate proceedings with the partners. The Internal Revenue Code provides
for one partner to be designated as the "Tax Matters Partner" for these
purposes. The partnership agreement appoints the general partner as the Tax
Matters Partner of TC Pipelines.

The Tax Matters Partner will make some elections on our behalf and on behalf
of unitholders. In addition, the Tax Matters Partner can extend the statute of
limitations for assessment of tax deficiencies against unitholders for items in
our returns. The Tax Matters Partner may bind a unitholder with less than a 1%
profits interest in us to a settlement with the IRS unless that unitholder
elects, by filing a statement with the IRS, not to give that authority to the
Tax Matters Partner. The Tax Matters Partner may seek judicial review, by which
all the unitholders are bound, of a final partnership administrative adjustment
and, if the Tax Matters Partner fails to seek judicial review, judicial review
may be sought by any unitholder having at least a 1% interest in profits and by
the unitholders having in the aggregate at least a 5% profits interest. However,
only one action for judicial review will go forward, and each unitholder with an
interest in the outcome may participate. However, if we elect to be treated as a
large partnership, a unitholder will not have the right to participate in
settlement conferences with the IRS or to seek a refund.

A unitholder must file a statement with the IRS identifying the treatment of
any item on his federal income tax return that is not consistent with the
treatment of the item on our return. Intentional or negligent disregard of the
consistency requirement may subject a unitholder to substantial penalties.
However, if we elect to be treated as a large partnership, the unitholders would
be required to treat all partnership items in a manner consistent with our
return.

If we elect to be treated as a large partnership, each partner would take
into account separately his share of the following items, determined at the
partnership level:

(1) taxable income or loss from passive loss limitation activities;

(2) taxable income or loss from other activities (including portfolio
income or loss);

(3) net capital gains to the extent allocable to passive loss limitation
activities and other activities;
(4) tax exempt interest;

(5) a net alternative minimum tax adjustment separately computed for
passive loss limitation activities and other activities;

(6) general credits;

(7) low-income housing credit;

(8) rehabilitation credit;

(9) foreign income taxes;

(10) credit for producing fuel from a nonconventional source; and
(11) any other items the Secretary of Treasury deems appropriate.
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Moreover, miscellaneous itemized deductions would not be passed through to the
partners and 30% of those deductions would be used at the partnership level.

A number of other changes have been made to the tax compliance and
administrative rules relating to electing large partnerships. Adjustments
relating to partnership items for a previous taxable year are generally taken
into account by those persons who were partners in previous taxable years. Each
partner in an electing large partnership, however, must take into account his
share of any adjustments to partnership items in the year that adjustments are
made. Under prior law, adjustments relating to partnership items for a previous
taxable year were taken into account by those persons who were partners in the
previous taxable year. Alternatively, a partnership could elect to or, in some
circumstances, could be required to, directly pay the tax resulting from any
adjustments of this kind. In either case, therefore, unitholders could bear
significant costs associated with tax adjustments relating to periods predating
their acquisition of units. It is not expected that we will elect to have the
large partnership provisions apply to us because of the cost of their
application.

NOMINEE REPORTING

Persons who hold an interest in TC PipelLines as a nominee for another person
are required to furnish to us:

(a) the name, address and taxpayer identification number of the
beneficial owner and the nominee;

(b) whether the beneficial owner is
(1) a person that is not a United States person,

(2) a foreign government, an international organization or any
wholly owned agency or instrumentality of either of the
foregoing, or

(3) a tax-exempt entity;

(c) the amount and description of units held, acquired or transferred
for the beneficial owner; and

(d) specific information including the dates of acquisitions and
transfers, means of acquisitions and transfers, and acquisition cost for
purchases, as well as the amount of net proceeds from sales.

Brokers and financial institutions are required to furnish additional
information, including whether they are United States persons and specific
information on units they acquire, hold or transfer for their own account. A
penalty of $50 per failure, up to a maximum of $100,000 per calendar year, 1is
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for failure to report that information to
us. The nominee is required to supply the beneficial owner of the units with the
information furnished to us.

REGISTRATION AS A TAX SHELTER

The Internal Revenue Code requires that "tax shelters" be registered with
the Secretary of the Treasury. The temporary Treasury Regulations interpreting
the tax shelter registration provisions of the Internal Revenue Code are
extremely broad. It is arguable that we are not subject to the registration
requirement on the basis that we will not constitute a tax shelter. However, the
general partner, as a principal organizer of us has applied to register us as a
tax shelter with the Secretary of the Treasury in the absence of assurance that
we will not be subject to tax shelter registration and in light of the
substantial penalties which might be imposed if registration is required and not
undertaken.

ISSUANCE OF THE REGISTRATION NUMBER DOES NOT INDICATE THAT AN INVESTMENT IN
US OR THE CLAIMED TAX BENEFITS HAVE BEEN REVIEWED, EXAMINED OR APPROVED BY THE
IRS.

We must furnish the registration number to the unitholders, and a unitholder
who sells or otherwise transfers a unit in a later transaction must furnish the
registration number to the transferee. The penalty for failure of the transferor
of a unit to furnish the registration number to the transferee is $100 for each
failure. The unitholders must disclose our tax shelter registration number on
Form 8271 to be attached to the tax return on which any deduction, loss or other
benefit generated by
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us is claimed or on which any of our income is included. A unitholder who fails
to disclose the tax shelter registration number on his return, without
reasonable cause for that failure, will be subject to a $250 penalty for each
failure. Any penalties discussed are not deductible for federal income tax
purposes.

ACCURACY -RELATED PENALTIES

An additional tax equal to 20% of the amount of any portion of an
underpayment of tax that is attributable to one or more specified causes,
including negligence or disregard of rules or regulations, substantial
understatements of income tax and substantial valuation misstatements, is
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. No penalty will be imposed, however, for
any portion of an underpayment if it is shown that there was a reasonable cause
for that portion and that the taxpayer acted in good faith with respect to that
portion.

A substantial understatement of income tax in any taxable year exists if the
amount of the understatement exceeds the greater of 10% of the tax required to
be shown on the return for the taxable year or $5,000 ($10,000 for most
corporations). The amount of any understatement subject to penalty generally is
reduced if any portion is attributable to a position adopted on the return:

(1) for which there is, or was, "substantial authority"; or

(2) as to which there is a reasonable basis and the pertinent facts of that
position are disclosed on the return.

More stringent rules apply to "tax shelters," a term that in this context
does not appear to include us. If any item of income, gain, loss or deduction
included in the distributive shares of unitholders might result in that kind of
an "understatement" of income for which no "substantial authority" exists, we
must disclose the pertinent facts on its return. In addition, we will make a
reasonable effort to furnish sufficient information for unitholders to make
adequate disclosure on their returns to avoid liability for this penalty.

A substantial valuation misstatement exists if the value of any property, or
the adjusted basis of any property, claimed on a tax return is 200% or more of
the amount determined to be the correct amount of the valuation or adjusted
basis. No penalty is imposed unless the portion of the underpayment attributable
to a substantial valuation misstatement exceeds $5,000 ($10,000 for most
corporations). If the valuation claimed on a return is 400% or more than the
correct valuation, the penalty imposed increases to 40%.

STATE, LOCAL AND OTHER TAX CONSIDERATIONS

In addition to federal income taxes, unitholders will be subject to other
taxes, including state and local income taxes, unincorporated business taxes,
and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that may be imposed by the various
jurisdictions in which we do business or own property. Although an analysis of
those various taxes is not presented here, each prospective unitholder should
consider their potential impact on his investment in us. We will own property or
do business in Illinois, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, South
Dakota and Texas. Of those, only Texas and South Dakota do not currently impose
a personal income tax. A unitholder will be required to file state income tax
returns and to pay state income taxes in some or all of the states in which we
do business or own property and may be subject to penalties for failure to
comply with those requirements. In some states, tax losses may not produce a tax
benefit in the year incurred and also may not be available to offset income in
later taxable years. Some of the states may require us, or we may elect, to
withhold a percentage of income from amounts to be distributed to a unitholder
who is not a resident of the state. Withholding, the amount of which may be
greater or less than a particular unitholder's income tax liability to the
state, generally does not relieve the non-resident unitholder from the
obligation to file an income tax return. Amounts withheld may be treated as if
distributed to unitholders for purposes of determining the amounts distributed
by us. See "--Tax Consequences of Unit Ownership--ENTITY-LEVEL COLLECTIONS".
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Based on current law and our estimate of our future operations, the general
partner anticipates that any amounts required to be withheld will not be
material.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF EACH UNITHOLDER TO INVESTIGATE THE LEGAL AND TAX
CONSEQUENCES, UNDER THE LAWS OF PERTINENT STATES AND LOCALITIES, OF HIS OR HER
INVESTMENT IN US. ACCORDINGLY, EACH PROSPECTIVE UNITHOLDER SHOULD CONSULT, AND
MUST DEPEND UPON, HIS OR HER OWN TAX COUNSEL OR OTHER ADVISOR WITH REGARD TO
THOSE MATTERS. FURTHER, IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF EACH UNITHOLDER TO FILE ALL
STATE AND LOCAL, AS WELL AS UNITED STATES FEDERAL, TAX RETURNS THAT MAY BE
REQUIRED OF HIM OR HER. COUNSEL HAS NOT RENDERED AN OPINION ON THE STATE OR
LOCAL TAX CONSEQUENCES OF AN INVESTMENT IN US.

INVESTMENT IN TC PIPELINES BY EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

An investment in TC PipeLines by an employee benefit plan is subject to
additional considerations because the investments of these plans are subject to
the fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA, and
restrictions imposed by Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code. For these
purposes the term "employee benefit plan" includes, but is not limited to,
qualified pension, profit-sharing and stock bonus plans, Keogh plans, simplified
employee pension plans and tax deferred annuities or IRAs established or
maintained by an employer or employee organization. Among other things,
consideration should be given to:

(a) whether the investment is prudent under Section 404(a)(1)(B) of
ERISA;

(b) whether in making the investment, such plan will satisfy the
diversification requirement of Section 404(a)(1)(C) of ERISA; and

(c) whether the investment will result in recognition of unrelated
business taxable income by the plan and, if so, the potential after-tax
investment return.

The person with investment discretion with respect to the assets of an
employee benefit plan (a "fiduciary") should determine whether an investment in
TC PipeLines is authorized by the appropriate governing instrument and is a
proper investment for the plan.

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code prohibits
employee benefit plans, and also IRAs that are not considered part of an
employee benefit plan, from engaging in specified transactions involving "plan
assets" with parties that are "parties in interest" under ERISA or "disqualified
persons" under the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the plan.

In addition to considering whether the purchase of common units is a
prohibited transaction, a fiduciary of an employee benefit plan should consider
whether the plan will, by investing in TC PipelLines, be deemed to own an
undivided interest in the assets of TC PipelLines, with the result that the
general partner also would be a fiduciary of the plan and the operations of TC
PipeLines would be subject to the regulatory restrictions of ERISA, including
its prohibited transaction rules, as well as the prohibited transaction rules of
the Internal Revenue Code.

The Department of Labor regulations provide guidance with respect to whether
the assets of an entity in which employee benefit plans acquire equity interests
would be deemed "plan assets" under some circumstances. Under these regulations,
an entity's assets would not be considered to be "plan assets" if, among other
things,

(a) the equity interest acquired by employee benefit plans are publicly
offered securities--i.e., the equity interests are widely held by 100 or
more investors independent of the issuer and each other, freely transferable
and registered under some provisions of the federal securities laws,

(b) the entity is an "operating company"--i.e., it is primarily engaged
in the production or sale of a product or
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service other than the investment of capital either directly or through a
majority owned subsidiary or subsidiaries, or

(c) there is no significant investment by benefit plan investors, which
is defined to mean that less than 25% of the value of each class of equity
interest (disregarding some interests held by the general partner, its
affiliates, and some other persons) is held by the employee benefit plans
referred to above, IRAs and other employee benefit plans not subject to
ERISA, including governmental plans.

TC PipeLines' assets should not be considered "plan assets" under these
regulations because it is expected that the investment will satisfy the
requirements in (a) above.

Plan fiduciaries contemplating a purchase of common units should consult
with their own counsel regarding the consequences under ERISA and the Internal
Revenue Code in light of the serious penalties imposed on persons who engage in
prohibited transactions or other violations.

VALIDITY OF THE COMMON UNITS

The validity of the common units will be passed upon for TC PipelLines by the
law firm of Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson (a partnership including
professional corporations), New York, New York. Specific legal matters in
connection with the common units offered by this prospectus are being passed
upon for the underwriters by Andrews & Kurth L.L.P., New York, New York, who
also acts as regulatory counsel for Northern Border Pipeline with respect to
FERC matters.

EXPERTS

The balance sheet of TC PipeLines, LP as of December 31, 1998 has been
included in this prospectus and in the registration statement in reliance upon
the report of KPMG LLP, independent chartered accountants, appearing elsewhere
in this prospectus, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting
and auditing.

The balance sheet of TC PipeLines GP, Inc. as of December 31, 1998 has been
included in this prospectus and in the registration statement in reliance upon
the report of KPMG LLP, independent chartered accountants, appearing elsewhere
in this prospectus, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting
and auditing.

The balance sheets of Northern Border Pipeline Company as of December 31,
1998, 1997 and 1996, and the related statements of income, changes in partners'
capital and cash flows for the years then ended, included in this prospectus and
in the registration statement, have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP,
independent public accountants, as indicated in their reports with respect
thereto, and are included in this prospectus in reliance upon the authority of
said firm as experts in giving said reports.

HOW TO OBTAIN OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT TC PIPELINES

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1, regarding the
common units offered by this prospectus. This prospectus does not contain all of
the information set forth in the registration statement. For further information
with respect to TC PipeLines and the common units offered hereby by this
prospectus, you may desire to review the registration statement, including its
exhibits and schedules. You may desire to review the full text of any contracts,
agreements or other documents filed as exhibits to the registration statement
for a more complete description of the matter involved. The registration
statement (including the exhibits and schedules) may be inspected and
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copied at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at Judiciary
Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, and at the regional
offices of the SEC located at 7 World Trade Center, Suite 1300, New York, New
York 10048 and 500 West Madison Street, Chicago, Illinois 60661. Copies of this
material can also be obtained upon written request from the Public Reference
Section of the SEC at Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.
20549, at prescribed rates or from the SEC's Web site on the internet at
http://www.sec.gov. The SEC's telephone number is 1-800-SEC-0330.

As a result of the offering, we will file periodic reports and other
information with the SEC. These reports and other information may be inspected
and copied at the public reference facilities at the SEC at 450 Fifth Street,
N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates or from the SEC's web site on
the internet at http://www.sec.gov.

We intend to furnish our unitholders annual reports containing audited
financial statements and quarterly reports containing unaudited interim
financial information for the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year of
TC PipeLines.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this prospectus may contain forward-looking
statements. These statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology including "may," "will," "expect," "anticipate," "estimate,"
"continue" or other similar words. These statements discuss future expectations,
contain projections of results of operations or of financial condition or state
other "forward-looking" information. These forward-looking statements involve
risks and uncertainties. When considering these forward-looking statements, you
should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary statements in this
prospectus. The risk factors and other factors noted throughout this prospectus
could cause our actual results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statement.
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UNDERWRITING

TC PipeLines and the underwriters named below have entered into an
underwriting agreement with respect to the common units being offered. Subject
to specified conditions, each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase the
number of common units indicated in the following table. Goldman, Sachs & Co.,
Salomon Smith Barney Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated,
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated and PaineWebber Incorporated are the
representatives of the underwriters.

Underwriters Number of Common Units

Goldman, SaChs & CO. . v vttt ittt i et sttt et e e
Salomon SMith BarNey INC. .. ..uuuiutternrnnnn e rnnnnnnnnannnnnens
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith

Incorporated. oottt e
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated............ouiiiiiinnnnnnnnns
PaineWebber Incorporated.......... .ot

If the underwriters sell more common units than the total number set forth
in the table above, the underwriters have an option to buy up to an additional
2,346,000 common units from TC PipeLines to cover the sales. They may exercise
that option for 30 days. If any common units are purchased pursuant to that
option, the underwriters will severally purchase common units in approximately
the same proportion as set forth in the table above.

The following tables show the per common unit and total underwriting
discounts and commissions to be paid to the underwriters by TC PipeLines. These
amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the
underwriters' option to purchase additional common units.

Paid by TC PipelLines

No Exercise Full Exercise

Per common unit............. $ $

Common units sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be
offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this
prospectus. Any common units sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may
be sold at a discount of up to $ per common unit from the initial public
offering price. Securities dealers may resell any common units purchased from
the underwriters to various other brokers or dealers at a discount of up to
$ per common unit from the initial public offering price. If all the common
units are not sold at the initial offering price, the representatives may change
the offering price and the other selling terms.

TC PipelLines, the TC PipelLines intermediate partnership, the general
partner, TransCanada and some of its affiliates and the officers and directors
of the general partner have agreed with the underwriters not to dispose of or
hedge any of their common units or subordinated units or securities convertible
into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common units
or subordinated units or



any securities that are senior to or on a parity with common units during the
period from the date of this prospectus continuing through the date 180 days
after the date of this prospectus, except with the prior written consent of the
representatives (other than the redemption of subordinated units in the event
the overallotment option is exercised). See "Units Available for Future Sale"
for a discussion of transfer restrictions.

Prior to the offering, there has been no public market for the common units.
The initial public offering price will be negotiated among the general partner
and the representatives. Among the factors to be considered in determining the
initial public offering price of the common units, in addition to prevailing
market conditions, will be Northern Border Pipeline's historical performance,
the Partnership's pro forma historical performance, estimates of the business
potential and earnings prospects of TC PipelLines, an assessment of TC PipeLines'
management and the consideration of the above factors in relation to market
valuation of companies in related businesses, including Northern Border
Partners.

The common units will be listed on the Nasdaq National Market under the
symbol " ",

In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell
common units in the open market. These transactions may include short sales,
stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short
sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of
common units than they are required to purchase in the offering. Stabilizing
transactions consist of some bids or purchases made for the purpose of
preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the common units while
the offering is in progress.

The underwriters also may impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a
particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the underwriting
discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased common
units sold by or for the account of the underwriter in stabilizing or short
covering transactions.

These activities by the underwriters may stabilize, maintain or otherwise
affect the market price of the common units. As a result, the price of the
common units may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open
market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued by the
underwriters at any time. These transactions may be effected on the Nasdaq
National Market or otherwise.

TC PipeLines estimates that the total expenses of the offering, excluding
underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately $3 million.

Because the National Association for Securities Dealers, Inc. views the
common units offered hereby as interests in a direct participation program, the
offering is being made in compliance with Rule 2810 of the NASD's Conduct Rules.
Accordingly, the representatives have informed TC PipelLines that the
underwriters do not intend to confirm sales to accounts over which they exercise
discretionary authority without the prior written approval of the transaction by
the customer. Investor suitability with respect to the common units should be
judged similarly to the suitability with respect to other securities that are
listed for trading on a national securities exchange. The underwriters do not
expect sales to discretionary accounts to exceed five percent of the total
number of common units offered.

TC PipeLines, the TC PipeLines intermediate partnership, the general
partner, TransCanada and some of its affiliates have agreed to indemnify the
several underwriters against various liabilities, including liabilities under
the Securities Act.

Some of the underwriters engage in transactions with, and, from time to
time, have performed services for, TransCanada and its subsidiaries in the
ordinary course of business and have received customary fees for performing
these services.
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TC PIPELINES, LP

PRO FORMA BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1998

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

TC PIPELINES,

ASSETS

CaS . i e e 1

Investment in Northern Border Pipeline............ciiiiiiiinnnnnnnans --
1

PARTNERS' CAPITAL

GeNEral Partner . ..ttt ittt i st e s 1

COMMON UN Lt S . ittt ittt it ettt ettt et ettt e e e --

Subordinated Units. ... i e --
1

The accompanying notes to the pro forma

financial statements are an
integral part of this statement.

F-2

PRO FORMA
LP ADJUSTMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

282,156(d)
(282,156) (e)
253,031 (b)

5,061(b)
197,870(b)
282,156(d)

(282,156) (e)
50,100 (b)

PRO FORMA

TC PIPELINES,

(UNAUDITED)

5,062
197,870



TC PIPELINES, LP

PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF INCOME

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER UNIT AMOUNT)

Equity Income from
Investment in Northern
Border Pipeline.........

General and Administrative
EXPENSeS. .. ..ovvinnnnnnn

Net Income to Partners....

Net Income Per Unit.......

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

PRO FORMA PRO FORMA TC
TC PIPELINES, LP ADJUSTMENTS PIPELINES, LP

(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
-- 30, 069(f) 30, 069
-- (1,200)(9) (1,200)
-- 28,869 28,869
$ 1.44(h)

The accompanying notes to the pro forma financial statements are an
integral part of this statement.
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TC PIPELINES, LP

NOTES TO PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1998

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

TC PipeLines, LP was formed on December 16, 1998 as a Delaware limited
partnership. The accompanying unaudited pro forma financial information has been
prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. The pro forma financial statements of TC
PipeLines, LP have been prepared from information derived from the audited
financial statements of TC PipelLines, LP and the audited financial statements of
Northern Border Pipeline Company ("Northern Border Pipeline") appearing
elsewhere in this registration statement, and the assumptions outlined in Note 2
below. Northern Border Pipeline is currently owned by Northern Border Partners,
L.P. (70%), TransCanada Border PipelLine Ltd. (6%) and TransCan Northern Ltd.
(24%) .

NOTE 2 PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The pro forma financial statements of TC PipelLines, LP have been prepared as
if the transactions to be effected at the consummation of an offering (the
"offering") as described in a prospectus (the "prospectus") included in this
registration statement had been completed on December 31, 1998, in the case of
the pro forma balance sheet and as of January 1,1998, in the case of the pro
forma statement of income for the year ended December 31, 1998. The financial
statements are based on currently available information and certain estimates
and assumptions, and therefore the actual financial statements will differ from
the pro forma financial statements. However, management believes that the
assumptions provide a reasonable basis for presenting the significant effects of
the transactions as contemplated in the prospectus and that the pro forma
financial statements give appropriate effect to those assumptions.

The unaudited pro forma financial statements have been presented in response
to requirements of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission and do
not purport to be indicative of the financial position and results of operations
of TC PipeLines, LP as of such date or for such period, nor are they indicative
of future results. The unaudited pro forma financial information should be read
in conjunction with the historical audited financial statements and notes
thereto of TC PipelLines, LP and Northern Border Pipeline.

The significant assumptions are as follows:

(a) TransCanada Border PipeLine Ltd. and TransCan Northern Ltd., both of
which are wholly owned subsidiaries of TransCanada PipelLines Limited,
will convey their combined 30% equity interest in Northern Border
Pipeline to TC PipeLines, LP indirectly through a separate intermediate
partnership (collectively, the "Partnership"). TC PipelLines GP, Inc.
("General Partner") will serve as the general partner of the Partnership.
The drop-down of the equity interest in Northern Border Pipeline by
TransCanada PipelLines Limited's wholly owned subsidiaries is accounted
for at the combined historical carrying amounts as recorded in these
subsidiaries.

(b) The Partnership is in a position to exercise significant influence over
Northern Border Pipeline and the investment is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. The pro forma investment balance as of
December 31, 1998 represents the combined carrying values of the
investment in Northern Border Pipeline as reflected in the financial
records of



TC PIPELINES, LP

NOTES TO PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 1998

(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 2 PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

TransCanada Border PipeLine Ltd. and TransCan Northern Ltd. as of that
date. The balance also equates to 30% of the net assets of Northern
Border Pipeline as of December 31, 1998.

As contemplated in the offering, the investment in Northern Border
Pipeline is conveyed to the Partnership in exchange for [ ] common
units (which will not be outstanding after the Transactions), 3,960,000
subordinated units (representing a 19.8% interest in TC PipelLines after
the Transactions), a 2% combined general partnership interest in the
Partnership and the Intermediate Partnership and the right to receive
incentive distributions.

(c) The underwriters' over-allotment option is not exercised.

(d) Net proceeds to the Partnership from the sale of common units are
expected to be approximately $282 million, after deducting underwriting
discounts and commissions and expenses of the offering totaling $23
million.

(e) As outlined in the prospectus, the net proceeds will be used to redeem
all of the common units issued to TransCanada Border PipelLine Ltd. and
TransCan Northern Ltd.

(f) Pro forma equity income represents 30% of the net income of Northern
Border Pipeline.

(g) Annual incremental general and administrative expenses of the
Partnership are estimated as follows:

TransCanada human resource charges..........c.oevvuuen... $ 350,000
Human resources of the Partnership..................... 150, 000
Registration, reporting and listing fees............... 310, 000
Legal and audit........ouuiiiiin i 200, 000
Office and other administration........................ 190, 000

$1, 200, 000

(h) The General Partner's allocation of net income is based on a 2% interest
in the Partnership, which has been deducted before calculating net income
per unit. The computation of net income per unit assumes that 15,640,000
common units and 3,960,000 subordinated units are outstanding at all
times during the period presented.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of TC PipelLines GP, Inc., general partner of TC
PipelLines, LP

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of TC PipeLines, LP (the
"Partnership") as of December 31, 1998. This financial statement is the
responsibility of the management of the Partnership's general partner, TC
PipeLines GP, Inc. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial
statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the balance sheet is free of material
misstatement. An audit of a balance sheet includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in that balance sheet. An audit
of a balance sheet also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall balance
sheet presentation. We believe that our audit of the balance sheet provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the balance sheet referred to above presents fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of TC PipeLines, LP as of December 31,
1998, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Calgary, Canada
March 19, 1999



TC PIPELINES, LP

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1998

ASSETS
CaS N e e $ 10
Investment in TC PipeLines Intermediate Limited Partnership...................... 990
$ 1,000
PARTNERS ' CAP I AL . o ittt ittt it et et it st it it e e $ 1,000

NOTE TO BALANCE SHEET

TC PipeLines, LP (the "Partnership") was formed on December 16, 1998 as a
Delaware limited partnership. The Partnership was formed to acquire a 30%
interest in the assets of Northern Border Pipeline Company. In order to simplify
the Partnership's obligations under the laws of selected jurisdictions in which
the Partnership will conduct business, the Partnership's activities will be
conducted through a separate intermediate partnership, TC PipelLines Intermediate
Limited Partnership (the "Intermediate Partnership"). The assets and liabilities
of the Partnership will be conveyed to and assumed by the Intermediate
Partnership.

The Partnership intends to offer 15,640,000 common units, representing
limited partner interests in the Partnership, pursuant to a public offering and
to concurrently issue 3,960,000 subordinated units, representing additional
limited partner interests in the Partnership, to TC PipelLines GP, Inc., the
partnership's general partner, as well as an aggregate 2% general partner
interest in the Partnership and the Intermediate Partnership, on a combined
basis.

TC PipeLines GP, Inc. contributed $10 and TransCan Northern Ltd. as the
organizational limited partner, contributed $990 to the Partnership on December
23, 1998. The Partnership invested $990 in the Intermediate Partnership. There
have been no other transactions involving the Partnership as of December 31,
1998.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Management Committee of Northern Border Pipeline Company:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Northern Border Pipeline
Company (a Texas partnership) as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related
statements of income, changes in partners' capital and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Northern Border Pipeline
Company as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Omaha, Nebraska,
January 19, 1999
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NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

BALANCE SHEETS

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
1998 1997
ASSETS
NATURAL GAS TRANSMISSION PLANT
BRI Y=1 g V2 1= 2,302,457 1,497,743
CONSErUCEION WOIrK IN ProgreSS. v u ittt ittt ettt aa e 1,530 211,378
Total property, plant and equipment. .. ... .. ittt it e 2,303,987 1,709,121
Less: Accumulated provision for depreciation and amortization................... 589, 464 608,231
Net property, plant and equipment.......... .. ittt 1,714,523 1,100,890
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents. ... ...t i s et et ey 37,389 19,986
RECEIVAD LS . o vttt e e s 18,904 17,337
Materials and supplies, at COSET. .. ...t it ettt e 3,360 3,677
Under recovered COSt Of SeIrVICE. .. ...ttt i et e et e e e 2,781 --
Total CUrrent aSSeLS. . ittt ittt et e e i e 62,434 41,000
DEFERRED CHARGES . . . . it ittt ittt it it it it sttt s sttt st st e s as 13,932 5,230
1,790,889 1,147,120
PARTNERS' CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
PARTNERS ' CAP I T AL . vttt ittt e sttt et s 843,438 581,412
LONG-TERM DEBT . . ittt ittt it ettt et it sttt s st e it s e 862,000 459, 000
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES Payable. ot s 44,042 61,618
Accrued taxes other than InNCOmMe. ... ... ..ttt it st nas 19,828 20,294
X oT o2 ol U =T s X g o ol =Y 11,763 10, 367
Over recovered COSt Of SEIVICE. ...t iii ittt ettt ettt et eees -- 4,601
Total current 1iabilities. . ...t et et s 75,633 96, 880
RESERVES AND DEFERRED CREDITS. . .. ittt ittt tntnsn it sttt e st a e e nsas 9,818 9,828
1,790,889 1,147,120

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these
statements.



NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

FOR THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998
OPERATING REVENUES
(0] o T2 = ol X o IR a3 2= o U = 196, 600
Provision for rate refunds. .. ... i i et s s --
Operating reVeNUE, N . .. ...ttt s ittt ettt 196, 600
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and MainteNaNCe. . ..o i ittt ettt e e 29,447
Depreciation and amortization. .. ...ttt e s 40,989
Taxes other than INCOME. .. ...ttt i ettt s et s et et e s 21,381
RegUILATOrY Credit. .ottt ettt ettt et s (8,878)
OPEratdNg EXP NS S . o ittt i e e 82,939
OPERATING INCOME . . o vt vttt sttt ettt s s s e n s s sttt ees 113,661
INTEREST EXPENSE
o= TS ot q o 1= o 1= - 44,542
Interest expense Capitalized. ... ...ttt e (19, 001)
Interest eXPeNSE, MET. ...\ttt it i e e e 25,541
OTHER INCOME
Allowance for equity funds used during construction........... .. ennnns 10,237
Other INCOME, Net . ... it s ettt et et e 1,874
OthEr ANCOME . . .ottt i ettt e e e e 12,111
NET INCOME . . i ittt it it it ittt i i s i it e i e s i s e i s 100,231

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these
statements.
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NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

FOR THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998 1997
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NEET INCOME . o vttt ittt i et st e i i e s 100,231 72,772
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. .. ...t e e 41,005 38,715
Amortization Of debt eXPENSE. ... vt e e e 364 296
Allowance for equity funds used during CONSEruUCEION...... ... . innnnnrnrnnnssns (10, 237) (1,400)
Regulatory Credit. .. ...t i i e e s (9,105) --
Provision for rate refunds. .. ... ..ttt et e e e e e -- 40,403
Rate refunds Paid. ... ...t e -- (52,630)
Other reserves and deferred credits. . .... ... et s (10) 783
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
RECEAVAD LS . . ittt ittt i e e e e e e e e e e e (1,567) 1,927
Materials and SUPPLIeS . .ttt ittt s 317 170
Accounts payable. ... . i i aa e (10,769) 14,587
Accrued taxes other than InCome. .. ... i i i ittt (466) (674)
Y og o gl U= To I 1 = ol =3 o 1,396 14
Over/under recovered COSt Of SerVICE....... .ttt (7,382) 365
Total adjUSEMENES . .ottt i it e e e 3,546 42,556
Net cash provided by operating activities............iiiiiiniiiiin i 103,777 115,328
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment, net...........c.ouiiiiiiiinnniiinnnnnns (651,169) (152, 070)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CoNtributions from PartnersS. ...ttt ittt et ettt et e e e 223,000 81, 000
DiStribULionS £0 PartnerS. vttt i e (61,205) (99, 322)
Issuance of long-term debt. .. ... ... ittt i i i i i s 403,000 209, 000
Retirement of long-term debt. ... ...ttt i e e e e -- (127,500)
Repayment of Note payable. . ... ... i et e e -- (10, 000)
Long-term debt 1SSUANCE COSES. ... i vttt ittt ettt st et s -- (744)
Net cash provided by financing acCctivities. . ... ...ttt 564,795 52,434
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. .. ittt ittt ittt i st e e 17,403 15,692
Cash and cash equivalents--beginning of period..........c.iiiiiii i 19,986 4,294
Cash and cash equivalents--end Of pPeriod......... ... rnn e 37,389 19,986

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these
statements.



NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS' CAPITAL

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

TRANSCANADA
BORDER
PIPELINE LTD.

Balance, December 31, 1996........0uiiiiiiinninnrnrennnnns 31,618
Net dNCOME. ...t i i et e e e e 4,366
CoNtribUtioNS. . v it e 4,860
Distributions...... ... e (5,959)
Balance, December 31, 1997....... .ttt iinrnnnnnnennns 34,885
NEt ANCOME. .ottt it ettt e et e, 6,014
CoNtributioNS . vt s 13,380
Distributions. . ... e (3,673)
Balance, December 31, 1998........ ¢t iiirinnrnnrnnrannns 50, 606

TRANSCAN
NORTHERN LTD.

126,471
17,466

19, 440
(23,838)
139,539
24,055
53,520

(14, 689)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these

statements.

NORTHERN
BORDER
INTERMEDIATE
LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP

368,873
50,940
56,700

(69,525)

406,988
70,162

156,100

(42,843)

526,962
72,772
81,000

(99, 322)
581,412
100,231
223,000
(61,205)



NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

Northern Border Pipeline Company (Northern Border Pipeline) is a general
partnership, formed March 9, 1978, pursuant to the Texas Uniform Partnership
Act. The ownership percentages of the partners in Northern Border Pipeline
(Partners) at both December 31, 1998 and 1997, which are used to allocate net
income and distributions, are as follows:

OWNERSHIP
PARTNER PERCENTAGE
Northern Border Intermediate Limited Partnership.............. .. i 70
TransCan Northern Ltd....... ... i e it e e e 24
TransCanada Border PipelLine Ltd. ... ....uuuiiininnnn iy 6

Northern Border Pipeline owns a 1,214-mile natural gas transmission pipeline
system extending from the United States-Canadian border near Port of Morgan,
Montana, to a terminus near Manhattan, Illinois.

Northern Border Pipeline is managed by a Management Committee that includes
three representatives from Northern Border Intermediate Limited Partnership
(Partnership) and one representative from TransCanada Border PipelLine Ltd. and
TransCan Northern Ltd. (collectively TransCanada), both of which are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of TransCanada PipeLines Limited. The Partnership's
representatives selected by its general partners, Northern Plains Natural Gas
Company (Northern Plains), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enron Corp. (Enron), Pan
Border Gas Company (Pan Border), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Northern Plains,
and Northwest Border Pipeline Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Williams
Companies, Inc., have 35%, 22.75% and 12.25%, respectively, of the voting
interest on the Management Committee. The representative designated by
TransCanada votes the remaining 30% interest. In December 1998, Northern Plains
acquired Pan Border from a subsidiary of Duke Energy Corporation. At the
closing, Pan Border's sole asset consisted of its general partner interest in
the Partnership. The day-to-day management of Northern Border Pipeline's affairs
is the responsibility of Northern Plains (the Operator), as defined by the
operating agreement between Northern Border Pipeline and Northern Plains.
Northern Border Pipeline is charged for the salaries, benefits and expenses of
the Operator. Substantially all of the operations and maintenance expenses are
paid to the Operator and other Enron affiliates. Additionally, an Enron
affiliate was responsible for project management on Northern Border Pipeline's
expansion and extension of its pipeline from near Harper, Iowa to a point near
Manhattan, Illinois (The Chicago Project) (see Note 5).

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Northern Border Pipeline is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC). Northern Border Pipeline's accounting policies
conform to generally accepted accounting principles, as applied in the case of
regulated entities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RELATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost. Construction work
in progress shown on the accompanying balance sheet includes approximately
$197.9 million at December 31, 1997, of project-to-date costs on The Chicago
Project. In December 1998, Northern Border Pipeline placed into service the
facilities for The Chicago Project. At December 31, 1998 and 1997, approximately
$37.4 million and $44.2 million, respectively, of project costs incurred but not
paid for The Chicago Project were recorded in accounts payable and natural gas
transmission plant on the balance sheet and were excluded from the change in
accounts payable and expenditures for property, plant and equipment, net on the
statements of cash flows.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations in the period incurred.
The provision for depreciation and amortization of the transmission line is an
integral part of Northern Border Pipeline's FERC tariff. The effective
depreciation rate applied to Northern Border Pipeline's gross transmission plant
in both 1998 and 1997 was 2.5% (see Note 5). At the time The Chicago Project was
placed into service, Northern Border Pipeline's depreciation rate was reduced to
2.0%. Beginning in the year 2000, the depreciation rate is scheduled to increase
gradually on an annual basis until it reaches 3.2% in 2002. Composite rates are
applied to all other functional groups of property having similar economic
characteristics.

The original cost of property retired is charged to accumulated depreciation
and amortization, net of salvage and cost of removal. No retirement gain or loss
is included in income except in the case of extraordinary retirements or sales.

(B) INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are the responsibility of the Partners and are not reflected in
these financial statements. However, the Northern Border Pipeline FERC tariff
establishes the method of accounting for and calculating income taxes and
requires Northern Border Pipeline to reflect in its cost of service the income
taxes which would have been paid or accrued if Northern Border Pipeline were
organized during the period as a corporation. As a result, for purposes of
calculating the return allowed by the FERC, Partners' capital and rate base are
reduced by the amount equivalent to the net accumulated deferred income taxes.
Such amounts were approximately $300 million at both December 31, 1998 and 1997,
and are primarily related to accelerated depreciation and other plant-related
differences.

(C) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Northern Border Pipeline bills the cost of service on an estimated basis for
a six month cycle. Any net excess or deficiency resulting from the comparison of
the actual cost of service determined for that period in accordance with the
FERC tariff to the estimated billing is accumulated, including carrying charges
thereon and is either billed to or credited back to the shippers. Revenues
reflect actual cost of service. An amount equal to differences between billing
estimates and the actual cost of service, including carrying charges, is
reflected in current assets or current liabilities.



NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(D) ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING CONSTRUCTION

The allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) represents the
estimated costs, during the period of construction, of funds used for
construction purposes. For regulated activities, Northern Border Pipeline is
permitted to earn a return on and recover AFUDC through its inclusion in rate
base and the provision for depreciation. The rate employed for the equity
component of AFUDC is the equity rate of return stated in Northern Border
Pipeline's FERC tariff.

(E) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these
investments.

(F) RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments are used by Northern Border Pipeline in the management
of its interest rate exposure. A control environment has been established which
includes policies and procedures for risk assessment and the approval, reporting
and monitoring of financial instrument activities. As a result, Northern Border
Pipeline has entered into various interest rate swap agreements with major
financial institutions which hedge interest rate risk by effectively converting
certain of its floating rate debt to fixed rate debt. Additionally, Northern
Border Pipeline has entered into interest rate forward agreements to hedge the
interest rate on a planned issuance of fixed rate debt. Northern Border Pipeline
does not use these instruments for trading purposes. The cost or benefit of the
interest rate swap agreements is recognized currently as a component of interest
expense. No cost or benefit is currently associated with the interest rate
forward agreements.

3. SHIPPER SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Operating revenues are collected pursuant to the FERC tariff which directs
that Northern Border Pipeline collect its cost of service through firm
transportation service agreements (firm service agreements). Northern Border
Pipeline's FERC tariff provides an opportunity to recover all operations and
maintenance costs of the pipeline, taxes other than income taxes, interest,
depreciation and amortization, an allowance for income taxes and a regulated
equity return. Billings for the firm service agreements are based on contracted
volumes to determine the allocable share of cost of service and are not
dependent upon the percentage of available capacity actually used.

Northern Border Pipeline's firm service agreements extend for various terms
with termination dates that range from October 2001 to December 2013. Northern
Border Pipeline also has interruptible service contracts with numerous other
shippers as a result of its self-implementing blanket transportation authority.
Revenues received from the interruptible service contracts are credited to the
cost of service reducing the billings for the firm service agreements.

Northern Border Pipeline's largest shipper, Pan-Alberta Gas (U.S.) Inc.
(PAGUS), is presently obligated for approximately 26.5% of the cost of service
through three firm service agreements which expire in October 2003. FERC
approval is required for the extension of one of the firm service agreements,
relating to approximately 6.5% of the cost of service, beyond October 2001.
Financial guarantees exist through October 2001 for approximately 17.0% of the
total cost of service related






NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SHIPPER SERVICE AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED)

to the contracted capacity of PAGUS, including 10.5% guaranteed by Northern
Natural Gas Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enron. The remaining cost of
service obligation of PAGUS is supported by various credit support arrangements,
including among others, a letter of credit, an escrow account and an upstream
capacity transfer agreement. Operating revenues from the PAGUS firm service
agreements and interruptible service contracts for the years ended December 31,
1998 and 1997 were $87.3 million and $86.8 million, respectively.

Shippers affiliated with the Partners of Northern Border Pipeline have firm
service agreements representing approximately 16.9% of the cost of service.
These firm service agreements extend for various terms with termination dates
that range from October 2003 to May 2009. Operating revenues from the affiliated
firm service agreements and interruptible service contracts for the years ended
December 31, 1998 and 1997 were $22.4 million and $20.2 million, respectively.

4. CREDIT FACILITIES AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Detailed information on long-term debt is as follows:

Senior notes -- average 8.43%, due from 2000 to 2003...... ...ttt

Pipeline Credit Agreement

Five-year revolving credit faCility.......uuiiiiiiiin ittt
Three-year revolving credit faCility.......cuiuiiiiiiininni ittty

In June 1997, Northern Border Pipeline entered into a credit agreement
(Pipeline Credit Agreement) with certain financial institutions to borrow up to
an aggregate principal amount of $750 million. The Pipeline Credit Agreement is
comprised of a $200 million five-year revolving credit facility to be used for
the retirement of Northern Border Pipeline's existing bank loan agreement and
for general business purposes, and a $550 million three-year revolving credit
facility to be used for the construction of The Chicago Project. The three-year
revolving credit facility may be converted to a term loan maturing in June 2002
once certain conditions are met. The Pipeline Credit Agreement permits Northern
Border Pipeline to choose among various interest rate options, to specify the
portion of the borrowings to be covered by specific interest rate options and to
specify the interest rate period, subject to certain parameters. Northern Border
Pipeline is required to pay a facility fee on the aggregate principal amount of
$750 million.

At both December 31, 1998 and 1997, Northern Border Pipeline had outstanding
interest rate swap agreements with notional amounts of $90 million. Under the
agreements, which have a remaining average maturity of approximately one year as
of December 31, 1998, Northern Border Pipeline makes payments to counterparties
at fixed rates and in return receives payments at variable rates based on the
London Interbank Offered Rate. At both December 31, 1998 and 1997, Northern
Border Pipeline was in a payable position relative to its counterparties. The
average effective interest rate of Northern Border Pipeline's variable rate
debt, taking into consideration the interest rate swap agreements, was 6.17% and
7.09% at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.
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DECEMBER 31,

1998 1997
(THOUSANDS OF
DOLLARS)

250, 000 250, 000
127,500 127,500
484,500 81,500
862,000 459,000



NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. CREDIT FACILITIES AND LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

During September 1998, Northern Border Pipeline executed interest rate
forward agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $150 million to hedge
the interest rate for a planned issuance of fixed rate debt during 1999. The
average reference interest rate on the agreements, based on ten-year U.S.
Treasury Notes, is 4.90%.

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized, during the years ended December
31, 1998 and 1997 was $23.8 million and $29.0 million, respectively.

Aggregate required repayments of long-term debt are as follows: $66 million,
$41 million, $690 million and $65 million for 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003,
respectively. There are no required repayment obligations for 1999. The
aggregate required repayments reflect Northern Border Pipeline's intent and
ability to convert the three-year revolving credit facility to a term loan.

Certain of Northern Border Pipeline's long-term debt and credit arrangements
contain requirements as to the maintenance of minimum partners' capital and debt
to capitalization ratios which restrict the incurrence of other indebtedness by
Northern Border Pipeline and also place certain restrictions on distributions to
the partners of Northern Border Pipeline. Under the most restrictive of the
covenants, as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, $173 million and $81
million of partners' capital of Northern Border Pipeline could be distributed.

The following estimated fair values of financial instruments represent the
amount at which each instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties. Based on quoted market prices for similar issues with
similar terms and remaining maturities, the estimated fair value of the senior
notes was approximately $287 million and $276 million at December 31, 1998 and
1997, respectively. At both December 31, 1998 and 1997, the estimated fair value
which would be payable to terminate the interest rate swap agreements, taking
into account current interest rates, was approximately $3 million. The estimated
fair value which would be payable to terminate the interest rate forward
agreements, taking into account current interest rates, was approximately $3
million at December 31, 1998. Northern Border Pipeline presently intends to
maintain the current schedule of maturities for the senior notes and the
interest rate swap agreements which will result in no gains or losses on their
respective repayment. The carrying value of Northern Border Pipeline's variable
rate debt approximates the fair value since the interest rates are periodically
adjusted to current market conditions.

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS

In October 1998, Northern Border Pipeline filed a certificate application
with the FERC to seek approval to expand and extend its pipeline system into
Indiana by November 2000 (Project 2000). Project 2000 would afford shippers on
the extended pipeline system access to industrial gas consumers in northern
Indiana. Project 2000 capital expenditures are estimated at $130 million.

In January 1998, Northern Border Pipeline filed an application with the FERC
to acquire the linepack gas required to operate the pipeline from the shippers
and to provide the linepack gas in the future for its operations. The cost of
the linepack gas acquired in 1998, which is included in rate base, totaled
approximately $11.7 million.



NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

In August 1997, Northern Border Pipeline received FERC approval of a
Stipulation and Agreement (Stipulation) filed on October 15, 1996 to settle its
November 1995 rate case. Northern Border Pipeline filed the rate case, in
compliance with its FERC tariff, for the determination of its allowed equity
rate of return and was permitted, pursuant to a December 1995 FERC order, to
begin collecting the requested increase in the equity rate of return effective
June 1, 1996, subject to refund. In accordance with the terms of the
Stipulation, Northern Border Pipeline's allowed equity rate of return was
reduced from the requested 14.25% to 12.75% for the period June 1, 1996 to
September 30, 1996 and to 12% thereafter. Additionally, the Stipulation reduced
the effective depreciation rate applied to Northern Border Pipeline's gross
transmission plant from 3.6% to 2.7% for the period June 1, 1996 to December 31,
1996, which resulted in an average effective depreciation rate of 3.1% for the
year ended December 31, 1996. Beginning January 1, 1997, the depreciation rate
was reduced to 2.5%. In October 1997, Northern Border Pipeline used a
combination of cash on hand and borrowings on a revolving credit facility to pay
refunds to its shippers of approximately $52.6 million. Under the terms of the
Stipulation, Northern Border Pipeline agreed to further reduce its depreciation
rate to 2.0% and agreed to implement a $31 million settlement adjustment
mechanism (SAM) when The Chicago Project was placed in service. The SAM
effectively reduces the allowed return on rate base.

Also as agreed to in the Stipulation, Northern Border Pipeline implemented a
capital project cost containment mechanism (PCCM). The purpose of the PCCM was
to limit Northern Border Pipeline's ability to include cost overruns on The
Chicago Project in rate base and to provide incentives to Northern Border
Pipeline for cost underruns. The PCCM amount is determined by comparing the
final cost of The Chicago Project to the budgeted cost. The Stipulation required
the budgeted cost for The Chicago Project, which had been initially filed with
the FERC for approximately $839 million, to be adjusted for the effects of
inflation and project scope changes, as defined in the Stipulation. Such
adjusted budgeted cost of The Chicago Project has been estimated as of the in
service date to be $889 million, with the final construction cost estimated to
be $892 million. Thus, Northern Border Pipeline's report to the FERC and its
shippers in late December 1998, reflected the conclusion that, based on
information as of that date, there would be no adjustment to rate base as a
result of the PCCM. Northern Border Pipeline is obligated by the Stipulation to
update its calculation of the PCCM six months after the in service date of The
Chicago Project. The Stipulation requires the calculation of the PCCM to be
reviewed by an independent national accounting firm. Several parties to the
Stipulation have advised the FERC that they may have questions and desire
further information about the report, and may possibly wish to test it (or the
final report) and its conclusions in an appropriate proceeding in the future.
The parties also stated that if it is determined that Northern Border Pipeline
is not permitted to include certain claimed costs for The Chicago Project in its
rate base, they reserve their rights to seek refunds, with interest, of any
overcollections. Although Northern Border Pipeline believes the initial
computation has been made in accordance with the terms of the Stipulation, it is
unable to make a definitive determination at this time whether any adjustments
will be required. Should subsequent developments cause costs not to be recovered
pursuant to the PCCM, a non-cash charge to write down transmission plant may
result and such charge could be material to the operating results of Northern
Border Pipeline.

During the construction of The Chicago Project, Northern Border Pipeline
placed certain new facilities into service in advance of the December 1998 in
service date to maintain gas flow at firm
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NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

contracted capacity while existing facilities were being modified. As required
by the certificate of public convenience and necessity issued by the FERC,
Northern Border Pipeline recorded a regulatory credit of approximately $8.9
million in 1998, which is reflected on the statements of income. The regulatory
credit results in a deferral of the cost of service of these new facilities. The
regulatory asset that resulted from the cost of service deferral is included
with Deferred Charges on the balance sheets at December 31, 1998. Northern
Border Pipeline is allowed to recover the regulatory asset from its shippers
over a ten-year period commencing with the in service date of The Chicago
Project.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Northern Border Pipeline is not aware of any material contingent liabilities
with respect to compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations.

OTHER

Various legal actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of business
are pending. Northern Border Pipeline believes that the resolution of these
issues will not have a material adverse impact on Northern Border Pipeline's
results of operations or financial position.

6. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROGRAM

Total capital expenditures for 1999 are estimated to be $131 million. This
includes approximately $30 million for Project 2000 (see Note 5), approximately
$85 million for The Chicago Project and approximately $16 million for renewals
and replacements of the existing facilities. Approximately $37 million of the
capital expenditures for The Chicago Project is for construction completed in
1998. Funds required to meet the 1999 capital expenditures are anticipated to be
provided primarily from debt borrowings and internal sources.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Management Committee of Northern Border Pipeline Company:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Northern Border Pipeline
Company (a Texas partnership) as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the related
statements of income, changes in partners' capital and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Northern Border Pipeline
Company as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Omaha, Nebraska,
January 26, 1998



NORTHERN BORDER PIPELINE COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
1997 1996
ASSETS
NATURAL GAS TRANSMISSION PLANT
BT 72 Ko< 1,497,743 1,493,525
Construction WOrK In ProgresSS . vttt ittt st st e 211,378 19,591
Total property, plant and equipment. . ... ...ttt et s 1,709,121 1,513,116
Less: Accumulated provision for depreciation and amortization................... 608,231 575,257
Net property, plant and equip